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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forwardking statements. A forwardoking statement is a projection about a fu
event or result, and whether the statement comesidrsubject to many risks and uncertainties. & lstatements often can be identified by
use of terms such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “belie,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “approximate” or datinue,” or the negative thereof. T
actual results or activities of the Company wikelly differ from projected results or activities thife Company as described in this Ani
Report, and such differences could be material.

Forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskscertainties and other factors that may causeathgal results a
performance of the Company to be different from antyre results, performance and achievements sgpdeor implied by these statement
other words, our performance might be quite difiéer’lom what the forwardboking statements imply. You should review cargfidll
information included in this Annual Report.

You should rely only on the forwalddeoking statements that reflect management's visvofathe date of this Annual Report.
undertake no obligation to publicly revise or updtitese forwardboking statements to reflect subsequent eventfranmstances. You shot
also carefully review the risk factors describedther documents we file from time to time with tBecurities and Exchange Commission
“SEC”). The Private Securities Reform Act of 199%ntains a safe harbor for forwalabking statements on which the Company relie
making such disclosures. In connection with thde'daarbor,”we are hereby identifying important factors thatildocause actual results
differ materially from those contained in any forddooking statements made by us or on our behalftdfathat might cause such a differe
include, but are not limited to, those discusseithénsection entitled “Risk Factors” under Item Bey Information.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CURRENCY PRESENTATION

We prepare our consolidated financial statementscgordance with accounting principles generallyeated in the United States
America and publish our financial statements intethiStates Dollars.

REFERENCES

In this Annual Report, “Chinafefers to all parts of the People's Republic ofn@hdther than the Special Administrative Regic
Hong Kong. The terms “Bonso,” “we,” “our,” “us,” ‘fle Group” and the “Company&fer to Bonso Electronics International Inc. awtiere
the context so requires or suggests, our directiagidect subsidiaries. References to “dollars,”SUDollars” or “US$"are to United Stat
Dollars, “HK$” are to Hong Kong Dollars, “Euros” deuro” are to the European Monetary Union's Cutyerand “RMB” are to Chines
Renminbi.




PART |
Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Managemend &ualvisors
Not Applicable to Bonso.
Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not Applicable to Bonso.
Item 3. Key Information
A. Selected Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial data as of M&dg 2011 and 2012 and for each of the threelfis=rs ended March 31, 2012
derived from the Audited Consolidated Financiat&tzents and notes which appear elsewhere in thisi@rReport.

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordaiticgenerally accepted accounting principleshia tUnited States of America ¢
expressed in United States Dollars. The selectedatmated financial data set forth below as of ¢haB1, 2008, 2009 and 2010, and for ¢
of the two fiscal years in the period ended Mardh 2009, have been derived from our audited codiatdd financial statements that are
included in this Annual Report. The selected cdidated financial data is qualified in their entirdoy reference to, and should be rea
conjunction with, the Consolidated Financial Stagats and related notes included in the F pagesisfAnnual Report and Item 5.
“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects™udet in this Annual Report.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]







Statement of Operations Data

(in 000’s US$ except for shares and per share data)

Year Ended March 3:

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Net sales

Cost of sale:

Gross margin

Selling expense

Salaries and related costs
Research and development expet
Administration and general expen:
Amortization of brand name
Impairment of goodwil

Impairment of brand name
Impairment on share investme
Gain from liquidation of subsidiary
Loss from operation

Interest income

Interest expenses

Foreign exchange lo:

Gain on disposal of property

Gain on disposal of intangible ass
Other income

Loss before income taxes and minority inte

Income tax benefit (expense)
Loss from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued operatio
Net loss
Loss per shar

- Continuing operation

- Discontinued operatior

- Total
Weighted average shares
Diluted weighted average shares

2008M@ 2009(M@E) 2010M®@ 2011MW®@ 2012M@)
$ $ $ $ $
45,49¢ 40,37¢ 28,54 28,38’ 26,68:
(43,629 (34,707 (23,699 (24,76() (22,787)
1,867 5,671 4,85( 3,621 3,90(
(720) (64€) (375) (24€) (267)
(3,547) (3,777) (2,53¢) (2,71€) (2,52€)
(883) (792) (580) (334) (312)
(3,35)) (4,607) (2,01)) (1,959 (2,497)
(200) — — — —
(843) — — — —
(1,597 — — — —
(200) — — — —
— — — — 1,44¢
(9,46¢) (4,14¢) (65E) (1,631) (249)
19¢ 127 103 6 7
(44€) (209) (69) (56) (87)
(431) (279) (522) (130) (703)
3,12¢ 162 — 15k —
_ _ _ 41 _
592 707 62( 184 132
(6,437 (3,647 (523) (1,437 (900)
341 (20€) (9) — (2)
(6,092) (3,849 (532) (1,437 (902)
(2,45¢) (3,73%) (126) (129) —
(8,550 (7,584) (65€) (1,560 (902)
$ (.09 $ 079 % (0.10 $ (0.29) (0.1%)
$ 049 $ 0720 $ (0.0 $ (0.02) (0.00
$ 153 $ (145 S (019 $ (0.29) (0.17)
5,577,63! 5,246,90. 5,246,90. 5,246,90. 5,246,90.
5,577,63! 5,246,90. 5,246,90. 5,246,90. 5,246,90.

(1) The diluted net loss per share was the sambeabasic net loss per share as all potential argishares, including the stc

options, are anti-dilutive and therefore excludexif the computation of diluted net loss per share.

(2) The statement of operations present continng discontinued operations in conjunction with tBensolidated Financi

Statements.

(3) The statement of operations for the fiscal yeated March 31, 2009 was restated in conjunctitih the Consolidated Financ

Statements.




Balance Sheet Data
(in 000’s US$ except for shares and per share data)

March 31,
2008™M 2009M 2010M 2011® 2012M

$ $ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalel 9,654 8,04¢ 8,08t 5,407 3,01«
Working capital of continuing operations 11,81¢ 11,24 10,53¢ 7,93¢ 2,914
Total assets of continuing operatic 34,04 25,62( 23,48¢ 21,80% 23,16¢
Total assets of discontinued operations 7,742 3,81¢ 20C 5 —
Total assets 41,78¢ 29,43¢ 23,68¢ 21,81; 23,16¢
Current liabilities of continuing operatiol 11,99( 6,99 6,78¢ 6,28¢ 9,29¢
Long-term debts and capital leases 184 52 — — —
Deferred income tax ass¢ 22 — — — —
Total liabilities of continuing operations 14,77¢ 9,654 9,40z 8,89¢ 11,89(
Total liabilities of discontinued operatio 6,107 5,781 1,09¢ 1,08¢ —
Common stock 17 17 17 17 17
Shareholde’ equity 20,90¢ 13,99¢ 13,18t¢ 11,82: 11,27¢

Dividends declared per she — — - _ —

(1) The selected financial data for balance sheegtsent continuing and discontinued operationimjunction with the Consolidat
Financial Statements.

Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risksgether with all other information included ingbAnnual Report. The realization
any of the risks described below could have a rratadverse effect on our business, results ofaimers and future prospects.

Political, Legal, Economic and Other Uncertaintieof Operations in China and Hong Kong

We Could Face Increased Currency Risks If China<DNet Maintain The Stability Of The Hong Kong Doltar the Chines:
Renminbi.The Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollavénbeen fixed at approximately 7.80 Hong Kong &wlito 1.00 U.S. Doll
since 1983. From 1994 until July 2005, the Chineeeminbi had remained stable against the U.S. Datlapproximately 8.28 to 1.00 U
Dollar. On July 21, 2005, the Chinese currencymegivas altered to link the RMB to a “basket of ennies,” which includethe U.S. Dollai
Euro, Japanese Yen and Korean Won. Under the ithiesRMB is allowed to move 0.3% on a daily bagjaiast the U.S. DollaiThe People
Bank of China, on May 21 2007, widened the RMB itngcband from 0.3% daily movement against the U8llar to 0.5%.Following the
removal of the U.S. Dollar peg, the RMB appreciateate than 20% against the U.S. Dollar over thiofgdhg three years. Since July 20
however, the RMB has traded within a narrow rarggrest the U.S. Dollar. As a consequence, the Ri8fluctuated significantly since J
2008 against other freely traded currencies, ideamwith the U.S. Dollar. On June 20, 2010, thepRes Bank of China (“PBOC"announce
that the government of the People’s Republic oh@li'PRC”)would further reform the RMB exchange rate regime Bcrease the flexibili
of the exchange rate. It is difficult to predicththis new policy may impact the RMB exchange raof July 10, 2012, the RMB was vali
at 6.3649 per U.S. Dollar. On June 19, 2010, th®@Beleased a statement indicating that it woutd¢eed further with reform of the RN
exchange rate regime and increase the RMB exchatgdlexibility.” Any significant revaluation of the RMB may matelyahnd adverse
affect our cash flows, revenues, earnings and fiahposition and the value of our common sharesany dividends payable to our comr
shareholders in U.S. Dollarg addition, the Chinese government continues ¢eive significant international pressure to furthieeralize it
currency policy and as a result may further chaitgeurrency policyThe Chinese government in the past has expresséatention in th
Basic Law of the PRC to maintain the stability loé tHong Kong currency after the sovereignty of H&oegg was transferred to China in J
1997. However, there can be no assurance thatahg Kong Dollar will remain pegged against the \D8llar or that the Chinese Renmi
will not be allowed to fluctuate more than 0.5% awlaily basis. If the current exchange rate meshars changed, we shall face incre:
currency risks, which could have a material adveffect upon the Company.
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We Face Significant Risks If The Chinese Governriérainges Its Policies, Laws, Regulations Or Tax@tre Or Its Currer
Interpretations Of Its Laws, Rules And RegulatiBesating To Our Operations In ChinOur manufacturing facility and the new manufactg
facility we are developing in XinXing are locatad €hina. As a result, our operations and assetsudject to significant political, econon
legal and other uncertainties. Changes in polibiethe Chinese government resulting in changeaws lor regulations or the interpretatiol
laws or regulations, confiscatory taxation, chanmesmployment restrictions, restrictions on imgoaind sources of supply, import dut
corruption, currency revaluation or the expropaatdf private enterprise could materially and adedr affect us. Over the past several y
the Chinese government has pursued economic redolicies, including the encouragement of privatereenic activity and greater econol
decentralization. If the Chinese government dogésantinue to pursue its present policies that arsge foreign investment and operatior
China, or if these policies are either not sucedssfare significantly altered, then our businegsrations in China could be adversely affe
We could even be subject to the risk of nationgira which could result in the total loss of intreent in that country. Following the Chin
government’s policy of privatizing many statemed enterprises, the Chinese government has @#dnmo augment its revenues thra
increased tax collection. Continued efforts to éase tax revenues could result in increased taxatipenses being incurred by us. Econi
development may be limited as well by the impositiaf austerity measures intended to reduce inflatibe inadequate developmen
infrastructure and the potential unavailabilityaafequate power and water supplies, transportatidncammunications. If for any reason
were required to move our manufacturing operatartside of China, our profitability would be subgially impaired, our competitiveness
market position would be materially jeopardized amdmight have to discontinue our operations.

Continuing Economic Weakness May Adversely AffectEarnings, Liquidity And Financial Positiolhe Companys business h
been challenging recently as a consequence of selwgorldwide economic conditions. In particularerth has been an erosion of gl
consumer confidence from concerns over declinirgptagalues, price instability, geopolitical issutt® availability and cost of credit, risi
unemployment and the stability and solvency of fitial institutions, financial markets, businessed aovereign nations. These conc
slowed global economic growth and resulted in reioes in many countries, including in the U.S., &h@ and certain countries in Asia.
global economic weakness has negatively impactedperating results since 2008. Overall, the ecanmutlook is uncertain as a resul
concerns about the general global economy, theedsed rate of growth in China and the EuropeanrJmtecessionary conditions may ret
If negative economic conditions return, a numbematerial adverse effects on our business couldrcared could have a negative impact L
our results of operations. Further, slower ovegadiwth of the Chinese economy may have a matediarge effect upon the Company an
results of operations.

The Economy Of China Has Been Experiencing SigmfiGrowth, Leading To Some Inflation and Increasator CostsThe econom
in China has grown significantly over the past 2@&ng, which has resulted in inflation and an ingeda the average cost of labor, especial
the coastal cities. Ching'consumer price index, the broadest measure latior, rose 4.5% in January 2012 from the levelanuary 201
The wages we pay our employees also increasedastiilpdly during the year ended March 31, 2012. @lsioverall economy and the aver
wage in the PRC are expected to continue to gramtiBuing inflation and material increases in tlestoof labor in China could diminish ¢
competitive advantage. If the government triesdotiol inflation, it may have an adverse effecttba business climate and growth of pri
enterprise in the PRC. An economic slowdown maycedour revenues. If inflation is allowed to pratemchecked, our costs would lik
increase, and there can be no assurance that wd t®able to increase our prices to an extentviloald offset the increase in our expenses.
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Changes To PRC Tax Laws And Heightened EffortstBya® Tax Authorities To Increase Revenues Are Expdaesubject Us 1
Greater Taxes.Under PRC law before 2008, we were afforded a rarmbtax concessions by, and tax refunds fromn&hitax authorities ¢
a substantial portion of our operations in Chinarbiyvesting all or part of the profits attributabio our PRC manufacturing operatic
However, on March 16, 2007, the Chinese governmeeatcted a unified enterprise income tax law, ofT Elhich became effective
January 1, 2008. Prior to the EIT, as a foreigrested enterprise, or “FIE|dcated in Shenzhen of the PRC, our PRC subsidianigoyed
national income tax rate of 15% and were exemptau the 3% local income tax. The preferential t@atment to our subsidiaries in the F
of qualifying for tax refunds as a result of reisting their profits earned in previous years in BHRC expired on January 1, 2008. Unde
EIT, apart from those qualified as hitgreh enterprises, most domestic enterprises ansl WilEbe subject to a single PRC enterprise inc
tax rate of 25%. We base our tax position uporatitecipated nature and conduct of our businessuand our understanding of the tax law
the various administrative regions and countriesliich we have assets or conduct activities. Howewgr tax position is subject to review i
possible challenge by taxing authorities and tcsjids changes in law, which may have retroactifectf We cannot determine in advance
extent to which some jurisdictions may requireapay taxes or make payments in lieu of taxes.

We Face Risks By Operating In China, Because TheeS Legal System Relating To Foreign InvestmadtRoreign Operatior
Such As Bonso’s Is Evolving And The ApplicatiorCBihese Laws Is UncertaiiThe legal system of China relating to foreign iraeents i
continually evolving, and there can be no certaedyto the application of its laws and regulationparticular instances. The Chinese I
system is a civil law system based on written ségtuUnlike common law systems, it is a system Imctv decided legal cases have |
precedential value. In 1979, the Chinese governiegéan to promulgate a comprehensive system of d&dgegulations governing econo
matters in general. Legislation over the past 3rydas significantly enhanced the protectionsradf to various forms of foreign investm
in China. Enforcement of existing laws or agreersenay be sporadic and implementation and interfioataf laws inconsistent. The Chin
judiciary is relatively inexperienced in enforcittee laws that exist, leading to a higher than udegkee of uncertainty as to the outcome o
litigation. Even where adequate law exists in Chinmay not be possible to obtain swift and edaléeenforcement of that law. Further, vari
disputes may be subject to the exercise of coraideidiscretion by agencies of the Chinese govenhrna@d forces and factors unrelated tc
legal merits of a particular matter or dispute niafjuence their determination. Continued uncertairglating to the laws in China and
application of the laws could have a material ase@ffect upon us and our operations in China.

We Could Be Adversely Affected If China ChangeEdtmomic Policies In The Shenzhen Special Econdorie Where We Opere
In August 1980, the Chinese government passed ‘IBeégus for The Special Economy Zone of GuangdorayiRce” and officially designate
a portion of Shenzhen as The Shenzhen Special BgoZone. Foreign enterprises in these areas benatfit greater economic autonomy .
special tax incentives than enterprises in othetisp# China. Changes in the policies or laws goiey The Shenzhen Special Economy Z
could have a material adverse effect on us. Momre@anomic reforms and growth in China have beerensuccessful in certain provin
than others, and the continuation or increaseeddtdisparities could affect the political or sbstability of China, which could have a mate
adverse effect on us and our operations near Skanzh

Controversies Affecting ChimaTrade With The United States Could Harm Our Resdf Operations Or Depress Our Stock Pi
While China has been granted permanent most favoegin trade status in the United States throughentry into the World Tra
Organization, controversies between the UnitedeStahd China may arise that threaten the statuggatving trade between the United St:
and China. These controversies could materially ahcersely affect our business by, among otheg#hinausing our products in the Un
States to become more expensive, resulting in @ctixh in the demand for our products by custonrethe United States, which would hay
material adverse effect upon us and our resultpefations. Further, political or trade frictiontlween the United States and China, wheth
not actually affecting our business, could alsoarmally and adversely affect the prevailing manete of our common shares.

If Our Sole Factory Were Destroyed Or SignificariDigmaged As A Result of Fire, Flood Or Some Othauidl Disaster, We Wou
Be Adversely Affecte. All of our products are manufactured at our maotifring facility located in Shenzhen, China bull & manufacture
at a single facility in XinXing following our movi® XinXing expected to occur during the fiscal yeading March 31, 2013. Fifighting anc
disaster relief or assistance in China may not beleveloped as in Western countries. We currentiyntain property damage insura
aggregating approximately $26.8 million covering stock in trade, goods and merchandise, furniume equipment and buildings. We do
maintain business interruption insurance. Invesaoescautioned that material damage to, or thedéssur factory due to fire, severe weat
flood or other act of God or cause, even if insummdild have a material adverse effect on our fifedrtondition, results of operations, busir
and prospects.




Our Results Could Be Harmed If We Have To Complth Wiew Environmental Regulation©ur operations create so
environmentally sensitive waste that may increasthé future depending on the nature of our manufey operations. The general issu
the disposal of hazardous waste has received siogeattention from China’national and local governments and foreign gawerts an
agencies and has been subject to increasing regul@ur business and operating results could bena#ly and adversely affected if we w
to increase expenditures to comply with any newirenmental regulations affecting our operations.

Enforcement of the Labor Contract Law, Minimum Whgeeases and Future Changes In The Labor LawSHima May Result In
Continued Increase In Labor Cost3n June 29, 2007, the Standing Committee of théoNalt Peoples Congress of China enacted the L
Contract Law, which became effective on Januar2d08. The Labor Contract Law introduces specifiovigions related to fixeterr
employment contracts, paitne employment, probation, consultation with labafon and employee assemblies, employment withoutitter
contract, dismissal of employees, severance ani@ctivk bargaining, which together represent enbdnenforcement of labor laws ¢
regulations. According to the Labor Contract Law,employer is obliged to sign an unlimiteztm labor contract with any employee who
worked for the employer for 10 consecutive yearsther, if an employee requests or agrees to remdixedterm labor contract that
already been entered into twice consecutively réfselting contract must have an unlimited termhveiértain exceptions. The employer n
also pay severance to an employee in nearly alimees where a labor contract, including a contrattt an unlimited term, is terminated
expires. In addition, the government has continteethtroduce various new laboelated regulations after the Labor Contract Lawnoi¢
other things, new annual leave requirements martlateannual leave ranging from five to 15 dayavailable to nearly all employees
further require that the employer compensate arl@rep for any annual leave days the employee iblarta take in the amount of three tir
his daily salary, subject to certain exceptionsadiition, as the interpretation and implementatibthese new regulations are still evolving,
cannot assure you that our employment practicesticor will not, violate the Labor Contract Lawdaother laborelated regulat|ons Betwe
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2008 and 201Z%xperienced an increase in the cost of labor caligate increase in the minimum hot
rate. In accordance with the new minimum wage gethb local authorities, we increased the minimuagevfor labor from RMB 1,100 (
approximately $162) per month to RMB 1,320 (or agpmately $206) per month beginning April 1, 20The minimum wage was increa:
to RMB 1,500 (or approximately $238) per month begig February 1, 2012. We believe that increasédrl costs in China will have
significant effect on our total production costslaasults of operations and that we will not beeablcontinue to increase our production a
manufacturing facility without substantially incegiag our norproduction salaries and related costs. This inereasminimum wage wi
increase our labor costs by 14%, or approximat&§8$000, annually. If we are subject to severe iesaor incur significant liabilities
connection with the enforcement of the Labor Carittaw, disputes or investigations, our business rasults of operations may be adver
affected. Any future changes in the labor lawshie PRC could result in our having to pay incredabdr costs. There can be no assuranc:
the labor laws will not change, which may have aamal adverse effect upon our business and oultsesf operations.

If We Were To Lose Our Existing Banking Facili@sThose Facilities Were Substantially Decreased_€ss Favorable Terms Wi
Imposed Upon Us, The Company Could Be Materiallg Adversely AffectedWe maintain a banking facility with Hang Seng Bdriknited,
which is subject to renewal on an annual baals. use this banking facility to fund our workingpdtal requirements. In recent months,
credit markets in Hong Kong and throughout the ddrave tightened and experienced extraordinarytilibfaand uncertainty. We have h
discussions with our bank and believe that thelal#ity of our banking facility will continue oretms that are acceptable to us. However
result of changes in the capital or other legaliregnents applicable to Hang Seng Bank Limibedf our financial position and operations w
to deteriorate further, our costs of borrowing comlcrease or the terms of our banking facility lddae changed so as to impact our liquidit
we are unable to obtain needed capital on termepéable to us, our business, financial conditiesutts of operations and cash flows coul
materially adversely affected.
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Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

We Depend Upon Our Largest Customers For A Sigmifi®ortion Of Our Sales Revenue, And We Cann&@d@&in That Sales ~
These Customers Will Continue. If Sales To Thes#o@ers Do Not Continue, Then Our Sales Will Dechmd Our Business Will
Negatively ImpactecTraditionally, we have relied upon two customers dosignificant portion of our sales. During thechl years end
March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, these two custoaersunted for approximately 66%, 74% and 80% afssakspectively. During the fis
year ended March 31, 2012, 66% of our sales weaestogle customer (60% during the fiscal year dridarch 31, 2011). We do not enter |
long-term contracts with our customers but manufactaseell upon purchase orders and therefore cannettaéncthat sales to these custor
will continue. The loss of any of our largest custrs would likely have a material negative impacoar sales revenue and our business.

Defects In Our Products Could Impair Our Ability Bell Our Products Or Could Result In Litigation dA®ther Significant Cos!
Detection of any significant defects in our produetay result in, among other things, delay in timesarket, loss of market acceptance
sales of our products, diversion of developmenbueses, injury to our reputation or increased wagracosts. Because our products
complex, they may contain defects that cannot lectled prior to shipment. These defects could hasmreputation, which could result
significant costs to us and could impair our apilid sell our products. The costs we may incur énrecting any product defects may
substantial and could decrease our profit margins.

Since certain of our products are used in appboatihat are integral to our customeygsinesses, errors, defects or other perforn
problems could result in financial or other damatgesur customers, which would likely result in adse effects upon our business with tl
customers. If we were involved in any product ligplitigation, even if it were unsuccessful, itowld be timeeonsuming and costly to defe
Further, our product liability insurance may notdskequate to cover claims.

Our Sales Through Retail Merchants Result In SealggnSusceptibility To A Downturn In The Retaddaomy And Sales Variani
Resulting From Retail Promotional ProgranMany of our other customers sell to retail merchaAtcordingly, these portions of our custo
base are susceptible to a further downturn in ¢f@lreconomy. A greater number of our sales ofescproducts occur between the montt
July and October in preparation for the Christmaliday. Throughout the remainder of the year, onadpcts do not appear to be subjec
significant seasonal variation. However, past spégterns may not be indicative of future perforoean

Our Customers Are Dependent On Shipping Companas Drelivery Of Our Products, And Interruptions Tdiing Coul
Materially And Adversely Affect Our Business Ande@ping ResultsTypically, we sell our products either F.O.B. HoKgng or Yantial
(Shenzhen), and our customers are responsiblehfortransportation of products from Hong Kong or tam (Shenzhen) to their fir
destinations. Our customers rely on a variety afiess for product transportation through variousrld ports. A work stoppage, strike
shutdown of one or more major ports or airportsid¢easult in shipping delays materially and advirsdfecting our customers, which in ti
could have a material adverse effect on our busiaed operating results. Similarly, an increaskdight surcharges due to rising fuel cost
general price increases could materially and agWeedfect our business and operating results.

Customer Order Estimates May Not Be Indicative @Al Future SalesSome of our customers have provided us with fotsoai
their requirements for our products over a peribtime. We make many management decisions basdlese customer estimates, incluc
purchasing materials, hiring personnel and othettersathat may increase our production capacity @wsds. If a customer reduces its or
from prior estimates after we have increased oodyetion capabilities and costs, this reduction mi@grease our net sales and we may n
able to reduce our costs to account for this rédméh customer orders. Many customers do not pl@vis with forecasts of their requirems
for our products. If those customers place sigaificorders, we may not be able to increase ourygtamh quickly enough to fulfill th
customers’ orders. The inability to fulfill customarders could damage our relationships with custsmand reduce our net sales.

Pressure By Our Customers To Reduce Prices AndeABoeLongferm Supply Arrangements May Cause Our Net SaleBr(fit
Margins To DeclineOur customers are under pressure to reduce pricbeeioproducts. Therefore, we expect to expemeincreasing presst
from our customers to reduce the prices of our peted Continuing pressure to reduce the price ofppoducts could have a material adv
effect upon our business and operating results. ddstomers frequently negotiate supply arrangemwitts us well in advance of placi
orders for delivery within a year, thereby requirims to commit to price reductions before we caerdegine if we can achieve the assumed
reductions. We believe we must reduce our manufiacficosts and obtain higher volume orders to ofteclining average sales pric
Further, if we are unable to offset declining ageraales prices, our gross profit margins will oheglwhich would have a material adve
effect upon our results of operations.
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We Depend Upon Our Key Personnel, And The Lossn@fk&y Personnel, Or Our Failure To Attract And &etkKey Personne
Could Adversely Affect Our Future Performance, udahg Product Development, Strategic Plans, Marigg#nd Other Objective3he loss ¢
failure to attract and retain key personnel coigaificantly impede our performance, including puoctildevelopment, strategic plans, marke
and other objectives. Our success depends to dastibs extent not only on the ability and expecderof our senior management,
particularly upon Anthony So, our Chairman of theaBl. We do not have key man life insurance on3dr. To the extent that the service
Mr. So would be unavailable to us, we would be neglito obtain another person to perform the dutlesSo otherwise would perform. \
may be unable to employ another qualified persdh thie appropriate background and expertise t@oepMr. So on terms suitable to us.

Certain Subsidiaries Of The Company Receivedg@ng Enquiries From The Local Tax Authorities DwyiThe Year. If Tt
Subsidiaries Were Finally Held Liable For Such Auuial Taxation, Our Consolidated Net Income An& Malue Of Your Investment Cao
Be Substantially ReduceDuring the fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 28id 2012, certain of our subsidiaries were, andimoa to be
subject to enquiries from the local tax authoritigpon the adoption of ASC 740 (formerly FIN 48jctounting for Uncertainty in Incor
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No.,1@® FIN 48, the Company recorded a provision of appnately $2,164,000 in relati
to uncertain tax positions as of April 1, 2007. Eesessment is subject to final determination byldhal tax authorities and may be diffe
from what we have recorded as a provision. As stidre can be no assurance that the inquiry willrasult in the imposition of additior
income tax expense on the Group, which could haweatgerial adverse effect upon the Group and itslte®f operations. According to 1
requirement of the local tax authorities, the Comyphas purchased tax reserve certificates for aqupiately $1,710,000 for the fiscal year:
review for the potential payment to the tax auttyori

Contractual Arrangements We Have Entered Into Amdsd\nd Our Subsidiaries May Be Subject To ScriBynyhe Respective 1
Authorities, And A Finding That Bonso And Its Sdiasies Owe Additional Taxes Could SubstantiallyliRee Our Consolidated Net Inco
And The Value Of Your InvestmeWe could face material and adverse tax consequehties respective tax authorities determine tina
contractual arrangements among our subsidiaries Bomso do not represent an arm’s length price adjdsa Bonsos, or any of it
subsidiaries’jncome in the form of a transfer pricing adjustmeBwnso did not consider it necessary to make taxigion in this respec
However, there can be no assurance that the asseisperformed by the local tax authorities willuks$n the same position. A transfer pric
adjustment could, among other things, result iacuction, for tax purposes, of expense deductiecsrded by Bonso or any of its subsidia
which could in turn increase its tax liabilities. &ddition, the tax authorities may impose latenpat fees and other penalties on our affili
entities for underpaid taxes. Our consolidated inebme may be materially and adversely affecteduif affiliated entities’tax liabilities
increase or if they are found to be subject to patgment fees or other penalties.

Increased Prices For Raw Materials May Have A Nagalmpact Upon UsDuring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, thetso
component parts increased due to the increasesiprtbe of oil used in the production of componesush as plastic resin, steel and other
materials. If oil prices continue to increase ia fhture, it will likely result in an increase ihe costs of components to us, as well as an irg
in our operating expenses, which may have a matatigerse effect upon our business and resultpefadions.

We May Face An Increased Shortage Of Factory Werk@uring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, weeermced labc
shortages for factory workers. During the fiscahlyended March 31, 2009, we reduced our numbeaaidfy workers due to the decreas
demand for our products. Further, we reduced duorlaequirements by subcontracting out some praglugirocesses during the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2009. During the fiscal year endadch 31, 2010, we increased the number of ouofgatorkers. During the fiscal ye:
ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, we again reducetutbuvorkforce in Shenzhen, PRC as we prepareaosit our operations to a new faci
in XinXing. See “Employees” under Item 6Directors, Senior Management and Employees beldwerd can be no assurance that we wil
experience an increased need for workers in Chinthe future or that we can adequately staff tretofg, including our new factory
XinXing. The inability to adequately staff our facy could have a material adverse impact on praoolictvhich could lead to delays
shipments or missed sales. In the event that we Halayed or lost sales, we may need to delivedgdy air at our cost to ensure that
products arrive on time, which would likely resiritan increase in air freight costs and vendorsfinad could result in missed sales, ar
which could have a material adverse effect uporbosiness and our results from operations.
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Recent Changes In The PRC’s Labor Law Could Pend@lanso If It Needs To Make Additional WorkforcduiRé&ons. In June 200
the National People’Congress of the PRC enacted new labor law leigislaalled the Labor Contract Law, which becanfective on Janua
1, 2008. It formalizes workergights concerning overtime hours, pensions, layo#isiployment contracts and the role of trade un
Considered as one of the strictest labor laws énvibrld, among other things, this new law requaesemployer to conclude an “opendet
employment contract” with any employee who eithas vorked for the employer for 10 years or moréas had two consecutive fixeerr
contracts. An “open-ended employment contréih effect a lifetime, permanent contract, whisherminable only in specified circumstan:
such as a material breach of the emplayeules and regulations, or for a serious derelictif duty. Under the new law, downsizing by 20¢
more of each individual entity may occur only undpecified circumstances, such as a restructummigniaken pursuant to ChisaEnterpris
Bankruptcy Law, or where a company suffers seridifficulties in production and/or business openasioAlso, if we lay off more than
employees at one time, we have to communicate tiwéHabor union of our Company and report to thetidit Labor Bureau. During the fisi
year ended March 31, 2012, we recognized a fughmrision for severance payment of $182,000 incgpation of reducing our full workfor:
in Shenzhen, PRC as we transition our operatiores new factory in Xinxing, and the accumulated jBimn was $841,000 as of March
2012 (2011: $659,000). This accrued severance payatlewance is reviewed every year. We may incuclmhigher costs under Chisdabo
laws if we are forced to downsize again, and adogig, this new labor law may exacerbate the adveffect of the economic environment
our financial results and financial condition.

We Face Increasing Competition In Our Industry Amaly Not Be Able To Successfully Compete With Ounp@titors.Our busines
is in an industry that is becoming increasingly petitive, and many of our competitors, both loaad @nternational, have substantially gre
technical, financial and marketing resources thanhave. As a result, we may be unable to competeessfully with these competitors. '
compete with scale manufacturers in the Far EastUnited States, and Europe. We believe that oncipal competitors in the scale marke
other original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) andgmal design manufacturer (“ODMthanufacturers, and all companies engaged i
branded, ODM and OEM business. The scale markegidy competitive, and we face pressures on pgieind lower margins, as evidencet
the decline in margins that we have experiencell wilr scale products. Lower margins may affectadility to cover our costs, which col
have a material negative impact on our operatioaiscair business.
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We Are Controlled By Our Management, Whose Intéviest Differ From Those Of The Other Shareholdé&s of June 30, 2012, M
Anthony So, our founder and Chairman, beneficiallns approximately 43.2% of the shares of our comstock, including shares underly
his outstanding options, or 40.9% of the issued @mndtanding shares of our common stock. Due tetioisk ownership, Mr. So may be i
position to elect the board of directors and, tfeeeg to control our business and affairs, inclgdaertain significant corporate actions suc
acquisitions, the sale or purchase of assets anigshance and sale of our securities. Mr. So neagblie to prevent or cause a change in cc
of the Company. We also may be prevented from iergténto transactions that could be beneficial sonithout Mr. So$ consent. The intert
of our largest shareholder may differ from theiiegts of other shareholders.

Due To Inherent Limitations, There Can Be No Assceal hat Our System Of Disclosure And Internal @isitAnd Procedures W
Be Successful In Preventing All Errors Or Fraud I®dnforming Management Of All Material Informatidm A Timely MannerOur disclosur
controls and internal controls and procedures nmypnevent all errors and all fraud. A control &8t no matter how wettonceived an
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absastirance that the objectives of the controkesysire met. Further, the design of a co
system reflects that there are resource constraintsthe benefits of controls must be consideetative to their costs. Because of the inhe
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidncontrols can provide absolute assurance thatoaltrol issues and instances of fraud, if
within the company have been or will be detectdoesE inherent limitations include the realitiest flui@gments in decisiomaking can b
faulty and that breakdowns can occur simply becafisgror or mistake. Additionally, controls can tiecumvented by the individual acts
some persons, by collusion of two or more peoplbyocircumvention of the internal control procedur&he design of any system of cont
also is based in part upon certain assumptionstabedikelihood of future events, and there cambessurance that any design will succe
achieving its stated goals under all potential ieittonditions; over time, a control may become @tpdite because of changes in conditior
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdores may deteriorate. Because of the inherentdiions in a coséffective control syster
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur aaylmot be detected.

Compliance Costs With The Securities Laws And Régos Pursuant To The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200RINgrease Our Costs
The Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 that became law in July 2002 rexpuired changes in some of our corporate govemasezurities disclosu
accounting and compliance practices. In responskeetosequirements of that act, the Securities axch&hge Commission and NASDAQ h
promulgated new rules on a variety of subjects. fl@nce with these rules, as well as with the Saeb®xley Act of 2002, including, but n
limited to, compliance with Section 404 that reggimanagement to assess the effectiveness ofdtaah control over financial reporting, |
increased our legal, financial and accounting ¢@std we expect the cost of compliance with these nules to be permanent. Further, the
rules may increase the expenses associated witthr@ator and officer liability insurance.

Our Operating Results And Stock Price Are Subjectide FluctuationsOur quarterly and annual operating results arectdteby |
wide variety of factors that could materially andivarsely affect net sales, gross profit and prbfiitg. This could result from any one o
combination of factors, many of which are beyond @antrol. Results of operations in any period $tiawt be considered indicative of res
to be expected in any future period, and fluctuettim operating results may also result in fludaret in the market price of our common stock.

Our Results Could Be Affected By Changes In Cuyrénechange Rate€hanges in currency rates involving the Hong Kordjdp ol
Chinese Renminbi could increase our expenses. §uhia fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 2011 &P 2our financial results we
affected by currency fluctuations, resulting inatdforeign exchange losses of approximately $522,8230,000 and $703,000, respecti
Generally, our revenues are collected in UnitedeSt®ollars. Our costs and expenses are paid itetli8tates Dollars, Hong Kong Doll
and Chinese Renminbi. We face a variety of risksoeigted with changes among the relative valuédhe$e currencies. Appreciation of
Chinese Renminbi against the Hong Kong Dollar dedWnited States Dollar would increase our expemngem translated into United Ste
Dollars and could materially and adversely affeat margins and results of operations. If the treh@hinese Renminbi appreciation contir
against the Hong Kong Dollar and the United St&telar, our operating costs will further increagedaur financial results will be advers
affected. In addition, a significant devaluationtiie Chinese Renminbi or Hong Kong Dollar could dhavmaterial adverse effect upon
results of operations. If we determined to pas® anir customers through price increases the effe@ticreases in the Chinese Renm
relative to the Hong Kong Dollar and the Unitedt&saDollar, it would make our products more expemngi global markets, such as the Un
States and the European Union. This could resuth@nloss of customers, who may seek, and be ablebtain, products and servi
comparable to those we offer in lowawst regions of the world. If we did not increase prices to pass on the effect of increases irCthiaes
Renminbi relative to the Hong Kong Dollar and theited States Dollar, our margins and profitabilitguld suffer.
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Protection And Infringement Of Intellectual PropetVe have no patents, licenses, franchises, concesseioroyalty agreements t
are material to our business. We have obtaineddemnark registration in Hong Kong for the marks ESiNand MODUS in connection w
certain electronic apparatus. Unauthorized partiag attempt to copy aspects of our products oretretks or to obtain and use informa
that we regard as proprietary. Policing unauthariase of our products is difficult. Our means aftpcting our proprietary rights may not
adequate. In addition, the laws of some foreigmudes do not protect our proprietary rights togasat an extent as do the laws of the Ui
States. Our failure to adequately protect our petgry rights may allow third parties to duplicader products or develop functione
equivalent or superior technology. In addition, campetitors may independently develop similar tetbgy or design around our propriet
intellectual property.

Further, we may be notified that we are infringiuqgon patents, trademarks, copyrights or otherlettlal property rights owned
other parties. In the event of an infringementralaive may be required to spend a significant amofimhoney to develop a ndnfringing
alternative or to obtain licenses. We may not lexassful in developing such an alternative or olitgi a license on reasonable terms, if a
Any litigation, even without merit, could result substantial costs and diversion of resources anttldhave a material adverse affect on
business and results of operations.

Cancellations Or Delays In Orders Could Materialynd Adversely Affect Our Gross Margins And Operatimcome.Sales to ot
OEM customers are primarily based on purchase srder receive from time to time rather than firmndderm purchase commitmer
Although it is our general practice to purchase raaterials only upon receiving a purchase ordercéostain customers we will occasioni
purchase raw materials based on such custondlisig forecasts. Further, during times of potahtiomponent shortages we have purchi
and may continue to purchase, raw materials andpooent parts in the expectation of receiving puseharders for products that use tt
components. In the event actual purchase orderdedaged, are not received or are cancelled, wddvexperience increased inventory le'
or possible write-downs of raw material inventdmgttcould materially and adversely affect our bestnand operating results.

We Generally Have No Written Agreements With Sergplfo Obtain Components, And Our Margins And OtregaResults Cou
Suffer From Increases In Component Pricé& are typically responsible for purchasing commtseised in manufacturing products for
customers. We generally do not have written agre¢sneith our suppliers of components. This typicaksults in our bearing the risk
component price increases because we may be ueaptecure the required materials at a price l@eelessary to generate anticipated ma
from the orders of our customers. Prices of comptnmay increase in the future for a variety osmres. Accordingly, additional increase
component prices could materially and adverselgcafdur gross margins and results of operations.

Certain Legal Consequences of Foreign Incorporatiomnd Operations

Judgments Against The Company And Management M&yjffiailt To Obtain Or EnforceWe are a holding corporation organize
an International Business Company under the lavwtkeBritish Virgin Islands (“BVI"),and our principal operating subsidiaries are o
under the laws of Hong Kong and the laws of the PRQr principal executive offices are located inngdkong and the PRC. Outside
United States, it may be difficult for investorsenforce judgments obtained against us in actioogdht in the United States, including acti
predicated upon the civil liability provisions ohlled States federal securities laws. In additionst of our officers and directors reside out
the United States, and the assets of these pesserigcated outside the United States. As a rasuftay not be possible for investors to ef
service of process within the United States up@sehpersons or to enforce against the Companyese thersons judgments predicated |
the liability provisions of United States federatarities laws. Our Hong Kong counsel and our 8hit/irgin Islands counsel have advised
there is substantial doubt as to the enforcealalifginst us or any of our directors or officer®iiginal actions or in actions for enforcemer
judgments of United States courts in claims fdpility based on the civil liability provisions ofrited States federal securities la
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Because We Are Incorporated In The British Virgstathds, You May Not Have The Same Protections AseBtiders Of U.¢
Corporations.We are organized under the laws of the British Mirtslands. Principles of law relating to matteffeeting the validity o
corporate procedures, the fiduciary duties of oanagement, directors and controlling shareholdedsthe rights of our shareholders di
from, and may not be as protective of shareholdsyshose that would apply if we were incorporated jurisdiction within the United Stat
Our directors have the power to take certain astioithout shareholder approval, including amending Memorandum or Articles
Association, which are the terms used in the Britrgin Islands for a corporatios’charter and bylaws, respectively, and approvartgi
fundamental corporate transactions, including raoizations, certain mergers or consolidations &edstle or transfer of assets. In addi
there is doubt that the courts of the British Mirgglands would enforce liabilities predicated updmited States federal securities laws.

Future Issuances Of Preference Shares Could Mdkgrind Adversely Affect The Holders Of Our Commsdrares Or Delay
Prevent A Change Of ContrcOur Memorandum and Articles of Association provitle ability to issue an aggregate of 10,000,000esha
preferred stock in four classes. While no prefesiedres are currently issued or outstanding, weissaye preferred shares in the future. Fu
issuance of preferred shares could materially averaely affect the rights of the holders of oumeoon shares, dilute the comn
shareholders’ holdings or delay or prevent a charfigentrol.

Our Shareholders Do Not Have The Same Protectiongnformation Generally Available To Shareholder$ @.S. Corporation
Because The Reporting Requirements For Foreignalilssuers Are More Limited Than Those Applicdldd?ublic Corporations Organiz
In The United State'We are a foreign private issuer within the mearihgules promulgated under the Securities Exchakgeof 1934 (th
“Exchange Act”).We are not subject to certain provisions of thelaxge Act applicable to United States public congsnncluding: the rule
under the Exchange Act requiring the filing witle tSBEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or currepbrts on Form &, the sections of tt
Exchange Act regulating the solicitation of proxiesnsents or authorizations in respect to a sgowdistered under the Exchange Act anc
sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiderdil® public reports of their stock ownership andding activities and establishing insi
liability for profits realized from any “short-swgri trading transaction (i.e., a purchase and saesale and purchase, of the isssequity
securities within six months or less). Because wee raot subject to these rules, our shareholdermareafforded the same protection:s
information generally available to investors in ficlscompanies organized in the United States.

Our Board’s Ability To Amend Our Charter WithoutaB&holder Approval Could Have Antiakeover Effects That Could Prever
Change In ControlAs permitted by the laws of the British Virgin Istds, our Memorandum and Articles of Association rhayamended |
our board of directors without shareholder approVais includes amendments to increase or reduceuwhorized capital stock. Our board’
ability to amend our charter documents without shalder approval could have the effect of delayitheterring or preventing a change
control of Bonso, including a tender offer to puask our common shares at a premium over the cunaniiet price.

We Have Not Paid Dividends Since 2007 And May Ngt Bividends In The FuturéVe have not paid dividends on our Comi
Stock since 2007, and we may not be able to dediaigends, or the board of directors may decidetaaeclare dividends, in the future.
will determine the amounts of any dividends whed #nthey are declared in the future at the timeleflaration.
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Item 4. Information on the Company
History and Development of the Company

Bonso Electronics International Inc. was formedAargust 8, 1988 as a limited liability Internatioralisiness Company under
laws of the British Virgin Islands under the nan@&otden Virtue Limited."On September 14, 1988, we changed our name to Blestronic:
International, Inc. We operate under the BVI Bus;n€ompanies Act.

Effective as of May 1, 2001 we acquired 100% of #wpiity of Korona Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KG,iritked liability
partnership registered in Germany (“KoronaRorona marketed consumer scale products througBowbpe to retail merchandisers
distributors. These products feature contemporasjghs using the latest materials and attractiekgming. Effective March 31, 2009, we s
assets of Korona to Beurer GmbH, including invee®raccounts receivable, toolings and intellecpraberty rights. Korona completed
liquidation in February 2012.

Effective as of August 1, 2002, we acquired 51%hef equity of Gram Precision Scales Inc. (“GramcRien”). Gram Precision
primarily engaged in the distribution and marketofgpocket scales in the United States, CanadaEamdpe. Effective November 1, 2008,
sold our 51% of the equity of Gram Precision to ofhadani, the founder of Gram Precision.

In April 2007, we formed a new wholly-owned subaigi Bonso USA, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Bokk®A”), to focus on th
sales of industrial scales in the U.S. market. Védrathe process of liquidating Bonso USA.

Our corporate administrative matters are conduthealigh our registered agent, HWR Services Limited). Box 71, Road Tow
Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Our principal exgove offices are located at Unit 1404, 14/F, Chélkng Centre, 9 Hillwood Roa
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Our telephone nanib (852) 2605-5822, our facsimile number is §85291-1724, our enail address |
info@bonso.com and our website is www.bonso.com.

Our principal capital expenditures on propertynpkand equipment over the last three years afoghtbelow:

2010 2011 2012

Property plant & equipment a1
land use rights $ 491,00( $ 1,397,001 $ 3,415,001

Our capital expenditures include constructiorpingress and the purchase of machinery used irptbéuction of certain of o
products.

In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land puwelsgreement with Xincheng Hiech Industrial Estate to acquire the land uset
of a piece of land consisting of 133,500 squaréensdor future expansion of the Company’s operatim XinXing. This new piece of land
more than triple the size of the land upon whica @ompany's existing facilities are located in Sthem, China. The land transfer \
completed in 2009. The first phase of constructibthe new manufacturing facility is expected tochenpleted by the end of 2012.

All of the foregoing capital expenditures were ficad principally from internally generated funds.

Business Overview

Bonso Electronics International Inc. designs, depg| produces and sells electronic semsmed and wireless products for pri
label original equipment manufacturers (individydlDEM” or, collectively, “OEM's"), original branananufacturers (individually “OBMr,
collectively, “OBM's”) and original design manufacgrs (individually “ODM” or, collectively, “ODM's}.
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Since 1989, we have manufactured all of our praircChina in order to take advantage of the loswarhead costs and competi
labor rates. Our factory is currently located ire@then, China, about 50 miles from Hong Kong. Térvenient location permits us to ea
manage manufacturing operations from Hong Kongfaantilitates transportation of our products out diiria through the ports of Hong Kc
and Yantian (Shenzhen)he first phase of construction of our new manufaocy facility in XinXing is expected to be compéelt by the end «
2012.

Products

Our sensobased scale products include bathroom, kitchen¢egfiewelry, laboratory, postal and industrial lesathat are used
consumer, commercial and industrial applicatidiiese products accounted for 88% of revenue fofiskal year ended March 31, 2010, ¢
for 2011 and 95% for 2012. We believe that our gidal scales will continue to be a larger portmour scales revenue as we are ab
secure orders from our major customers.

Our wireless telecommunications products includeahway radios and cordless telephones that are useshisumer and commer
applications. These products accounted for 11%ewénmue for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010,f@&®2011 and 0% for 2012. T
decrease in sales of telecommunications products geused by the continuation of the Companglecision to give up orders
telecommunications products with low profit margins

The Company has begun to produce certain elecpiatare products, including a bark control devideese products accounted
3% of revenue for the fiscal year ended March 81,222011: 0%).

We also receive revenue from certain customers tiier development and manufacture of tooling and mgldfor scales
telecommunication and pet electronics products.e@aly, these tools and moulds are used by ushfermanufacture of products. We ¢
generate some sales of scrap materials. Theseusvatcounted for approximately 1% of net saleshfeffiscal years ended March 31, 2(
2% for 2011 and 2% for 2012.

The following table sets forth the percentage dfsades for each of the product lines mentionedalior the fiscal years ended Ma
31, 2010, 2011, and 2012:

Year ended March 3:

Product Line 201C 2011 201z
Scales 88% 91% 95%
Telecommunication Produc 11% 7% 0%
Electronic Pet Products 0% 0% 3%
Others 1% 2% 2%
Total 100% 10C% 10C%

Business Strategy

We believe that our future growth depends upon ahility to strengthen our customer base by enhgneind diversifying ot
products, increasing the number of customers apdreding into additional markets while maintainingircreasing sales of our product:
existing customers. Our future growth and our gbtlb become profitable are also dependent uporability to control production costs &
increase production capacity. Our strategy to aghibese goals is as follows:

Product Enhancement And DiversificatioiWe continually seek to improve and enhance ourtiegioroducts in order to provide
longer product lifeeycle and to meet increasing customer demandsduitianal features. Our research and developmexit ate currentl
working on a variety of projects to enhance ouseéng scale products and in the postal scale/mata. Further, we are developing cel
electrical pet care products. See “Product ReseardiDevelopment” and “Competition” below.
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Maintaining And Expanding Business Relations Wikistthg CustomersWe promote relationships with our significant curséo:
through regular communication, including visitingr@ain of our customers in their home countries @naviding direct access to ¢
manufacturing and quality control personnel. Thisess, together with our concern for quality, lessiited in a relatively low level of defect
products. Moreover, we believe that our emphasismely delivery, good service and low cost hastdbated, and will continue to contribu
to good relations with our customers and increawe@rs. Further, we solicit suggestions from owtamers for product enhancement
when feasible, plan to develop and incorporatestitancements suggested by our customers into odugts.

Controlling Production CostsIn 1989, recognizing that labor cost is a magmtdr permitting effective competition in the comm
electronic products industry, we relocated all of manufacturing operations to China to take adgatof the large available pool of lower-
cost manufacturing labor. We located our manufagufacilities within 50 miles of Hong Kong in ondéo facilitate transportation of ¢
products to markets outside of China while benggifirom the advantages associated with manufactimirChina and in th&henzhen Spec
Economy Zone.

We are actively seeking to control production cdstssuch means as redesigning our existing prodoatsder to decrease mate
and labor costs, controlling the number of our ewypés, increasing the efficiency of workers by j@img regular training and tools &
redesigning the flow of our production lines.

Increasing Production Capacityln November 2006, Bonso entered into a land mselagreement to acquire 133,500 square r
of land use right for future expansion in XinXir@hina. The construction of the new manufacturimglity began during the fiscal year en
March 31, 2010 and the first phaseexpected to be completed by the end of 2012intémd to carefully monitor our capacity needs &
expand capacity as necessary.

Customers and Marketing
We sell our products primarily in the United Stadesl Europe. Customers for our products are priyn@EM's, OBM's and ODM'
which market the products under their own brandegriVe continue to market our products to OEM’'sMXBand ODM’s at trade shows a

via e-mail, our website and facsimile.

Net export sales to customers by geographic anesisted of the following for each of the three weanded March 31, 2010, 2011

2012.
Year ended March 31:
2010 2011 2012
$in $in $in

thousand % thousand % thousand %
United States of America 19,79¢ 69 18,89: 67 19,94( 75
Germany 3,92¢ 14 5,557 2C 4,98¢ 18
Other European
Countries 68E 3 1,011 3 77C 3
Asia and Others 4,13¢ 14 2,92¢ 1C 987 4
Total 28,54 10C 28,38’ 10C 26,68: 10C

We maintain a marketing and sales team of eighplpe@dlso, our experienced engineering teams wandctly with our customers
develop and tailor our products to meet the custehspecific needs. We market our products primaritptigh a combination of direct cont
by our experienced iheuse technical sales staff and our sales repesarg and through the use of direct mail catalegaled produ
literature. During the fiscal years ended March 3110, 2011 and 2012, we recorded total commisgayments of approximately $42,0
$3,000 and $4,000, respectively. In addition, oarkating teams contact existing and potential austs by telephone, mail and facsimile
in person.
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Our major sensor-based electronic scale produst®eiers and their percentage of sales for the tiriee fiscal years are below:

Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31:

Electronics Sensor Customer: 2010 2011 2012
Sunbeam Products, Inc. 57% 60% 66%
Kern + Sohn GMBH 9% 14% 14%

Component Parts and Suppliers

We purchase over 1,000 different component paots fmore than 100 major suppliers and are not depgngon any single suppl
for key components. We purchase components foprmgucts primarily from suppliers in Japan, Taiwdauth Korea, Hong Kong and China.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, th&tscof component parts increased due to the inerigathe price of oil used in t
production of components such as plastic resie) sted other raw materials. Further, we believé tbats of component parts increased dt
this time period due to an increase in worldwidmded for electronic components such as those st iproduction of our products. Dur
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2010e tlvere no significant changes to the price ofstéel or other raw materials and compo
part prices stabilized. However, the price of aidaother raw materials increased during the fisesrs ended March 31, 2011 and 2
resulting in an increase of our component partgsiidVe have taken steps to reduce our exposureytdnability to obtain components
forecasting with an increased buffer rate and paorders for components earlier and allowing émger delivery lead times. Because of t
actions, we do not expect to experience any ditfjda obtaining needed component parts for oudpnats.

Quality Control

We have received ISO 9001:2000 certification frorat Dorske Veritas Certification B.V., the Nethedan The 1SO 9001:20!
certification was awarded to our subsidiary, Boidectronics Limited and to Bonso Electronics Lirdite subsidiary Bonso Electron
(Shenzhen) Company Limited. Further, we have reckilL 9000 certification for our telecommunicatiom®ducts. We have also recei
certification according to the Environmental Managat Standards of 1ISO 14001:2004, the Occupatibtealth and Safety Managem
Standard of OHSAS 18001 and management systemddical devices of 1ISO13485:2003.

ISO 9001 is one of the ISO 9000 series of qualstesn standards developed by the International idzgion for Standardization
worldwide federation of national standards bodi© 9001 provides a model for quality assurance @mntinuous improvement) in prod
development, manufacturing, installation and séngi¢hat focuses on meeting customer requirem@&ims. TL 9000 standard was develope:
the Quality Excellence for Suppliers of Telecomnoatipns (QUEST) Leadership Forum. The TL 9000 fieation process was develoy
exclusively to address the quality of products sexvices provided by suppliers to the telecommuizica industry.
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By integrating the Occupational Health and Safetgnklgement Standard of OHSAS 18001 into our quality environment
systems, we have created a total Integrated Managie8ystem (IMS) Quality, Environment and Health and Safety by canirtgj ISO9001
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 into one Quality/EnvirentfHealth and Safety registration.

ISO 13485 certification ensures that we have impleied and maintained a quality system for the deasigl manufacture of medi
devices and allows us to develop and manufactiesasal effective medical devices should we choosiotso in the future.

The European Union has enacted the Restrictiomefuse of Certain Hazardous Substances in Elekaiwh Electronic Equipme
Directive (“RoHS").RoHS prohibits the use of certain substances, dietulead, in certain products. We believe thataneein compliance wi
ROHS and have a supply of compliant components Soppliers.

The Company provides to certain customers an awditione to two percent of certain products ordémeéeu of a warranty, whic
are recognized as cost of sales when these proagthipped to customers from our facility. Initidd, certain products sold by the Comp
are subject to a limited product quality warrantj)e Company accrues for estimated incurred butamtified quality issues based uj
historical activity and known quality issues ifas$ is probable and can be reasonably estimatedst@hdard limited warranty period is on
three years. Quality returns, refunds, rebatesdismbunts are recorded net of sales if they arbimvihe warranty period. All sales are be
upon firm orders with fixed terms and conditionshiethh generally cannot be modified. Historically, wave not experienced mate
differences between our estimated amounts of quadiurns, refunds, rebates and discounts anddhmlaresults. In all contracts, there is
price protection or similar privilege in relatiom the sale of goods.

Patents, Licenses, Trademarks, Franchises, Concemss and Royalty Agreements

We have obtained a trademark registration in Hoogdand China for the marks BONSO and MODUS in ection with certai
electronic apparatus.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark aade secret laws, employee and third party disclosure agreements and o
intellectual property protection methods to protaat proprietary rights. There can be no assurématethird parties will not assert infringem
or other claims against us with respect to anytiegsor future products. We cannot assure you libahses would be available if any of
technology was successfully challenged by a thadyp or if it became desirable to use any thirdypéechnology to enhance the Company’
products. Litigation to protect our proprietaryanhation or to determine the validity of any thjpdrty claims could result in a significi
expense to us and divert the efforts of our tecirdod management personnel, whether or not stightion is determined in our favor.

While we have no knowledge that we are infringimpgm the proprietary rights of any third party, thean be no assurance that ¢
claims will not be asserted in the future with mdpto existing or future products. Any such asserby a third party could require us to
royalties, to participate in costly litigation am@éfend licensees in any such suit pursuant to imifesation agreements, or to refrain fr
selling an alleged infringing product or service.

Product Research and Development

The major responsibility of the product design,esesh and development personnel is to develop andupe designs to t
satisfaction of, and in accordance with, the sjeatibns provided by the OEM's, OBM's and ODM's. Wétieve our engineering and proc
development capabilities are important to the fitsmccess of our business. As an ODM, we take fegimns that are provided to us by
customer and design a product to meet those spatdifins. Some of our product design, research avelopment activities are custor
funded and are under agreements with specific met®for specific products. To reduce costs, walgonour research and development a
facilities in China. We principally employ Chinesagineers and technicians at costs that are stiadtiatower than those that would
required in Hong Kong. At March 31, 2012, we empldy24 individuals in Hong Kong and China for ougieeering staff, who are at varic
times engaged in research and development. Ther megponsibility of the product design and reseaanl development personnel is
develop and produce designs of scales productsetsatisfaction of, and in accordance with, theci§igations provided by the ODM's a
OEM's. We anticipate hiring additional research dedelopment personnel to meet the increased defoasdale products.
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Competition

The manufacture and sale of electronic sehssed and wireless products is highly competit@@mpetition is primarily based up
unit price, product quality, reliability, productdtures and management’s reputation for integhitgordingly, reliance is placed on rese:
and development of new products, line extensiorts tachnological, quality and other continuous paidmprovement. There can be
assurance that we will enjoy the same degree ofesscin these efforts in the future. Research aldpment expenses aggreg
approximately $580,000 during the fiscal year entfedch 31, 2010, $334,000 during the fiscal yeateehMarch 31, 2011 and $312,
during fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Seasonality

Generally, the first calendar quarter of each yeaypically the slowest sales period because camufacturing facilities in China ¢
closed for two weeks for the Chinese New Year laglgdto permit employees to travel to their homeShima. In addition, sales during the 1
calendar quarter of scales products usually difpiohg the increase in sales during the Christnesssen. A greater number of our sale
scales products occur between the months of Septeartl November for shipment in preparation for @meistmas holiday. Throughout
remainder of the year, our products do not appedret subject to significant seasonal variation. Eesv, past sales patterns may nc
indicative of future performance.

Transportation

Typically, we sell products either F.O.B. Hong KomgYantian (Shenzhen), which means that our custsrare responsible for
transportation of finished products from Hong Kargyantian (Shenzhen) to their final destinatiorafisportation of components and finis
products to and from the point of shipment is luckr To date, we have not been materially affebiyedny transportation problems. Howe
transportation difficulties affecting air cargoshipping, such as an extended closure of portstlagérially disrupts the flow of our customers’
products into the United States, could materiatigl adversely affect our sales and margins if, eesalt, our customers delay or cancel or
or seek concessions to offset expediting chargasititurred pending resolution of the problems Taputhe port closures.

Government Regulation

We are subject to comprehensive and changing foréégleral, provincial, state and local environraéneéquirements, including thc
governing discharges to the air and water, the lmendind disposal of solid and hazardous waste thedremediation of contaminati
associated with releases of hazardous substanaebeli¢ve that we are in compliance with curreniremmental requirements. Neverthels
we use hazardous substances in our operationgsulthe case with manufacturers in generalrélease of hazardous substances occurs
from our properties we may be held liable and maydnuired to pay the cost of remediation. The arhofi any resulting liability could |
material.

Foreign Operations

A significant amount of our products are manufaatuat our factory located in China. While China hasn granted permanent n
favored nation trade status in the United Statesuthh its entry into the World Trade Organizatioontroversies between the United States
China may arise that threaten the status quo imgltrade between the United States and China.€lheatroversies could materially ¢
adversely affect our business by, among other thigusing our products in the United States tmimecmore expensive, resulting i
reduction in the demand for our products by custsrirethe United States.

22




Sovereignty over Hong Kong reverted to China ory Jul1997. The 1984 SinBritish Joint Declaration, the 1990 Basic Law ofrig
Kong, the 1992 United Statétong Kong Policy Act and other agreements providmes indication of the business climate we believ
continue to exist in Hong Kong. Hong Kong remainSgecial Administrative Region (“SAR™®f China, with certain autonomies from
Chinese government. Hong Kong is a full membethef\World Trade Organization. It has separate custemitory from China, with separ:
tariff rates and export control procedures. It haeparate intellectual property registration systehe Hong Kong Dollar is legal tender in
SAR, freely convertible and not subject to foremmrency exchange controls by China. The SAR gawent has sole responsibility for
policies, though the Chinese government must agptioe SARS budgets. Notwithstanding the provisions of thiesernational agreements,
cannot be assured of the continued stability oitipal, legal, economic or other conditions in Hdkgng. No treaty exists between Hong K
and the United States providing for the reciproeaforcement of foreign judgments. Accordingly, Hokigng courts might not enfor
judgments predicated on the federal securities lafvihe United States, whether arising from actibngught in the United States or
permitted, in Hong Kong.

Organizational Structure

We have two wholly-owned Hong Kong subsidiariesn8o Electronics Limited (“BEL"and Bonso Advanced Technology Limi
(“BATL"). Both BEL and BATL were organized under the lawdHoing Kong and are responsible for the design, dgwveént, manufactu
and sale of our products.

BEL has one active Hong Kong subsidiary, Bonso $twent Limited (“BIL"). BIL was organized under the laws of Hong Kong
has been used to acquire and hold our investmepepies in Hong Kong and China.

BEL also has one active PRC subsidiary, Bonso Eleits (Shenzhen) Company Limited, which is orgedinnder the laws of t
PRC and is used to manufacture our products.

BATL has one active PRC subsidiary, Bonso Advaribechnology (Xinxing) Company Limited, which is orgzed under the laws
the PRC and is used to acquire and hold our newsfaeturing facility that is being constructed imnXiing, China.

We also have another wholly-owned British Virgifateds subsidiary, Modus Enterprise International In
As of March 31, 2009, Modus Enterprise Internatidna. owned 100% of Korona. Korona was engagemhénketing, distributing ar

retailing consumer bathroom and kitchen scale prtsdthroughout Europe. Effective March 31, 2009, seél certain assets of Korone
Beurer GmbH, and Korona has completed its liquateturing the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Effective November 1, 2008, we sold our 51% of dogiity of Gram Precision to Mohan Thadani, the fimmof Gram Precisio
Gram Precision was primarily engaged in the diatitm and marketing of pocket and industrial scalebe United States, Canada and Eur

In April 2007, we formed a whollpwned subsidiary, Bonso USA, a Nevada corporatida.are in the process of dissolving Bc
USA.

Property, Plant and Equipment

British Virgin Islands

Our corporate administrative offices are locatedCeagmuir Chambers, Road Town, Tortola, BritishgiirIslands and corpor:
administrative matters are conducted through ogistered agent, HWR Services Limited, located &t Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, Briti

Virgin Islands.
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Hong Kong

We own a residential property in Hong Kong, whisHdcated at Savanna Garden, House No. 27, Tal@a,Territories, Hong Kon
House No. 27 consists of approximately 2,475 sqteseeplus a 177 square foot terrace and a 2,308redfoot garden area. The use of Hi
No. 27 is provided as quarters to Mr. Anthony ®e, €hairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Camp

China

Our existing factory in China is located at Shemeimethe DaYang Synthetical Development Distritbse to the border between He
Kong and China. This factory consists of four fagtbuildings, which contain approximately 276,0@fuare feet, two workergiormitories
containing approximately 103,000 square feet, demamand recreation center of approximately 26%fd@re feet, an office building, consis
of approximately 26,000 square feet, and two staffrters for our supervisory employees, consistingpproximately 34,000 square feet, f
total of approximately 465,000 square feet. All tok facilities noted above are wholywned, except for two factory buildings w
approximately 90,000 square feet.

We also own one residential property in Shenzhdrichvis located at Lakeview Mansion, ZC, Hujinju Building No. 63, Xine
Road, Boacheng Baoan Shenzhen, China. It condisgpmyoximately 1,591 square feet and is utilizgdooir directors when they requ
accommodations in China.

We also own two office units in Beijing, namely tinil2 and 13 on the third floor, Block A of SunghiPlaza in Beijing, China. Ul
12 consists of 1,102 square feet and Unit 13 ctmeis 1,860 square feet. One Unit is rented to maffiliated third party for an aggreg
monthly rental of approximately RMB 15,000, or appmately $2,000, while the other unit is rentecatmther unaffiliated third party for
aggregate monthly rental of approximately RMB 8,00@pproximately $1,000.

In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land pwehayreement with Xincheng Hiech Industrial Estate to acquire the land
right of a piece of land of 133,500 square mefersfuture expansion of the Company’s operationsXinXing. The land transfer w.

completed in 2009. During the fiscal year endeddia881, 2010, the first phase of construction ofrtee manufacturing facilities commenc
and the construction is expected to be complet@DirP.

Adequacy of Facilities

We believe the manufacturing complex will be adégdiar our reasonably foreseeable needs.
Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable to Bonso.
Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospest

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with Item 3. — Key InformationSelected Financial Data and
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @iolased Financial Statements included elsewhetbignAnnual Report.

Overview

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, then@any experienced decreased revenues. Our ovaladl dropped due to low
demand for our products as a result of the globahemic instability.
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We derive our revenues principally from the sals@fsomased scales manufactured in China, which repr&&@ntof total sales fi
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012. As mentidnetem 3. — Key Information Risk Factors, we are dependent upon a limited nurol
major customers for a significant portion of ouvarues. Our revenues and business operation ajecst fluctuation if there is a loss
orders from any of our largest customers. Furtties, pricing of our scale products is becoming iasiegly competitive, especially to «
customers in the United States and Germany, whtiibated approximately 93% of our revenue during filscal year ended March 31, 2012.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, nkisskom continuing operations were approximate?,$43,000, and net loss v
approximately $658,000. During the fiscal year ehtiarch 31, 2011, net sales from continuing operatiwere approximately $28,387,C
and net loss was approximately $1,560,000. Durimg fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, net sales foomtinuing operations we
approximately $26,682,000, and net loss was apprataly $902,000.

Costs are increasing in China, and our labor aegiesented approximately 17.8% of our total préidaccosts in the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2012, compared to 16.8% in the fiscalr ysaed March 31, 2011. There was no change inminémum wage set by the PI
government during the fiscal year ended March ®1,02 as compared to the fiscal year ended Marct2309. In accordance with the r
minimum wage set by the local authorities in Mayt@0we increased the minimum wage for labor fromBR800 (or approximately $132) |
month to RMB 1,100 (or approximately $162) per nobeginning July 1, 2010. The minimum wage waseaased to RMB 1,320 (
approximately $206) per month beginning April 1,120and was later increased to RMB 1,500 (or apprately $238) per month beginni
February 1, 2012. We believe that increased labgtscin China will have a significant effect on datal production costs and results
operations and that we will not be able to contituencrease our production at our manufacturirgjifg without substantially increasing ¢
nonfproduction salaries and related costs. This ineréasninimum wage will increase our labor costsld#, or approximately $558,0(
annually. There can be no assurance that labos eaifit not further increase or that any additiomatrease in labor costs will not hav
material adverse effect upon our results of openati

We have not experienced significant difficultiesoitaining raw materials for our products, and ngamaent does not anticipate |
such difficulties in the foreseeable future. Pricésaw materials increased during the fiscal yearded March 31, 2011, but did not v
significantly during the fiscal year ended March 3012 and 2010. Prices of raw materials decredsedg the fiscal year ended March
2009 due to decreases in oil prices. There canob@ssurance that raw material costs will not flatguor that any additional increase in
material costs will not have a material adversecatftipon our results of operations.
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Operating Results

The following table sets forth selected income @ata percentage of net sales for the periodsatetic

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

Statement of Operations Date 2010 2011 2012
% % %

Net sales 100.( 100.( 100.(
Cost of sale: (83.0 (87.2) (85.9
Gross margin 17.C 12.¢ 14.¢
Selling expense (1.3 (0.9 (2.0
Salaries and related co: (9.0 (9.6) (9.5)
Research and development expenses (2.0 (1.2 (1.2
Administration and general expen: (7.0) (6.9) (9.9
Gain from liquidation of subsidiary — — 5.4
Loss from operation (2.3 (5.7 (2.0
Interest income 0.4 0.C 0.C
Interest expense (0.9 (0.2) (0.9
Foreign exchange loss (1.9 (0.5) (2.€)
Other income 2.1 1.3 0.t
Loss before income taxi (1.9 (5.0 (3.9
Income tax expenses (0.0 (0.0 (0.0
Loss from continuing operatiol (2.9 (5.0 (3.9)
Loss from discontinued operations (0.4) (0.5) —

Net loss (2.9 (5.5 (3.9

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 compared to fiscgéar ended March 31, 2011

Net Sales Our sales decreased approximately $1,705,000,086, from approximately $28,387,000 for the fisgahr ended Mar«
31, 2011 to approximately $26,682,000 for the figemar ended March 31, 2012. The decrease in sassprimarily the result of the ovel
decrease in demand for our products.

Gross Margin. Gross margin as a percentage of revenue increasagproximately 14.6% during the fiscal year ehtiéarch 31
2012, as compared to approximately 12.8% duringdfifoal year ended March 31, 2011. The higher gmaggin was primarily the result
reduced manufacturing cost due to increase inieffay.

Selling ExpensesSelling expenses increased by approximately $08fbm approximately $249,000 for the fiscal yeaded Marc
31, 2011 to approximately $267,000 for the fisadiyended March 31, 2012, or 7.2%. Local freigistzand related selling expenses incre
during the year due to increased shipping costagtine fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Salaries And Related CostSalaries and related costs decreased by apprehin®190,000, or 7.0%, from approximately $2,706
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 to appnately $2,526,000 for the fiscal year ended MarthZ912. The decrease in salaries
related costs was primarily the result of decredsticount in Hong Kong and China.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreaseckiapurady $22,000, or 6.6%, from approxima
$334,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@ihgproximately $312,000 for the fiscal year endiéaich 31, 2012. The decrease
research and development was primarily the re§uleoreased headcount of engineers during thel fiseat ended March 31, 2012.

Administration And General Expensésdministration and general expenses increased pyoapnately $533,000, or 27.2%, fr
approximately $1,959,000 for the fiscal year enidch 31, 2011 to approximately $2,492,000 forfikeal year ended March 31, 2012. "
increase was primarily the result of a payment mreximately $565,000 to the bank of Gram PrecisgsnGram Precision was un
liquidation, and the Company had a guarantee ton@eecisions bank to secure its banking facilities, which awnéd from the fiscal ye
ended March 31, 2008 when Gram Precision was adialsof the Company.

Gain from Liquidation of SubsidiarySince Korona was liquidated during the fiscalry@aded March 31, 2012, the Company recc
a gain of approximately $1,448,000.
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Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, lwem operations decreased by 86.0% from a lo¢
approximately $1,631,000 for the fiscal year entatch 31, 2011 to a loss of approximately $229,8f10the fiscal year ended March
2012.

Interest Income Interest income increased by $1,000, or 16.7%mfapproximately $6,000 for the fiscal year endeatd¥t 31, 201
to approximately $7,000 for the fiscal year endeardh 31, 2012. The increase was the result of &#se® deposits in savings accounts di
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Interest Expensednterest expenses increased approximately $31d@085.4%, from approximately $56,000 for the fisgahr ende
March 31, 2011 to approximately $87,000 for thedlsyear ended March 31, 2012. This increase wasapiy the result of an increase
utilization of the Company’s banking facilities thg the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Foreign Exchange Los$oreign exchange loss increased approximately $803,0r 440.8%, from approximately $130,000 for
fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 to approximat&@35000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 201is increase was primarily the resul
the appreciation of the Chinese Renminbi compaydle United States Dollar during the fiscal yeadedd March 31, 2012.

Other IncomeOther income decreased approximately $52,000, d3%28from approximately $184,000 for the fiscal yeade:
March 31, 2011 to approximately $132,000 for tieedl year ended March 31, 2012. The decrease viraarfly the result of the decrease
recoverable bad debt from the sale of Gram Precitiat was previously impaired. During the fiscahy ended March 31, 2011, the Comg
recovered $45,000, while the Company recoveredu$dg the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Income Tax Expensdncome tax expense was $2,000 during the fiseat ¥nded March 31, 2012, as compared to $0 dthinisca
year ended March 31, 2011. The income tax expanaedsult of gains in a subsidiary during thedligear ended March 31, 201

Loss from Discontinued Operatiorisoss from discontinued operations decreased appadely $129,000 to $0 during the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2012. The decrease was the réghk tiquidation of discontinued operations durthg fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Net Loss. As a result of the factors described above, ogt Hecreased from a loss of approximately $1,860{0r the fiscal yei
ended March 31, 2011 to a loss of approximately23d®D for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012gerehse in loss of approximai
$658,000, or 42.2%.

Foreign Currency Translation AdjustmentS8oreign currency translation adjustments, net of iacreased from approximat
$199,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@14 gjain of approximately $353,000 for the fisoahyended March 31, 2012, an increa:
approximately $154,000, or 77.4%. The increasedidor currency translation adjustment, net of taasyrimarily the result of fluctuation
the Chinese Renminbi against the United Statesaoll

Comprehensive LosAs a result of the factors described above, comgneive loss decreased from a loss of approxim&tey61,00
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 to a lokspproximately $549,000 for the fiscal year endédrch 31, 2012, a decrease
approximately $812,000, or 59.7%.

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 compared to fiscgéar ended March 31, 2010

Net Sales Our sales decreased approximately $156,000586,0rom approximately $28,543,000 for the fiscahyended March &
2010 to approximately $28,387,000 for the fiscadryended March 31, 2011. The decrease in saleprraarily the Company decision t
give up orders of telecommunications products wWatv profit margins. Sales of our scales and othesifess increased 3.2% fr
approximately $25,522,000 for the fiscal year enlfedch 31, 2010 to approximately $26,331,000 far fiscal year ended March 31, 2C
and sales for telecommunications products decre82e@P6 from approximately $3,022,000 for the fisgebr ended March 31, 2010
approximately $2,056,000 for the fiscal year endiéarch 31, 2011. The increase in sales for scalesadher business was the resul
increased demand for consumer electronics scaldupt®. The decrease in sales for telecommunicatposgucts was caused by
continuation of the Company’s decision to give ugens of telecommunications products with low grofargins.
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Gross Margin. Gross margin as a percentage of revenue decréasgaproximately 12.8% during the fiscal year ehdi#arch 31
2011, as compared to approximately 17.0% durinditloal year ended March 31, 2010. The lower groasgin was primarily the result of 1
increased prices of raw materials and increasabarlcosts mainly due to the increase in minimurgenia China.

Selling Expenses Selling expenses decreased by approximately $026from approximately $375,000 for the fiscal yeade:
March 31, 2010 to approximately $249,000 for ttsedi year ended March 31, 2011, or 33.6%. Locdglitecosts and related selling exper
decreased during the year due to consolidatiohipfreents made during the fiscal year ended Margt2G11 .

Salaries And Related CostSalaries and related costs increased by approesiyn®177,000, or 7.0%, from approximately $2,58@
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 to appnaely $2,716,000 for the fiscal year ended Marth2)11. The increase in salaries
related costs was primarily the result of increasadry for staff in China as a result of the mimimwage increase during the fiscal year e
March 31, 2011.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreasediapgiady $246,000, or 42.4%, from approxima
$580,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@i@&puproximately $334,000 for the fiscal year endiéaich 31, 2011. The decrease
research and development was primarily the regudt ieduction in the number of total engineers @ygll. Research and Development
percentage of revenue decreased from 2.0% durenfistal year ended March 31, 2010 to 1.2% dutirgfiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

Administration And General Expensesdministration and general expenses decreased pyodmately $52,000, or 2.6%, frc
approximately $2,011,000 for the fiscal year enidch 31, 2010 to approximately $1,959,000 forfteeal year ended March 31, 2011. "
reduction was the result of various cost reductiondertaken by the Company to cope with reducedmes. During the fiscal year en
March 31, 2011, the Company terminated the rentiéckdn Hong Kong and combined all the functionshathe existing factory in Shenzhen.

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, losm operations increased by 149.0% from a los
approximately $655,000 for the fiscal year endeddiia31, 2010 to a loss of approximately $1,631,&00the fiscal year ended March
2011.

Interest Income Interest income decreased by $97,000, or 94.28Mm fpproximately $103,000 for the fiscal year ehtiarch 31
2010 to approximately $6,000 for the fiscal yeademhMarch 31, 2011. The decrease was the restéivar deposits in savings accounts a
decrease in interest rates for interest bearinguats during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

Interest Expensednterest expenses decreased approximately $133008.8%, from approximately $69,000 for the fisgahr ende
March 31, 2010 to approximately $56,000 for thedisyear ended March 31, 2011. This decrease wamply the result of a decrease
utilization of the Company’s banking facilities éhg the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

Foreign Exchange Loss$oreign exchange loss decreased approximately @392or 75.1%, from approximately $522,000 for
fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 to approximat&lga000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 201is Tecrease was primarily the resu
the appreciation of the United States Dollar coragap the Chinese Renminbi during the fiscal yemted March 31, 2011, as compared
significant appreciation of the Chinese Renminkthi United States Dollar during the fiscal yeagehMarch 31, 2010.

Other IncomeOther income decreased approximately $436,000,08%, from approximately $620,000 for the fiscahyende
March 31, 2010 to approximately $184,000 for tlsedl year ended March 31, 2011. During the fiseary ended March 31, 2010 and 2
the Company recovered $210,000 and $45,000, régplyciof a bad debt from the sale of Gram Precislat was previously impaired.
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Income Tax Expensdncome tax expense was $9,000 during the fiseat gnded March 31, 2010, as compared to $0 dthen§isca
year ended March 31, 2011. The income tax expessedsed due to losses in each of our segmerttsefdiscal year ended March 31, 20

Loss from Discontinued Operatiorlsoss from discontinued operations increased apprataly $3,000 from $126,000 for the fic
year ended March 31, 2010 to approximately $129f@dhe fiscal year ended March 31, 2011. Thedase was the result of incres
liquidation costs recognized during the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2011.

Net Loss As a result of the factors described above, oet increased from a loss of approximately $658f00¢he fiscal year end:
March 31, 2010 to a loss of approximately $1,560 fa0 the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, anciased loss of approximately $902,00(
137.1%.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustmenireign currency translation adjustments, netxfitecreased from a loss of approxima
$152,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@18 ¢jain of approximately $199,000 for the fisoahyended March 31, 2011, an increa:
approximately $351,000, or 230.9%. The increaseeido currency translation adjustment, net of t@as primarily the result of fluctuation
the Chinese Renminbi against the United StatesaDoll

Comprehensive LossAs a result of the factors described above, ceimarsive loss increased from a loss of approxiyn&@10,00!
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 to a lossipproximately $1,361,000 for the fiscal year eshdiarch 31, 2011, an increase
approximately $551,000, or 68.0%.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation had an impact on our beass during the fiscal years ended March 31, 20t12812. The minimum wa
increased from RMB 900 (or approximately $132) pemth to RMB 1,100 (or approximately $162) per nmobeginning July 1, 2010. T
minimum wage increased to RMB 1,320 (or approxifye$206) per month beginning April 1, 2011, and Water increased to RMB 1,500
approximately $238) per month beginning FebruargQl,2 . As a result, we believe that inflation weilintinue to increase our operating c
and cost of raw materials and have a significamtaioh upon us in the future. We have generally kz#a to modify and improve our prod
designs so that we could either increase the pdtesr products or lower production costs in ortiekeep pace with inflation. Oil prices hi
been volatile in recent years. If oil prices in@@ait will likely result in an increase in the to$ components to us, as well as an increasel
operating expenses, which will have a material estveffect upon our business and results of operstiFurther, the increase in labor costs
operating costs in the PRC had a material impactusrprofitability.

Taxation

The companies comprising the Group are subjecxah an entity basis on income arising in, orvagtifrom, Hong Kong, and t
PRC. The current rate of taxation of the subsid@grating in Hong Kong is 16.5%. The Group is suibject to income taxes in the Bril
Virgin Islands.

The tax rates for our subsidiary in PRC were 22%0h0, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 and beyond.€ltseno tax payable in Ho
Kong on offshore profit or on dividends paid to BorElectronics Limited by its subsidiaries or tobysBonso Electronics Limited. Therefc
our overall effective tax rate may be lower thaatthf most United States corporations; however #dvantage could be materially
adversely affected by changes in the tax laws@#titish Virgin Islands, Hong Kong or China.

On March 16, 2007, the Chinese government enactadifeed enterprise income tax law, or “ElITyhich became effective .
January 1, 2008. Prior to the EIT, as a foreigres#ted enterprise, or “FIE|bcated in Shenzhen of the PRC, our PRC subsidianigoyed
national income tax rate of 15% and were exemptau the 3% local income tax. The preferential t@atment to our subsidiaries in the F
of qualifying for tax refunds as a result of reisting their profits earned in previous years in BHRC expired on January 1, 2008. Unde
EIT, apart from those qualified as higdeh enterprises, most domestic enterprises ansl WilEbe subject to a single PRC enterprise inc
tax rate of 25% in year 2012 and afterward.
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Efforts by the Chinese government to increase ¢éaemues could result in decisions or interpretatiohthe tax laws by the Chine
tax authorities that are unfavorable to us and Wwiricrease our future tax liabilities or deny oupected refunds. Changes in Chinese tax
or their interpretation or application may subjestto additional Chinese taxation in the future.

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding tsvexists between the United States and the Brifisgin Islands. Under curre
British Virgin Islands law, dividends, interest myalties paid by us to individuals are not subjediax as long as the recipient is not a res
of the British Virgin Islands. If we were to paydavidend, we would not be liable to withhold any,téut shareholders would receive g
dividends, irrespective of their residential orioaal status.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 281d 2012, certain of our subsidiaries were, andirtoa to be, subject to inquiri
from the local tax authorities. Upon the adoptidnASC 740 (formerly FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncaihty in Income Taxes —An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109tfe Company recorded a provision of approximatelyl§4,000 in relation to uncertain
positions as of April 1, 2007. The assessment ligesti to final determination by the local tax autties and may be different from what
have recorded as a provision. As such, there camlzssurance that the inquiry will not resultripbsing additional income tax expense ot
Group, which could have a material adverse effeonuthe Group and its results of operatighscording to the requirement from the local
authorities, the Company has purchased tax resmmtdicates for approximately $1,710,000 for thecél years in review, for the poten
payment to the tax authority.

Contractual arrangements we have entered into amengnd our subsidiaries in different locations rbaysubject to scrutiny |
respective tax authorities, and a finding agaihst€ompany and its subsidiaries may result in amfdit tax liabilities that could substantie
reduce our consolidated net income. We could faetenal and adverse tax consequences if respetiveuthorities determine that
contractual arrangements among our subsidiariesBam$o do not represent an arm’s length price afjdsaBonso’s or its subsidiaries’
income. Our consolidated net income may be matgaald adversely affected if our affiliated enttieax liabilities increase.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States resider citizen shareholder are treated as dividenwdme for United States fede
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not edigibl the 70% dividendseceived deduction allowed to United States corpmma or
dividends from a domestic corporation under Secfd8 of the United States Internal Revenue Codé&9®6, as amended (thénterna
Revenue Code"). Various Internal Revenue Code prow$ impose special taxes in certain circumstancesontnited States corporatic
and their shareholders. You are urged to consult {ax advisor with regard to such possibilitiesl gour own tax situation.

In addition to United States federal income taxatghareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We sell most of our products to international costes. Our principal export markets are North Aneeiimainly the United State
Europe (mainly Germany) and Asia. Other marketsodiner European countries (such as the United Kingg Australia and Africa. Sales
international customers are made directly by usuocustomers. We sell all of our products in Ushi§tates Dollars and pay for our mate
components principally in United States Dollars &ahg Kong Dollars. A very small portion of the cpaments used are paid for in Japa
Yen. Most factory expenses incurred are paid im€se Renminbi. Because the Hong Kong Dollar is eédg the United States Dollar, in
past our only material foreign exchange risk praslp arose from potential fluctuations in the ClsmdRenminbi and a devaluation in Un
States Dollars. For the reasons discussed in thegmphs below, management believes that it maypdssible that there will be so
fluctuation in the coming year. During the fiscaly ended March 31, 2012, we experienced a foigency loss of approximately $703,0
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A summary of our debts from our banking facilitiggized as at March 31, 2012 and 2011 which wdgesiied to foreign currency ri
is as follows:

March 31, 201 March 31, 201
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Hong Kong dollar: 1,33: 1,87(

The amount above is due within one year.

Fluctuations in the value of the Hong Kong Dollava not been significant since October 17, 198%nthe Hong Kong governm
tied the value of the Hong Kong Dollar to that loé tUnited States Dollar. However, there can bessorance that the value of the Hong K
Dollar will continue to be tied to that of the Uit States Dollar. China adopted a floating curresystem on January 1, 1994, unifying
market and official rates of foreign exchange. @hépproved current account convertibility of ther@se Renminbi on July 1, 1996, follov
by formal acceptance of the International MonetBaond’s Articles of Agreement on December 1, 1996. Theggilations eliminated tl
requirement for prior government approval to bugefgn exchange for ordinary trade transactionsighoapproval is still required to repatri
equity or debt, including interest thereon. Fron®4.Qntil July 2005, the Chinese Renminbi had reexhistable against the U.S. Dolla
approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.S. Dollar. On July 2@05, the Chinese currency regime was altereihkathe RMB to a “basket of currencies,”
which includes the United States Dollar, Euro, d&se Yen and Korean Wobdnder the rules, the RMB is allowed to move 0.3%gaotaily
basis against the United States Dolllte People's Bank of China, on May 21 2007, widehedRMB trading band from 0.3% daily moven
against the United States Dollar to 0.5@n June 20, 2010, the PBOC announced that the RR€&mment would further reform the R}
exchange rate regime and increase the flexibilftthe exchange rate. It is difficult to predict hdhis new policy may impact the RN\
exchange rate. As of July 10, 2012, the RMB waseglat 6.3649 per U.S. Dollar. There can be norassa that these currencies will ren
stable or will fluctuate to our benefit.

To manage our exposure to foreign currency andskation risks, we may purchase currency exchangeaia contracts, curren
options, or other derivative instruments, providedh instruments may be obtained at suitable prices

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our growth and cash needs to ptatearily from internally generated funds and batdbt. We do not use off-
balance sheet financing arrangements, such asitsetion of receivables or obtaining access toetsshrough special purpose entities
sources of liquidity. Our primary uses of cash hagen to fund expansions and upgrades of our metmiiag facilities.

Operating activities generated $474,000 of net ¢aslhe fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, as caethbéo $1,190,000 of net c:
used from operating activities during the fiscahlyended March 31, 2011. This decrease in the anudwash used by operating activities
primarily attributable to the increase in accoyrdagable and notes payable for the increased ordeesved as of March 31, 2012.

As of March 31, 2012, we had approximately $3,00@,th cash and cash equivalents, as compared 49H500 in cash and c:
equivalents as of March 31, 2011. Working capitdilarch 31, 2012 was approximately $2,914,000,cspared to $6,851,000 at March
2011. We believe there are no material restrictiimduding foreign exchange controls) on the &pidif our subsidiaries to transfer funds t
in the form of cash dividends, loans, advancesrodyrct/material purchases. We believe our workiagital is sufficient for our prese
requirements.
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As of March 31, 2012, we had approximately $2,08Q,0h net trade receivables, as compared to $10801as of March 31, 201
This increase of $770,000 was primarily attribuéatol increased sales close to the end of the fyszal compared to that of March 31, 2011.

As of March 31, 2012, we had approximately $4,106, inventories, as compared to $4,848,000 aMarfch 31, 2011. Th
decrease of $743,000 was primarily attributablestiuction of inventory in light of the lower salasiount in the fiscal year ended March

2012.

As of March 31, 2012, we had a total of approxirya$$,902,000 in notes payable and accounts payableompared to $4,062,(
as of March 31, 2011. The increase of $2,840,008 pvamarily attributable to the increased accoyggable and notes payable due tc
increase in material purchases as a result ofagetorders received as of March 31, 2012, compart of March 31, 2011.

As of March 31, 2012, we had in place general bapKacilities with one financial institution withneounts available aggregat
approximately $8,660,000 (2011: $8,554,000). Sadiiifies include the ability to obtain overdraftstters of credit, shoterm notes payab
factoring, short-term loans and lotgym loans. As of March 31, 2012, we had utilizegraximately $1,870,000 from these general bar
facilities. Interest on this indebtedness fluctsatdéth the prime rate and the Hong Kong InterbafleiCRate as set by the Hong Kong Ban
Association. The bank credit facilities are colfatzed by our bank guarantee. Our bank creditifexs are due for renewal annually. '
anticipate that the banking facilities will be reregl on substantially the same terms and our uiitiman the next year will remain at a sim
level as that in the current year. During the figesrs ended March 31, 2011 and 2012, we paidbadbapproximately $56,000 and $87,(
respectively, in interest on indebtedness for cauitig operations. During the fiscal year ended Ma&, 2011, one of the banking facili
was terminated and was not renewed, which resiritéte reduction of the available banking faciktie

Our current ratio decreased from 1.93 as of Marth2®11 to 1.31 as of March 31, 2012. Our quiclordecreased from 1.27 as
March 31, 2011 to 0.87 as of March 31, 2012.

Due to the new minimum wage set by the local autiesrin May 2010, we have increased the minimungevéor labor from RMI
900 (or approximately $132) per month to RMB 1,160 approximately $162) per month beginning Juh\2@10. The minimum wage w
increased to RMB 1,320 (or approximately $206) beiig April 1, 2011, and was later increased to RMB0O (or approximately $238) |
month beginning February 1, 2012. This increasaimimum wage will increase our labor costs by 14¥approximately $558,000, annually.

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, weeet we will need to expend approximately $757,680he construction of o
new facility in XinXing, China.

We believe that our cash flows from operations, cunrent cash balance and funds available undemmuking capital and crec
facilities will be sufficient to meet our workin@gpital needs and planned capital expenditurestf@aat the next 12 to 24 months. Howew:
decrease in the demand for our products or increaeer costs of goods sold or expenses may affectinternally generated funds, and
would further look to our banking facilities to mesir working capital demands.
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Commitments
The following table sets forth information with pegt to our commitments as of March 31, 2012:

Payments due by Perioc

Within 1 Within 1 to Within 3 to More than £

Total year 3 years 5 years years
$in $in $in $in $in
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
Notes payable and bank overdrdHs $ 1,87C $ 1,87C $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Operating lease $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Capital leases $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Construction in Xinxing $ 757 $ 757 % 0 3 0 3 0
Interest on capital leases $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Income tax liabilitie$? $ 259 $ 0 $ 2,598 $ 0 $ 0
Total $ 522: $ 26271 $ 259 % 0 $ 0

(1) Represents amounts due within one year unddoanking facilities agreement.

(2) Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted@A340. As a result of the adoption of ASC 740, @@mpany recognized an
approximately $1,170,000 increase in the liabifdy unrecognized tax benefits and penalties of axdprately $994,000, which were
accounted for as a reduction to the April 1, 20@lahce of retained earnings. The Company assesstakiposition during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2012 and concluded that the $ax liability was carried forward.

For a discussion of interest rates on our noteslgayand short-term loans, see Item 1Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosu
About Market Risk below.

Critical Accounting Policies

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagplur most critical accounting policies havegniicant impact on the resu
we report in our financial statements. The SEC defined the most critical accounting policies as tlnes that are most important to
portrayal of our financial condition and resultglaequire us to make our most difficult and subjeciudgments, often as a result of the net
make estimates of matters that are inherently tamiceBased on this definition, our most criticalipies include inventories, impairment, bri
name, trade receivables and deferred income taxes.

Below, we discuss these policies further, as wetha& estimates and judgments involved. We beliesethese other policies either
not generally require us to make estimates andmeags that are as difficult or as subjective, ds iess likely that they would have a mate
impact on our reported results of operations fgiven period. For a discussion of all our signifitaccounting policies, see footnote 1 tc
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orealizable value, with cost determined on a firstfirst-out basis. Net realizable va
is the price at which inventories can be sold ia tlormal course of business after allowing for ¢bets of completion and disposal.
Company continuously reviews slaweving and obsolete inventory and assesses anytiorye obsolescence based on inventory le
material composition and expected usage as ofititat

Revenue Recognition

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectability of the sales pigeeasonably assured. Revenue is recognized wtierand risk of loss transfers to
customer, which is generally when the product &vileg the ports of Hong Kong or Shenzhen as detgnay our customers. Shipping ct
billed to our customers are included within revenAgsociated costs are classified in cost of sales.

The Company provides to certain customers an awditione to two percent of certain products ordémeéeu of a warranty, whic
are recognized as cost of sales when these produetshipped to customers from our facilities. tidiion, certain products sold by
Company are subject to a limited product qualityramaty. The Company accrues for estimated incubigdunidentified quality issues ba:
upon historical activity and known quality issués iloss is probable and can be reasonably estim@itee standard limited warranty perio
one to three years. Quality returns, refunds, etbahd discounts are recorded net of sales if dhewithin the warranty period. All sales
based upon firm orders with fixed terms and cooddj which generally cannot be modified. Histoficalve have not experienced mate
differences between our estimated amounts of quadiurns, refunds, rebates and discounts anddhmlaresults. In all contracts, there is
price protection or similar privilege in relatiom the sale of goods.

Due to similar contractual terms, the Compansevenue recognition policies do not differ amatsgsignificant product lines (i.t
sensor based scales versus wireless productshammbavarious marketing venues used by the Comganydistributors and direct sales foi
and do not vary in different parts of the world.

Long-Lived Assets Including Goodwill and Other Acqured Intangible Assets

Long-ived assets held and used by the Group and iftengssets, excluding goodwill, are reviewed fopainment whenever evel
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyrgmount of such assets may not be recoverable.Group evaluates recoverability
assets to be held and used by comparing the cgrayitount of an asset to future net undiscounteld ffaws to be generated by the asse
such assets are considered to be impaired, thérmmgat loss is measured by the amount by whicle#lteying amount of the assets exceed
fair value of the assets calculated using a disimufuture cash flows analysis.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment reviethe evaluation of goodwill for impairment involvewo steps: (1) tt
identification of potential impairment by comparitige fair value of a reporting unit with its camgi amount, including goodwill, and (2)
measurement of the amount of goodwill loss by caingahe implied fair value of the reporting unaadwill with the carrying amount of tt
goodwill and recognizing a loss by the excess eflétter over the former. The Company measuresvédire based upon a discounted fu
cash flow analysis. No provision was made by theu@ron impairment of long lived assets, includirgdwill, and other acquired intangi
assets for the years ended March 31, 2012, 201 2@i@l
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Brand Name

Brand name acquired as part of the purchase okmdss is capitalized based on the estimated &hirevas at the date of acquisii
and amortized using the straidhite method over the related estimated usefuldifd5 years. Where an indication of impairment &sxighe
carrying amount of the brand name is assessed atidmdown to its recoverable amount.

Expected useful lives are reviewed at each balaheet date and, where these differ significantynfprevious estimates, amortiza
periods are changed accordingly. Where an indicadibimpairment exists, such as the downturn ofneatic inflow from the brand nan
changes in business plan and so on, the carryimguat® of brand name are assessed and written dowimeir recoverable amounts. ~
measurement of the fair value of brand name isestibp managemerst'assumptions regarding future estimated cash fldissount rates, e
Changes in these assumptions could significanfscathe recording of an impairment charge reldtethis asset. No provision was made
the Group on impairment of brand name for the yeaded March 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Trade Receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables toetftent that collection is considered to be doubfithis provision is primaril
determined from our monthly aging analysis. It alsquires judgment regarding the collectabilityceftain receivables, as certain receive
may be identified as collectible that are subsetiygemcollectible and which could result in a sulpsent writeeff of the related receivable
the statement of operations. Most of the Compatrgde receivables are generally unsecured, ekmephe customer with receivables cove
by credit insurance. To determine the necessity mfovision, the Company analyzes the age of tbeivables and the customegbility to pa
based on past payment history, financial statemantkvarious information of the customer. Any cheamg the collectability of accour
receivable that were not previously provided fouldcsignificantly change the calculation of sucbypsion and the results of our operations.

Income Taxes, Deferred Income Taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48, nawdified with ASC 740. ASC 740 prescribes a recagnitthreshold ar
measurement attributes for the financial statemecagnition and measurement of a tax position takeexpected to be taken in a tax ret
ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognitiassification, interest and penalties, accountinimterim periods, disclosure and transit
Only tax positions that meet the more-likely-thast-recognition threshold at the effective date hayecognized or continue to be recogn
upon adoption of ASC 740. The Company’s accourpiolicy is to treat interest and penalties as a aomept of income taxes.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statemenlated to income taxes are calculated using theciplies of ASC 740. ASC 7:
requires recognition of deferred tax assets artulliias for the expected future tax consequendesvents that have been included in
financial statements or tax returns. Under thishoet deferred tax assets and liabilities are deteythbased on the temporary differer
between the financial reporting basis and the t@asidhof assets and liabilities using enacted téasran effect for the year in which 1
differences are expected to reverse. Future taeflignsuch as net operating loss carry forwards, racognized as deferred tax as
Recognized deferred tax assets are reduced byiatieal allowance if, based on the weight of avddadvidence, it is more likely than not t
some portion or all of the deferred tax asset moli be realized.

Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, Etc

We believe that our engineering and product dewvety capabilities are important to the future sascef our business. We hi
successfully lowered the costs of our researchdawdlopment team by moving most research and dewaot activities to our facility
China and principally employing Chinese engineerd gechnicians at costs that are substantially iawan those that would be requiret
Hong Kong. Research and development costs are segen the financial period during which they areuirred.
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Trend Information

Although we are optimistic about our future in tiianufacture and sale of sendased scales products, we are dependent L
limited number of customers for a significant pantiof our revenues, and the loss of any of thestomers could have a material adverse ¢
upon us and our results of operations. As of M&th2012, our backlog of manufacturing orders wg30,000 as compared to $5,951,0C
of March 31, 2011. We expect that in the fiscalryerading March 31, 2013, the trend of sales froalescwill be more than that of the y
ended March 31, 2012.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current or future effectaur financia
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaoegxpenses, results of operations, liquidity,iteyexpenditures or capital resources tha
material to investors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The new accounting pronouncements in the UniteteSthat may be relevant to the Group are as fetlow

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*@mmprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation ofm@rehensiv
Income” (“ASU 2011-05"). This update amends ASC iEapR0, “Comprehensive Incoméd provide that total comprehensive income wil
reported in one continuous statement or two sepdratt consecutive statements of financial perfowaaRresentation of total comprehen
income in the statement of stockholders' equityherfootnotes will no longer be allowed. The cadtian of net income and basic and dilt
net income per share will not be affected. ASU 2004 is effective for fiscal years, and interim pels within those years, beginning ot
after December 15, 2011, which means that it véleffective for our fiscal year beginning April2012. Retrospective adoption is required
early adoption is permitted. We do not believe tddption of ASU 20105 will have a significant impact on our finangmdsition, results «
operations or cash flows.

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standaptidle No. 2012-02, “IntangiblesGeodwill and Other (Topic 350) Testi
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment’ASU 2012-02"), which affords an entity the option to first assgsslitative factors 1
determine whether the existence of events androstances indicates that it is more likely than that an indefinitdived intangible asset
impaired. If, after assessing the totality of egeahd circumstances, an entity concludes thatribismore likely than not that the indefinite-
lived intangible asset is impaired, then the entyot required to take further action. Howevéran entity concludes otherwise, then
required to determine the fair value of the indiédiived intangible asset and perform the quantitatimpairment test by comparing the
value with the carrying amount. The amendmentefeetive for annual and interim impairment testsfprmed for fiscal years beginning a
September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitteduiting for annual and interim impairment testsfpened as of a date before July 27, 2
if a public entitys financial statements for the most recent annugdterim period have not yet been issued. The Gowmmloes not believe tt
adoption of ASU 2012-02 will have a significant iagp on its financial position, results of operatiam cash flows.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors and executive officers &ied below:

Name Age Paosition with Bonso

Anthony So 69 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
Director, President and Treasu

Andrew So 26 Director, Chief Operating Officer

Woc-Ping Fox 63 Director

Kim Wah Chung 54 Director of Engineering and Research and Developmen
and Directol

Henry F. Schlueter 61 Director and Assistant Secretary

Albert So 34 Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
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ANTHONY SO is the founder of Bonso. He has been®@uairman of the Board of Directors since July 1988 was appointed as-
Chief Executive Officer and President on Novemb@r 2006. Mr. So received his BSE degree in civijieaering from National Taiw:
University in 1967 and a Masters degree in Busidedsinistration (“MBA”) from the Hong Kong campus of the University of Kulull,
England in 1994. Mr. So has been Chairman of thagHiong GO Association since 1986 and also sengel@airman of the Alum
Association of National Taiwan University for th89B-1994 academic years. Mr. So has served as a troftee Chinese University of Ho
Kong, New Asia College since 1994,

ANDREW SO joined the Company in August 2009 and besn a director since February 25, 2012. Mr. Gweatly holds th
position of Chief Operating Officer and looks aftte Companys daily operations. Mr. So graduated with digtorc in 2008 from th
University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor oin@oerce degree (BComm). From 2008 to 2009, pridvigeemployment with the Compa
Mr. So has worked as a Derivatives Analyst at Skteet Trust Company Canada, Toronto, Canada.

KIM WAH CHUNG has been a director since Septemieri®94. Mr. Chung has been employed by us sinB& &afd currently hol
the position of Director of Engineering and Reskaand Development. Mr. Chung is responsible forrafiearch projects and proc
development. Mr. Chung’ entire engineering career has been spent withrs®doand he has been involved in all of our majardpc
developments. Mr. Chung graduated with honors i8118om the Chinese University of Hong Kong wittBachelor of Science degree
electronics.

WOO-PING FOK was elected to our Board of Directors @pt8mber 21, 1994. Mr. Fok has practiced law indH&ong since 19¢
and is a Consultant with Messrs. C.K. Mok & Co. Fok’s major areas of practice include conveyancingak property law, corporations &
business law, commercial transactions and intevnatitrade with a special emphasis in China traadters. Mr. Fok was admitted to
Canadian Bar as a Barrister & Solicitor in Decemb@87 and was a partner in the law firm of Wod-&k, a Canadian law firm with its he
office in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. In 1991, MokRvas qualified to practice as a Solicitor of Ergl & Wales, a Solicitor of Hong Ko
and a Barrister & Solicitor of Australian Capitadrfitory.

HENRY F. SCHLUETER has been a director since Oat@1 and has been our Assistant Secretary sicteb€r 6, 1988. Sin
1992, Mr. Schlueter has been the Managing Direat@chlueter & Associates, P.C., a law firm, preiotj in the areas of securities, mer
and acquisitions, finance and corporate law. Mhl$ster has served as our United States corporates@curities counsel since 1988. F
1989 to 1991, prior to establishing Schlueter & ddates, P.C., Mr. Schlueter was a partner in teever, Colorado office of Kutak Ra
(formerly Kutak, Rock & Campbell), and from 1984 1889, he was a partner in the Denver office ofshiel& Harding. Mr. Schlueter i<
member of the American Institute of Certified PalAiccountants, the Colorado and Denver Bar Assiocist and the Wyoming State Bar.

ALBERT SO was appointed as the Chief Financial Offiethe Company in March 2009. Mr. So was firstpboged as the Financ
Controller of the Company in January 2008 and asaaagement trainee of the Company in November 2@0#br to his employment a:
management trainee of the Company, Mr. So was @destu Mr. So is a Certified Management Account&imancial Risk Manager, a
received a Masters degree in Business Administraftiom HeriotWatt University, Edinburgh, United Kingdom, and adBelor degree
Mathematics from Simon Fraser University in BurnaBsitish Columbia, Canada.

Anthony So, the Company’President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathe Board of Directors is the father of Andrew, 8w
Company’s Chief Operating Officer, and Albert Ste Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

No arrangement or understanding exists betweersadly director or officer and any other personsyanmsto which any director
executive officer was elected as a director or etiee officer. Our directors are elected annualtg @erve until their successors take offic
until their death, resignation or removal. The exee officers serve at the pleasure of the BodrDicectors.
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Compensation

The aggregate amount of compensation paid by uandubsidiaries during the year ended March 81220 all directors, form
directors, and officers as a group for servicesllicapacities was $1,292,000. Total compensatorte benefit of Anthony So was $857,(
for the benefit of Kim Wah Chung was $161,000, ther benefit of Andrew So was $88,000, for the bierdfAlbert So was $118,000 and
the benefit of Henry F. Schlueter was an aggregb$68,000. The $68,000 listed as having been fmaithe benefit of Mr. Schlueter was p
to his law firm, Schlueter & Associates, P.C. fegal services rendered.

We did not set aside or accrue any amounts to geopension, retirement or similar benefits for clioes and officers for the fisc
year ended March 31, 2012, other than contributiormur Provident Fund Plan, which aggreg«$16,000 for officers and directors.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with Anthony So aind Wah Chung. Mr. S@ employment agreement provides for a maxil
yearly salary of approximately $800,000 per yeasgonus, and Mr. Chu’'s employment agreement provides for a maximum yesalary o
approximately $200,000 per year plus bonus, asdiattheir respective employment agreements, wéigdire on March 31, 2013. One of
properties of the Group in Hong Kong is also preddo Mr. So as part of his compensation. Mr.sSemployment agreement contair
provision under which we will be obligated to pay.NMo all compensation for the remainder of his leympent agreement and five times
annual salary and bonus compensation if a changertdfol, as defined in his employment agreemeotice
Options of Directors and Senior Management

The following table provides information concerniogtions owned by the directors and senior manageateMarch 31, 2012.

Number of Common Share:

Name Subject to Exercise Price
Stock Options Per Share Expiration Date
Anthony Sa 222,50( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
Kim Wah Chunc 55,00( $ 1.61 March 31, 201!
Woc-Ping Fok 10,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201«
10,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 201
Henry F. Schluete 10,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201«
10,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 201

Directors

Except as mentioned above, our directors do naivecany additional monetary compensation for sgnin their capacities. /
directors are reimbursed for all reasonable exgemseirred in connection with their services asraator.

Employee retirement benefits

€)) With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whedlyned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong gomplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan"ith a major international assurance company twidelife insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiagd BEL before December 2000, excluding factorykeocs, are eligible to jo
the provident fund plan. Eligible employees of Blan are required to contribute 5% of their monsdjary, while BEL is required
contribute from 5% to 10% based on the eligible leiyge’s salary, depending on the number of yearthefeligible employee’
service.
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(b)

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPRVRs introduced by the Hong Kong Government and cenued in December 2000. B
joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majgernational assurance company. All permanent Homgg full time employee
who joined BEL on or after December 2000, excludiagtory workers, are eligible to join the MPF. dttile employeesand thi
employer’s contributions to the MPF are both at&®he eligible employes’monthly salary and are subject to a maximum mang
contribution of HK$1,000 (US$128) monthly. The ntagim mandatory contribution was increased to HK$2,@3S$160) month!
starting from June 1, 2012.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gisugquired to make contributions for each empéoya rates based upon
employees standard salary base as determined by the law@EhlSSecurity Bureau, to a defined contributiotireenent schen
organized by the local Social Security Bureau speet of the retirement benefits for the Group’playees in the PRC.

The contributions to each of the above schemeseagnized as employee benefit expense when tleegisr and are charged to
consolidated statement of income (loss). The Gouogtal contributions to the above schemes foryéers ended March 31, 20
2011 and 2012 amounted to approximately $276,0803 $00 and $239,000, respectively. The Group bastimer obligation to mal
payments in respect of retirement benefits of thpleyees

Board Practices

All directors hold office until our next annual ntimg of shareholders or until their respective gssors are duly elected and quali

or their positions are earlier vacated by resigmatir otherwise. All executive officers are appethby the Board and serve at the pleasu
the Board. There are no director service contradsiding for benefits upon termination of employmher directorship.

NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices

NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350 provides that forefgivate issuers may elect to follow certain homartoy corporate governar

practices so long as they provide NASDAQ with delefrom outside counsel in its home country cegirtif that the issuer 's corpor
governance practices are not prohibited by homatcplaw.

On July 19, 2005, we submitted a letter to NASDA@ti€ying that certain of Bonse’ corporate governance practices are

prohibited by the relevant laws of the British Mirdslands. We will follow British Virgin Island i& in respect to the following requirements:

A majority of Bons('s board of directors will not be independe
Bonso will not have a nominating committ

Bonso will not have a compensation commit

Bonsc('s independent directors will not meet in execusigssion; an
Bonsc's audit committee may have only one mem
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Audit Committee

Mr. Woo Ping Fok and Mr. Henry F. Schlueter are tiiembers of the Audit Committee. Mr. Fok is “indegent”as defined in tt
NASDAQ listing standards, and Mr. Schlueter may lmtonsidere“independent” since his law firm serves as Bonirgted States counsel.

The Audit Committee was established to: (i) reviewd approve the scope of audit procedures employexlir independent audito
(i) review and approve the audit reports rendérgabur independent auditors; (iii) approve the atek charged by the independent audi
(iv) report to the Board of Directors with respéztsuch matters; (v) recommend the selection aépetident auditors; and (vi) discharge :
other responsibilities as may be delegated toornftime to time by the Board of Directors. Effeetias of August 17, 2000, the Boarc
Directors adopted a formal charter for its Auditn@uittee, which was amended effective June 30, 2005.

Employees

At March 31, 2012, we employed a total of 1,29%pas, as compared to 1,487 persons at March 31, &1 1,879 persons at Ma
31, 2010; 12 employees in Hong Kong (14 in 2011 2&é 2010) and 1,287 employees in China (1,472l and 1,857 in 2010). Employ
are not covered by collective bargaining agreemétesconsider our global labor practices and eng#aglations to be good.

Share Ownership

The following table shows the number of sharesoofimon stock beneficially owned by our directors ardcutive officers as of Ju
30, 2012:

Total Number

of
Shares of
Shares of Common
Common Stock Percent of
Stock Ownec Beneficially Beneficial
Name of Record Options Helc Owned Ownershig
Anthony So 2,281,97(M 222,500 2,504,47 43.2%
Kim Wah Chunc 93,70( 55,0003 148,70( 2.6%
Henry F. Schluete 34,00( 30,0004 64,00( 1.1%
Woc-Ping Fok 66,507 30,0000) 96,507 1.7%
Andrew Sa 0 0 0 0%
Albert So 0 0 0 0%
All Directors and Officers as a group (6 persc 2,476,17 337,50( 2,813,67 48.%

Note: The number of shares outstanding is 5,246s8@8es, with 5,577,639 total number of share@swrhich includes 330,736 share:
treasury. The calculations above are based uponutmer of shares issued of 5,577,639.

(1) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock ownedaunfrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byuwst of which Mr. S
is the sole benefician

(2 Includes options to purchase 222,500 shares of anrstock at an exercise price of $1.61 per shap&ieg on March 3!
2013.

3) Includes options to purchase 55,000 shares of comstuck at an exercise price of $1.61 per shar@iegpon March 31
2013.

(4) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $6.12 expiring aard¥i 25, 2014, optio

to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at aniserice of $6.20 per share expiring on SepterhiBe2014 and optio
to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at acisaerice of $4.50 per share expiring on Decemb@015.

(5) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $6.12 expiring aard¥i 25, 2014, optio
to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at aniserice of $6.20 per share expiring on SepterhiBe2014 and optio
to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at acisaerice of $4.50 per share expiring on Decemb@015.
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Stock Option and Bonus Plans
The 1996 Stock Option Plan

In October 1996, our stockholders adopted the 18@&k Option Plan (the “Employees’ Plantyhich provides for the grant
options to purchase an aggregate of not more tl@n0A0 shares of our common stock. In January 2600,shareholders approved
proposal of the Board of Directors to increase fe®0,000 to 900,000 in the aggregate the numbeptidns to purchase common stock ul
the Employees’ Plan. The purpose of the Employ®¢as is to make options available to managementeamployees in order to encour.
them to secure or increase on reasonable ternrsstbek ownership and to encourage them to remamtive Company.

The EmployeesPlan is administered by a committee appointed byBbard of Directors which determines the personset grante
options under the EmployeeRlan, the number of shares subject to each optienexercise price of each option and the optioiogesubjec
to the requirement that no option may be exercésalmre than ten years after the date of grant.€kkecise price of an option may be less
the fair market value of the underlying sharesahmon stock. No options granted under the Empldyeles are transferable by the optio
other than by will or the laws of descent and dstiion, and each option will be exercisable durihg lifetime of the optionee only by st
optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuathecEmployeesPlan may be paid in cash, by the surrender of npti;m commo
stock, in other property, including the optiongg'emissory note, or by a combination of the abat@ur discretion.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, ndomstwere granted under the Employees’ Plan.
The 2004 Stock Option Plan

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted thel Z0ck Option Plan (the “2004 Plantyhich provides for the grant of up to
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Compargrhmon stock in the form of stock options, subjeaertain adjustments as describe
the 2004 Plan.

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapkto remain in the employ of the Company arehttourage such employee
secure or increase on reasonable terms their constoak ownership in the Company. The Company befiehat the 2004 Plan promc
continuity of management and increased incentivepanrsonal interest in the welfare of the Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee appoiby the Board of Directors, which consists ofeaist two but not more th
three members of the Board, one of whom shall bereemployee of the Company. The committee memberstlyrare Anthony So al
Woo-Ping Fok. The committee determines the specifim$eof the options granted, including the employteebe granted options under
plan, the number of shares subject to each optiantgthe exercise price of each option and thogteriod, subject to the requirement the
option may be exercisable more than 10 years thféedate of grant. The exercise price of an optialy be less than the fair market value o
underlying shares of common stock. No options gninder the plan will be transferable by the oy other than by will or the laws
descent and distribution, and each option will kereisable during the lifetime of the optionee obyythe optionee.
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The exercise price of an option granted pursuatiied004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surrasfdeptions, in common stock,
other property, including a promissory note frora tiptionee, or by a combination of the above, atikcretion of the Committee.

As of March 31, 2012, no options had been grantetbuthe 2004 Plan.
2004 Stock Bonus Plan

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adopted(fbé Stock Bonus Plan (the “Stock Bonus Plawhich authorizes the issuance
up to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares o€ttrapany’s Common Stock in the form of stock alstognus.

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to: (iuicel key employees to remain in the employ of then@any or of any subsidiary
the Company; (ii) encourage such employees to seguincrease their stock ownership in the Compamyg (iii) reward employees, non-
employee directors, advisors and consultants forices rendered, or to be rendered, to or for taeelit of the Company or any of
subsidiaries. The Company believes that the StamhuB Plan will promote continuity of management éameased incentive and persc
interest in the welfare of the Company.

The Stock Bonus Plan is administered by a commémsointed by the Board of Directors which considtat least two but not mc
than three members of the Board, one of whom diealh noremployee of the Company. The Committee memberswtlyrare Anthony £
and WooPing Fok. The Committee has the authority, in @ sliscretion: (i) to determine the parties toeiee bonus stock, the times wil
they shall receive such awards, the number of sharée issued and the time, terms and conditibtisecissuance of any such shares; (i
construe and interpret the terms of the Stock Bdtlas; (iii) to establish, amend and rescind raled regulations for the administration of
Stock Bonus Plan; and (iv) to make all other deteations necessary or advisable for administetiregStock Bonus Plan.

As of March 31, 2012, no shares had been grantddrihe Stock Bonus Plan.
Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transations
Major shareholders

We are not directly or indirectly owned or conteallby any foreign government or by another corpamatThe following table se
forth, as of June 30, 2012, beneficial ownershipwfcommon stock by each person, to the best okmowledge, known to own beneficie
5% or more of our common stock outstanding as ofi slate. Except as otherwise indicated, all share®wned directly and hold equal vor

rights.
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Shares of Options to Percent of

Common Stoc Purchase Beneficial
Name Owned Common Stoc Ownershig®

Anthony So 2,281,97(@ 222,5000) 43.2%

W. Douglas Morelan: 501,40( — 8.9¢%

CAS Corporatior 290,65 — 5.21%
1) Based on beneficial ownership of both shares ofrmomstock and of options to purchase common stoakare immediatel

exercisable. The calculations above are based tlygomumber of shares issued of 5,577t

(2) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock ownedaunfrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byuwst of which Mr. S

is the sole beneficiary. Effective March 31, 20ddhn Stewart Jackson, 1V, a former director of @mnpany sold 455,5°
shares of 0.003 par value of the Company in a f&igale of stock to Anthony So for gross procedd$1¢l38,937.50,
$2.50 per share. Effective March 31, 2011, Anth8p purchased 200,000 shares of $.003 par valuenom stock of Bons
in a private purchase of stock from an individwal gross proceeds of $320,000, or $1.60 per s
3) See“Share Ownersh” for additional information
There are no arrangements known to us which maysabsequent date result in a change in contithleo€ompany.
Related Party Transactions
During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 28id 2010, we paid Schlueter & Associates, P.C ggnegate of $68,000, $87,(
and $78,000, respectively for legal fees. Mr. Hdangchlueter, a director of the Company, is thedfang Director of Schlueter & Associai
P.C.
Interests of Experts and Counsel
Not Applicable to Bonso.
Legal Proceedings
Not Applicable to Bonso.
Item 8. Financial Information
Financial Statements
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are set fortter Item 18. - Financial Statements.
Item 9. The Offer and Listing
Offer and Listing Details
Our common stock is traded only in the United Stateer-thecounter market. It is quoted on the NASDAQ Capitarket under th
trading symbol “BNSO."The following table sets forth, for the periodsicaded, the range of high and low closing salesgsriper sha
reported by NASDAQ. The quotations represent prioetsveen dealers and do not include retail markugrkdown or commissions and n

not necessarily represent actual transactions.
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The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices for each of the last five years:

Period High Low
April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008 $ 4.6¢ $ 1.8¢
April 1, 2008 to March 31, 201 $ 2.4L $ 0.0
April 1, 2009 to March 31, 201 $ 1.4z $ 0.6
April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011 $ 2.44 $ 0.8¢
April 1, 2011 to March 31, 201 $ 2.8C $ 1.07

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the quarters in the twa-peaiod ended June 30, 2012.

Period High Low
July 1, 2010 to September 30, 2010 $ 1.4¢ $ 0.8¢
October 1, 2010 to December 31, 2( $ 1.7¢ $ 1.1¢
January 1, 2011 to March 31, 2011 $ 2.44 $ 1.3C
April 1, 2011 to June 30, 20: $ 2.37 $ 1.7¢
July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011 $ 2.8C $ 1.3¢
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2( $ 1.51 $ 1.07
January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2012 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.1¢
April 1, 2012 to June 30, 20: $ 1.8¢ $ 0.92

The following table sets forth the high and lowespatices during each of the most recent six months.

Period High Low
January 201, $ 1.3F $ 1.1
February 2012 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.1¢
March 2012 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.1¢
April 2012 $ 1.8¢ $ 1.1¢
May 2012 $ 1.2¢ $ 0.92
June 201: $ 1.1¢ $ 0.94

On July 20, 2012, the closing price of our commuatls was $1.08. Of the 5,577,639 shares of commaerkdssued as of June
2012, 5,246,903 shares were outstanding, 3,16KBares were held in the United States by 189 heloferecord and 330,736 shares were
by the Company as treasury stock. We have 196 Isblgers of record and estimate that we have 548kb#lers holding their stock in str
name (who have not objected to their names besgjatied to us).

Transfer and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent and registrar for the commocks®oComputershare, 1745 Gardena Avenue #200 dalenCalifornia 91204.
Item 10. Additional Information
Share Capital

Our authorized capital is $170,000, consisting 8f333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 par vaduweshare, and 10,000,(
authorized shares of preferred stock, $0.01 pareyalivided into 2,500,000 shares each of classefepred stock, class B preferred stock, «
C preferred stock and class D preferred stock.rinéion with respect to the number of shares ofroom stock outstanding at the beginr
and at the end of the last three fiscal yearsésemted in the Consolidated Statements of Chang8kareholdersEquity for the fiscal yea
ended March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 included hérdtem 18.
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At July 10, 2012, there were 5,577,639 shares ofcommon stock issued, 5,246,903 shares were adis and 330,736 sha
were held by the Company in treasury. All sharesevielly paid. In addition, we had outstanding 48X options to purchase common stoc
follows:

Number of Exercise Prict
Options per Share Expiration Date
342,50( $ 1.61 March 31, 201
40,00( $ 6.12 March 25, 201
40,00( $ 6.2C September 12, 20
30,00( $ 4.5C December 4, 20:

At July 10, 2012, there were no shares of our prefestock outstanding.
Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are registered in the British Virgin Islands dmalve been assigned company number 9032 in theteegif companies. O
registered agent is HWR Services Limited at Craigr@hambers, P.O. Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, BhitVirgin Islands. The object
purpose of the Company is to engage in any acttivity that is not prohibited under British Virgilslands law as set forth in Paragraph
our Memorandum of Association. As an InternatioBakiness Company, we are prohibited from doingrimss with persons resident in
British Virgin Islands, owning real estate in thetBh Virgin Islands or acting as a bank or inswra company. We do not believe that tl
restrictions materially affect our operations.

Paragraph 57(c) of our Amended Articles of Assaarafthe “Articles”) provides that a director may be counted as onegofoaum it
respect of any contract or arrangement in whichdirector is materially interested; however, if tigreement or transaction cannot be appt
by a resolution of directors without counting thaesor consent of any interested director, theegent or transaction may only be validate
approval or ratification by a resolution of the nters. Paragraph 53 of the Articles allows the dinacto vote compensation to themselve
respect of services rendered to the Company. Rephdi6 of the Articles provides that the directoesy by resolution exercise all the power
the Company to borrow money and to mortgage orgehds undertakings and property or any part thfetedssue debentures, debenture <
and other securities whenever money is borroweasarecurity for any debt, liability or obligatiohaurs or of any third party. Such borrow
powers can be altered by an amendment to the éstidlhere is no provision in the Articles for thandatory retirement of directors. Direct
are not required to own shares of the Companyderaio serve as directors.

Our authorized share capital is $170,000, diviaded 23,333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 glaeyand 10,000,000 authori:
shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Holdemir common stock are entitled to one vote fehewhole share on all matters to be v
upon by shareholders, including the election oédtiors. Holders of our common stock do not haveutative voting rights in the election
directors. All of our common shares are equal ttheather with respect to liquidation and divideights. Holders of our common shares
entitled to receive dividends if and when declagdur board of directors out of funds legally dabie therefor under British Virgin Islan
law. In the event of our liquidation, all assetsitable for distribution to the holders of our commshares are distributable among t
according to their respective holdings. Holdersof common stock have no preemptive rights to psehany additional unissued comr
shares. No shares of our preferred stock have issaad; however, the board of directors has thigyatm determine the rights, preferences
restrictions of the preferred stock at their ditiore

Paragraph 7 of the Memorandum of Association prewithat without prejudice to any special rightsvimesly conferred on tt
holders of any existing shares, any share may faieeiswith such preferred, deferred or other speigats or such restrictions, whethe:
regard to dividend, voting, return of capital onetwise, as the directors may from time to timesaine.

Paragraph 10 of the Memorandum of Association plewithat if at any time the authorized share chajstdivided into differer
classes or series of shares, the rights attachaadytalass or series may be varied with the coriseatiting of the holders of not less than three-
fourths of the issued shares of any other clasgiies of shares which may be affected by suclatian.
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Paragraph 105 of the Articles of Association pregidhat our Memorandum and Articles of Associativay be amended by
resolution of members or a resolution of directdtsus, our board of directors without shareholggrraval may amend our Memorandum
Articles of Association. This includes amendmemwtsnicrease or reduce our authorized capital stBek. ability to amend our Memorand
and Articles of Association without shareholder mwal could have the effect of delaying, deterrorgoreventing a change in control of
Company, including a tender offer to purchase aunmon shares at a premium over the then currerkanprice.

Provisions in respect of the holding of general tings and extraordinary general meetings are seinoRaragraphs 68 through 77
the Articles and under the International Businesm@anies Act. The directors may convene meetingseofmembers at such times and in
manner and places as the directors consider negassdesirable, and they shall convene such ainmgeeapon the written request of memt
holding more than 30% of the votes of our outstagdioting shares.

British Virgin Islands law and our Memorandum andides of Association impose no limitations on thight of nonresident
foreign owners to hold or vote our securities. Ehare no provisions in the Memorandum and ArtioieAssociation governing the owners
threshold above which shareholder ownership muslisigosed.

A copy of our Memorandum and Articles of Associatias amended, was filed as an exhibit to our Regjisn Statement on Form
2 (SEC File No. 333-32524).

Material Contracts

The following summarizes each material contradteothan contracts entered into in the ordinarys®wf business, to which Bor
or any subsidiary of Bonso is a party, for the fears immediately preceding the filing of this repo

We signed a Banking Facility Letter dated Februk3y 2012 with Hang Seng Bank for a HK$63,000,0@tteof credit, trust recei
facility, export D/P bills, export trade loan, fadhg and overdraft facility. A copy of this BankjrFacilities Letter is attached to this Anr
Report on Form 20-F as Exhibit 4.1 and is incorfEmderein by this reference.

Exchange Controls

There are no exchange control restrictions on paysnef dividends on our common stock or on the cahdf our operations either
Hong Kong, where our principal executive offices &rcated, or the British Virgin Islands, where are incorporated. Other jurisdictions
which we conduct operations may have various exphaontrols. Taxation and repatriation of profiegarding our China operations
regulated by Chinese laws and regulations. Witheessto our PRC subsidiaries, with the exceptioa céquirement that approximately 119
profits be reserved for future developments anfi stalfare, there are no restrictions on the payntérdividends and the removal of divide
from China once all taxes are paid and assessetbasel, if any, from previous years have been ngadd. To date, these controls have
had, and are not expected to have, a material imgraour financial results. There are no materigtigh Virgin Islands laws that impao
foreign exchange controls on us or that affectghgment of dividends, interest or other paymenthdllers of our securities who are
residents of the British Virgin Islands. Britishrgin Islands law and our Memorandum and Article@s$ociation impose no limitations on
right of nonresident or foreign owners to hold otevour securities.

Taxation

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding éxibetween the United States and the British Vitglands. Under current Briti
Virgin Islands law, dividends, interest or royadtipaid by us to individuals are not subject todaxong as the recipient is not a resident ¢
British Virgin Islands. If we were to pay a dividgnve would not be liable to withhold any tax, Bhtreholders would receive gross divide
if any, irrespective of their residential or natibstatus.
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Dividends, if any, paid to any United States resider citizen shareholder are treated as dividenwdme for United States fede
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not edigibt the 70% dividendeeceived deduction allowed to United States corpmma or
dividends from a domestic corporation under Secfd8 of the Internal Revenue Code. Various InteRavenue Code provisions imp
special taxes in certain circumstances on daited States corporations and their shareholdéra.are urged to consult your tax advisor \
regard to such possibilities and your own tax situne

A foreign corporation will be treated as a pasgoreign investment company (“PFICfyr United States federal income tax purp:
if, after applying relevant lookarough rules with respect to the income and as¥edsibsidiaries, 75% or more of its gross incoresgsts ¢
certain types of passive income or 50% or mordefgross value of its assets is attributable tetagbat produce passive income or are he
the production of passive income. For this purpgsssive income generally includes dividends, @ggrroyalties, rents (other that rents
royalties derived in the active conduct of a traddusiness), annuities and gains from assetgptbdtice passive income. We presently be
that we are not a PFIC and do not anticipate bemgmiPFIC. This is, however, a factual determimatiade on an annual basis and is su
to change. If we were to be classified as a PFl@intaxable year, (i) U.S. holders would generbyrequired to treat any gain on sales o
shares held by them as ordinary income and to paipntarest charge on the value of the deferralhefrtUnited States federal income
attributable to such gain and (ii) distributionsdoby us to our United States holders could alssuigect to an interest charge. In addition
would not provide information to our United Statedders that would enable them to make a “qualiztting fund”election under whic
generally, in lieu of the foregoing treatment, earnings would be currently included in their Uditstates federal income.

In addition to United States federal income taxgt&hareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to in Almisual Report on Form 20-F that have been filethwlhe SEC at the SEE’
Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Vifagon, D.C. You may obtain information on the ag@n of the Public Reference Ro
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You can alstain copies of our SEC filings by going to theC3website at http://www.sec.gov.

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by referent®® information we file with the SEC. This meanattive can disclose import:
information to you by referring you to another do@nt filed separately with the SEC. The informatiiocorporated by reference is conside
to be part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.
Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

We are exposed to a certain level of interestriakeand foreign currency exchange risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk primarily arises from oundgerm debt and our general banking facilities. AMatrch 31, 2012, there was
longterm debt. We had utilized approximately $1,870,@®Gur total banking facilities of $8,660,000. Bdson the maturity profile a
composition of our longerm debt and general banking facilities, includihg fact that our banking facilities are at valéainterest rates, v
estimate that changes in interest rates will neehe@ material impact on our operating results shddows. We intend to manage our inte
rate risk through appropriate borrowing strategide. have not entered into interest rate swap &rmanagement agreements; however,
possible that we may do so in the future.
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A summary of our debts as at March 31, 2012 whiehevsubjected to variable interest rates is asabelo

March 31, Interest
2012 Rate
Notes payabl $ 1,870,00! HIBOR + 2.5%

(Note: HIBOR is the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate)

Interest rates are subject to change if the Compkefigults on the amounts due under the facilityl@aws in excess of the facil
amounts or at the discretion of the banks and rdraye 4% to 6% in addition to the United States &twhg Kong Prime Rate
respectively.

All the balances above are due within one year.

A change in the interest rate of 1% will increasé@crease the interest expense of the Companpprpdmately $31,000.

For further information concerning our banking fiieis, the interest rates payable and repaymenmiseplease see Note 8 to
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

For a discussion of our Foreign Currency Exchangk,RSee Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects, it
Currency Exchange Rates.

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equiy Securities
Not applicable to Bonso.
PART Il
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquecies

None.

Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Seurity Holders and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 15. Controls and Procedures

The Companys management, with the participation of its Chiekeé&utive Officer and the Chief Financial Officepntlucted a
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procesluas defined in paragraph (e) of Rule 13a-15 driBunder the Exchange Act, as of Me
31, 2012.

Based on this evaluation, Anthony So, the Chiefdatige Officer, and Albert So, the Chief Finandificer, have concluded that,
of March 31, 2012, the Compasydisclosure controls and procedures were effettiyigovide reasonable assurance that informagqmirec
to be disclosed by the Company in reports it fdesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded,gss®d, summarized and reported withir
time periods specified in the rules and forms ef8EC, and included controls and procedures designensure that information required tc
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accatadland communicated to the Company’s managerimghiding the Compang’ Chie

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for estdby and maintaining adequate internal contra@rdinancial reporting, as su
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) 4hd-15(f). The Compang’internal control over financial reporting is @pess designed
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabfl financial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external purpose
accordance with applicable generally accepted atoay principles. A compang’ internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhos
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to thenteaance of records that, in reasonable detailirately and fairly reflect the transactions
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ipmveasonable assurance that transactions areleecas necessary to permit preparatic
financial statements in accordance with generalyepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the Company are b
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@ent and directors of the Company; and (3) pev@hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asiion, use or disposition of the compasydssets that could have a material effect o
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projection:
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomedeénaate because of changes in conditio
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management has evaluated the e#eetss of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting as oéidh 31
2012 based upon criteria established in Internait@b Integrated Framework issued by the Commiti€&ponsoring Organizations of -
Treadway Commission. Based on the assessment, dhp&ys management, including its Chief Executive Offiegxd Chief Financi
Officer, concluded that, as of March 31, 2012, @mnpany’s internal control over financial reportimgs effective based on these criteria.

Changes in internal controls over financial reportng

There were no changes in the Companyiternal controls over financial reporting duritige year ended March 31, 2012 that |
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 16. Reserved
Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Henry F. Schlueter is a member of the Compargudit committee and is deemed to be a financiper. Mr. Schlueter, t
Company’s outside securities counsel, may not leengel to be “independent” within the definition @idependence” published by NASDAQ.

Iltem 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies taCbief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic We intend to disclose a
changes in, or waivers from, our code of ethicsfilyg a Form 6-K. Stockholders may request a foey in print form from ourChief
Financial Officer at:

Bonso Electronics International, Inc.
Unit 1404, 14/F, Cheuk Nang Centre
9 Hillwood Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong
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Iltem 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Committee’s Pre-approval Policies and Procedte

The Audit Committee must pre-approve the audit mad-audit services performed by the independent auditarder to assure tt
the provision of such services does not impairathditor's independence. Before the Company or &itg eubsidiaries engage the indepen
auditor to render a service, the engagement musitier:

(1) specifically approved by the Audit Committee; o
(2) entered into pursuant to this Pre-Approval &oli

The term of any pre-approval is 12 months from dlaée of preapproval, unless the Audit Committee specificaltpyides for .
different period. The Audit Committee may periodigaevise the list of pre-approved services.

The Audit Committee may delegate meproval authority to one or more of its membeitse Thember or members to whom ¢
authority is delegated shall report any ppproval decisions to the Audit Committee at itstrecheduled meeting. The Audit Committee
not delegate to management the Audit Committesfsoresibilities to pre-approve services performedhsyindependent auditor.

The Audit Committee must specifically papprove the terms of the annual audit services gmgant. The Audit Committee st
approve, if necessary, any changes in terms reguitom changes in audit scope, Company structucgher matters. In addition to the anr
audit services engagement approved by the Auditr@Gittee, the Audit Committee may grant @pproval for other audit services, which
those services that only the independent audiasaieably can provide.

The Audit Committee may grant pre-approval to thpsemissible noraudit services classified as other services thaglieves woul
not impair the independence of the auditor, inaigdhose that are routine and recurring services.

The Audit Committee may consider the amount or eapigestimated fees as a factor in determining dred proposed service wo
impair the auditor's independence. Where the AGdilnmittee has approved an estimated fee for acsgrifie preapproval applies to :
services described in the approval. However, inebent the invoice in respect of any such sendcenaterially in excess of the estime
amount or range, the Audit Committee must appraxvh £xcess amount prior to payment of the invoite Audit Committee expects that i
requests to pay invoices in excess of the estimatedunts will include an explanation as to the oaafor the overage. The Compasy’
independent auditor will be informed of this policy

The Companys management shall inform the Audit Committee afeservice performed by the independent auditosyant to thi
PreApproval Policy. Requests or applications to prevagrvices that require separate approval by thit &iommittee shall be submitted
the Audit Committee by both the independent auditzat the Chief Financial Officer and must includieiat statement as to whether, in tl
view, the request or application is consistent it SEC’s and the Public Company Accounting OgétsBoard (United States)rules o
auditor independence.

The audit fees indicated below were pre-approvethbyAudit Committee before the auditor comment¢gavork.
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Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Moore Stephens fofepsional services rendered for the audit of then@my’s annual consolidat
financial statements for the fiscal years endeddd&dl, 2012 and 2011 were $180,000 and $190,08pectvely.

Audit Related Fees

There were no fees billed by Moore Stephens fofgggional services rendered for assurance anedetatrvices that were reasoni
related to the performance of the audit and areequirted above under “Audit Fedst the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 and ferftbca
year ended March 31, 201

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed by a company controliedbore Stephens for professional services rendéretix compliance for tt
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 were approxim&k6|900 and $4,000 for the fiscal year ended M&dcH2011.

ltem 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards forAudit Committees

Pursuant to NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350(a), aifpreprivate issuer may follow its home country piee in lieu of Rule 435!
which sets forth the qualitative Listing Requirersefor NASDAQ listed companies. Rule 4350 requi@siong other things, that a lis
company have at least three members on its audiinittee. The Company currently has an audit conemitionsisting of two directors, one
whom is deemed to be “independeast defined in NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4200. The @any has obtained a letter from indepen
counsel in the British Virgin Islands certifyingathhaving a single member audit committee is nohiited by British Virgin Island law. See *“
NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practi”

Item 16E. Purchasers of Equity Securities by the Bier and Affiliated Purchasers

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Directatshorized a program for the Company to repurchgséo $500,000 of i
common stock. This repurchase program does nogatklithe Company to acquire any specific numbeshafes or acquire shares over
specified period of time. No stocks had been remsed up to March 31, 2006. On November 16, 2006 Company's Board of Direct
authorized an additional $1,000,000 for the Compmngpurchase of its common stock under the samgalegse program. This authorizas
to repurchase shares increased the amount autthdozeepurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. yitre fiscal year ended March 31, 2(
260,717 shares valued at $1,328,560 were purchasgel this program. No shares were repurchaseddlthe fiscal year ended March
2008. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008019 shares valued at $133,765 were purchasegt tinid program. No shares w
repurchased during the fiscal years ended March2812, 2011 and 2010. The Company may from timéne repurchase shares of
Common Stock under this program.

ltem 16F. Changes in Registrant’s Certifying Accoutants.
Not applicable to Bonso.
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Item 16G. Corporate Governance.

For a discussion of the ways in which the Compsugrporate governance differs from those followgdilomestic companies un
the NASDAQ Marketplace listing requirements, se&SDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices” above.

Item 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure.
Not applicable to Bonso.

PART IlI

Item 17. Financial Statements
Not applicable.

Item 18. Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements are filed ag péthis Annual Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 20d 2@h2

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome (Loss) for the yee
ended March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended March
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraaed

March 31, 2010, 2011 and 20

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Iltem 19. Exhibits

4.1

111

12.1

12.2

13.1

13.2

Banking Facility Letter, dated February 13, 2018@e@n Bonso and the Hang Seng Bank Limited
Code of Ethics For Chief Executive Officer and CGliigmancial Officer (1)

Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1358,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of
2002

Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1386,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@rles Act of
2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Q) Filed as an Exhibit on Form-F filed with the Commission on August 13, 20
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets &the requirements for filing on Form ZDand that it has duly caused and authot
the undersigned to sign this Annual Report on étgalif.

BONSO ELECTRONICS INTERNATIONAL INC.

Dated August 15, 201 /s/ Anthony So

Anthony So, Chairman of the Board, Chief Exeaut®fficer, Treasurer and Director

Dated August 15, 201 /sl Albert Sc

Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bonso Electronics International Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Bonso Electronics International Imcl subsidiaries (the “Companydp o
March 31, 2011 and 2012 and the related conselidstatements of operations and comprehensivedbagsges in stockholderstuity, an
cash flows for each of the three years in the pleeioded March 31, 2012. These consolidated finhatagements are the responsibility of
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiatstants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtagsonable assurance about whether the consdlifinancial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hagewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterirdl control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate il
circumstances, but not for the purposes of exprgsasn opinion on the effectiveness of the Compaimternal control over financial reportil
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audiiudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in
consolidated financial statements. An audit alsolules assessing the accounting principles used ségrdficant estimates made

management, as well as evaluating the overall @ighrstatement presentation. We believe that oditswprovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the consolidated financial pos
of the Company as of March 31, 2011 and 2012, haddsults of its operations and cash flows fohezche three years in the period er
March 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting piiples generally accepted in the United States oEAca.

/s/ Moore Stephens

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

August 15, 2012
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Assets

Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade receivables, n
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym
Inventories
Income tax recoverab
Current assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets
Deferred income tax asse
Other intangible assets, ne

Property, plant and equipme
Buildings
Constructio-in-progress
Plant and machinet
Furniture, fixtures and equipme
Motor vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment

Property, plant and equipment, |
Nor-current assets of discontinued operati

Total asset

Liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Current liabilities
Notes payabl
Accounts payabl
Accrued charges and depos
Income tax liabilities
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic

Total current liabilities

Income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilitie
Commitments

Stockholder equity

Common stock par value $0.003 per st

- authorized share- 23,333,33¢

- issued shares: 2011 and 2- 5,577,639

- outstanding shares: 2011 and 2+ 5,246,903
Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock at cost: 2011 and 2 330,736 share

Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Note

11

10

12

March 31

2011 201z

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc

5,40;
1,311

70€
4,84¢
1,94«

14,22¢

4,031

9,71¢
1,801
20,88¢
3,14¢
44¢

35,99t
(32,43))

3,55¢

21,81:

1,33¢
2,72¢
2,19¢

24
1,08¢

7,371

2,59¢

19

17
21,76t

(1,467)

(10,93:)
2,43¢

3,01«
2,081
1,10¢
4,10¢
1,902

12,20%

1,87(
5,032
2,345

44

9,29¢

2,59¢

17
21,76

(1,467)

(11,83
2,79:



11,82} 11,27¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity 21,81: 23,16¢

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Loss
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year ended March 3:

Note 201( 2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Net sales 18 28,54 28,38 26,68:
Cost of sale: (23,699 (24,760 (22,787
Gross profil 4,85( 3,621 3,90(
Selling expense (375) (249 (267)
Salaries and related co: (2,539 (2,716 (2,52¢)
Research and development exper (580) (339 (312)
Administration and general expen: (2,017 (2,959 (2,492
Gain from liquidation of subsidiary — — 1,44¢
Loss from operation 18 (65é) (1,637 (24¢)
Interest incomt 102 6 7
Interest expense (69 (56) (87)
Foreign exchange lo: (522) (130) (703
Gain on disposal of proper — 15& —
Gain on disposal of intangible ass — 41 —
Other income 62C 184 132
Loss before income taxi (523 (1,437 (90C)
Income tax expens 8 (9) — (2)
Loss from continuing operatiol (53é) (1,430 (902)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax 11 (126) (129 —
Net loss (659 (1,560 (902
Other comprehensive income, net of 1
Foreign currency translation adjustments, netf ta (152 19¢ 358
Comprehensive loss (816) (1,367 (549
Loss per shar
Weighted average number of shares outstar 17 5,246,90: 5,246,90:. 5,246,90.
- basic and dilute
-Continuing operation (0.120 (0.27) (0.17)
-Discontinued operatior (0.09) (0.02) —
(0.19) (0.29) (0.17)

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderEquity
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Common stock Treasury stocl Accumulate:
othel
comprehensiy
income-
Additional Treasur foreigr Total
Share Amount paic-in  Share Amount Accumulatel currenc' stockholder’
Issuer outstandin capita helc outstandin deficit adjustment equity
$in $in $in $in $in
thousand  thousand thousand thousand $ in thousanc thousand
Balance, March 31, 20( 5,577,63! 17 21,765 330,73t (1,462) (8,719 2,39: 13,99¢
Net loss - - - - - (658) - (65€)
Foreign exchange translatiol
adjustment - - - - - - (152) (152
Balance, March 31, 2010 5,577,63! 17 21,76f 330,73t (1,467) (9,372) 2,24( 13,18¢
Net loss - - - - - (1,560 - (1,560
Foreign exchange translati
adjustment - - - - - - 19¢ 19¢
Balance, March 31, 2011 557763 17 21,768 330,73 (1,462 (10,937) 2,43¢ 11,827
Net loss - - - - - (902 - (902
Foreign exchange translati
adjustment - - - - - - 353 353
Balance, March 31, 201 5,577,63! 17 21,765 330,73t (1,467) (11,839 2,79: 11,27¢

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment

-F-4 -




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year Ended March 3:

Cash flows from operating activities

201C
$ in thousanc

2011

201z

$ in thousanc

$ in thousanc

Net loss (65¢) (1,560 (902)
Loss from discontinued operatio 12€ 12¢ —
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby
operating activities
Depreciatior 1,79¢ 99 54
Amortization 164 20¢ 17¢€
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmsioté 4) — (15%) (15)
Gain on disposal of intangible as: — (42) —
Write off of accounts payab — (32 —
Inventory allowanct (10¢) 98 28<
Reversal of bad deb (365) (45) —
Gain from liquidation of subsidiar — — (1,449
Others (55) — —
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade receivable 12€ 58 (770)
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym (522) 651 (39¢6)
Inventories 1,40z 44 46(
Income tax recoverab (582) (37%) 41
Notes payabli 738 (762) 537
Accounts payabl 470 127 2,30:
Accrued charges and depos (72) 26& 14¢
Income tax liabilities 4 17 20
Deferred income tax liabilitie 5 — (17)
Operating activities of continuing operatic 1,51¢ (2,274 474
Operating activities of discontinued operations 1,97( 84 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating aivit 3,48¢ (1,190 474
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of intangible as — 513 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andggeint — 252 25
Acquisition of property, plant and equipmt (497) (2,399 (3,415
Acquisition of intangible asse — (682) —
Proceeds from investments 1,05¢ — —
Investing activities of continuing operatio 56¢ (1,319 (3,390
Investing activities of discontinued operatic 4 — —
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing aciy 572 (1,319 (3,390
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital lease paymer (130 (52 —
Repayment of banking facilities (317) (68) —
Financing activities of continuing operatic (447 (220 —
Financing activities of discontinued operatic (3,939 — —
Net cash used in financing activiti (4,387) (120 —
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (329 (2,629 (2,916
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvasnts helc
in foreign currencie (272) (78) 51¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,71(C 8,11« 5412



Cash and cash equivalents, end of \

Less: cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthre-y
discontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the— continuing
operations

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid during the year fc

Interest paic

Income tax paid, net of refur

Non-cash investing and financing activitit
Interest Income

10z

5,41

5,40;

56

See notes to these consolidated financial statament
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

1. Description of business and significant accountingolicies

Bonso Electronics International Inc. (“the Companghd its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Grou@)e engaged in the designi
manufacturing and selling of a comprehensive lihelectronic scales and weighing instruments, taf@munications products a
other products

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in United States dollars and in accordante génerally accepted account
principles in the United States of America. Thepamation of consolidated financial statements negunanagement to make estim
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date
the consolidated financial statements and the tegaamounts of revenues and expenses during tloetirep periods. Significa
estimates made by management include allowanceg mgainst inventories and trade receivables, aeds#éfuation of londived
assets. Actual results could differ from thoseneates.

The Group sustained operating losses in fiscalsyeaded March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, includimgtdoss of $902,000 in t
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Notwithstanding the operating losses sustainedhénldst three fiscal years, the accompanying cafeteld financial statements hi
been prepared on a going concern basis. Managdméaves the Group will have sufficient working @¢apto meet its financir
requirements based upon their experience and #ssessment of the Grosgpprojected performance, credit facilities and lag
relationships.
Pursuant to an agreement signed March 30, 2009 rt¢oHaushaltswaren GmbH & Co. K“Korone”), an indirect subsidiary of tl
Company, agreed to sell all of its major assets)prising trade receivables, inventories, intellatiproperty rights and toolings, ti
third party purchaser at a consideration of appnaxely EUR 1,990,000 (or USD 2,606,000). The Grdapided to liquidate Korol
after the completion of the sale. As a result,fiperes of Korona are included as discontinued afi@ns (see note 11). The liquidat
of Korona was completed in February 20
The significant accounting policies are as follows:

€)) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the Company and its sub#édiafter elimination of inter-
company accounts and transactic

Acquisitions of companies have been consolidatech fthe date on which control of the net assetsogredations was transferred to
Group.

Acquisitions of companies are accounted for usmgpurchase method of accounti
(b) Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents are «term, highly liquid investments with original maities of three months or less. Cash equiva
are stated at cost, which approximates fair vakeabse of the shi-term maturity of these instrumen
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, asrdehed on a fir-in, first-out basis, or market. Costs of inventories inclpdechas
and related costs incurred in bringing the prodtwtsheir present location and condition. Markelueais determined by reference
the selling price after the balance sheet date aranagement estimates based on prevailing maokeitons. The Company routin
reviews its inventories for their salability and fadications of obsolescence to determine if inegncarrying values are higher tt
market value. Some of the significant factors tr@mPany considers in estimating the market valuésofnventories include tt
likelihood of changes in market and customer denmardlexpected changes in market prices for itsntorees. As of March 31, 20
and 2012, inventories were stated at market valb&h is lower than their costs by approximatel3 80 and $283,000, respectivi

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amoet of allowances for doubtful accounts an@sakturns. The allowance
doubtful accounts is the Group’s best estimatehefamount of probable credit losses in the Grawxisting trade receivables. E
debt expense is included in the administrative gerieral expenses.

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful ived#es to ensure accounts and other receivableshar overstated due
uncollectibility. Allowance for doubtful receivatdés maintained for all customers based on a waoktactors, including the length
time the receivables are past due, significanttone-events and historical experience. An additi@iiawance for individual accour
is recorded when the Group becomes aware of cussbroe other debtorsinability to meet their financial obligations, suei
bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the custofaer other debtos operating results or financial position. If cincstances related
customers or debtors change, estimates of the eeglolity of receivables will be further adjusted.

Deferred income taxes

Amounts in the consolidated financial statementated to income taxes are calculated using thecimlies of ASC 740 thcome
Taxes”.ASC 740 requires recognition of deferred tax asaptsliabilities for the expected future tax congatces of events that hi
been included in the financial statements or tanrns. Under this method, deferred tax assets iabdities are determined based
the temporary differences between the financiabripg basis and tax bases of assets and liabilitsing enacted tax rates in effec
the year in which the differences are expecteegtense. Future tax benefits, such as net operhtisgcarry forwards, are recogni
as deferred tax assets. Recognized deferred tatsasee reduced by a valuation allowance if, bazedhe weight of availab
evidence, it is more likely than not that some iporor all of the deferred tax assets will not balized.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land ghésrin the People’s Republic of China (“PRCEand use rights held by t
Company are included in intangible assets, redladsfrom property, plant and equipment. The grdntieeful life of the land u
rights is 50 years. They are stated at cost andta@d on a straightine basis over the period of rights of 30 yeamsaécordance wi
the business licenses with 30 years of useful life.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represented taxi licendeshwwvere stated at cost and are amortized onaggbtdine basis over the relat
granted useful life of 50 years, the shorter of tl@aining term of the license period or the expaaiseful life to the Group. T
licenses entitled the Group to operate five ta@is50 years in Shenzhen, PRC. The purpose of hpltliese licenses was to gene
additional income. All five taxi licenses were disgd of in July 2010, for a total consideration$6f.3,000, resulting in a gain
disposal of $41,00(

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Leasehold land ardihgs are depreciated ol

straightline basis over 15 to 50 years, representing tloetshof the remaining term of the lease or theeexgd useful life to tt
Group.

(i) Other categories of property, plant and equipmeatcarried at cost and depreciated using the &t-line method over the
expected useful lives to the Group. The principaial rates used for this purpose i

Plant and machiner 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

(i) The cost of major improvements and bettermentastalized, whereas the cost of maintenance arairejs expensed in the yi

when they are incurre:

(iv) Any gain or loss on disposal is included in thesmidated statements of operations and compreheissg
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Impairment of long-lived assets and other acquired intangible asse

Long{ived assets held and used by the Group and ifiengissets are reviewed for impairment wheneventever changes
circumstances indicate that the carrying amourdugh assets may not be recoverable. The Groupatealvecoverability of assets
be held and used by comparing the carrying amofuiah@sset to future net undiscounted cash flowsetgenerated by the asse
such assets are considered to be impaired, tharimgrat loss is measured by the amount by whichctireying amount of the ass
exceeds the fair value of the assets calculatetywsidiscounted future cash flows analysis. Promssifor impairment made on ot
long-ived assets are disclosed in the consolidate@msints of operations and comprehensive loss. Baisdde assessment of
land and buildings of the factory in Shenzhen, PReCprovision was made by the Group as an impaitif281.1: $nil; 2010: $nil).

Capital and operating lease:

Costs in respect of operating leases are charggdstigncome on a straighitte basis over the lease term. Leasing agreemehisl
transfer to the Group substantially all the besedihd risks of ownership of an asset, are treadeifl the asset had been purch:
outright. The assets are included in property, trdand equipment (“capital leasesid the capital element of the lease commitme
shown as an obligation under capital leases. Taseleentals are treated as consisting of capitalimerest elements. The cag
element is applied to reduce the outstanding otiigaand the interest element is charged agairfitmo as to give a consisti
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balandstanding at the end of each accounting periodetddseld under capital leases
depreciated over the useful lives of the equivatented assets.

Revenue recognitior

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectibility of the sales pigesasonably assured. Revenue is recognized vitteearid risk of loss are transfer
to customers, which is generally the point at whichducts are leaving the ports of Hong Kong orr2hen as designated by
customers. Shipping costs billed to the Compsarmy'stomers are included within revenue. Associebsts are classified as part of «
of sales.

The Company provides to certain customers an aahditione to two percent of the quantity of cerfainducts ordered in lieu of
warranty, which are recognized as cost of salesnwhese products are shipped to customers fromCtdrapanys facilities. Ir
addition, certain products sold by the Companysattgect to a limited product quality warranty. TBempany accrues for estima
incurred but unidentified quality issues based up@torical activity and known quality issues ifl@ss is probable and can
reasonably estimated. The standard limited warraetjod is one to three years. Quality returnsynds, rebates and discounts
recorded net of sales at the time of sale and attiinbased on past history. All sales are based fipo orders with fixed terms a
conditions, which generally cannot be modified. tblically, the Company has not experienced matatiierences between

estimated amounts of quality returns, refunds,teband discounts and the actual results. In aliraots, there is no price protectiol
similar privilege in relation to the sale of good.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Research and development cos

Research and development costs include salariéSesitand contractor fees that are directly atitable to the conduct of research
development progress primarily related to the dgwalent of new design of products. Research ando@went costs are expense
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andnaheded within selling expenses. Advertising costsre approximately $1,0(
$2,000 and $5,000 for the fiscal years ended Madgt2010, 2011 and 2012, respectiv:

Income taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial dAotting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation M8, “Accounting fo
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An InterpretationF#SB Statement No. 109how codified as part of ASC 740 (Note 9). ASC
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in financial statements and pleEscia recognition threshold ¢
measurement attributes for the financial statemesudgnition and measurement of a tax position takesxpected to be taken in a
return. ASC 740 also provides guidance on deretiogniclassification, interest and penalties, actimg in interim periods, disclost
and transition. The Company’s accounting polictoifreat interest and penalties as componentscohie taxes.

Foreign currency translation

0] The Grouy's functional currency is the United States dolldre financial statements of foreign subsidiariegrghthe Unite
States dollar is the functional currency and whielve transactions denominated in ndmited States dollar currencies
translated into United States dollars at the exghaates existing on that date. The translatioloadl currencies into Unite
States dollars creates transaction adjustmentshwhie included in net loss. Exchange differences racorded in tf
statements of operations and comprehensive

(i) The financial statements of foreign subsidiarieeere no-United States dollar currencies are the functianetencies, ai
translated into United States dollars using exchaates in effect at period end for assets anditiab and average exchar
rates during each reporting period for statemenpmpdrations. Adjustments resulting from translatainthese financii
statements are reflected as a separate compongmai@holde’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive incc

-F-10-




(P)

(@)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Stock options and warrants

Stock options have been granted to employees,tdisgeand noremployee directors. Upon exercise of the optiortglder can acqui
shares of common stock of the Company at an exeptise determined by the board of directors. Tjptgoas are exercisable basec
the vesting terms stipulated in the option agregmenplan.

Recent accounting pronouncement

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*@mmprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation ofm@rehensiv
Income” (“ASU 2011-05"). This update amends ASC iEd®20, “Comprehensive Incoméd provide that total comprehensive incc
will be reported in one continuous statement or $@parate but consecutive statements of finaneidpnance. Presentation of tc
comprehensive income in the statement of stockinglléguity or the footnotes will no longer be alemlv The calculation of net incol
and basic and diluted net income per share willogaffected. ASU 201005 is effective for fiscal years, and interim pes withir
those years, beginning on or after December 151 . 2@hich means that it will be effective for the r@panys fiscal year beginnir
April 1, 2012. Retrospective adoption is required &arly adoption is permitted. The Company doadabeve that adoption of AS
2011-05 will have a significant impact on its firéal position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standaptldle No. 2012-02, “Intangiblesseodwill and Other (Topic 350) Testi
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmer(tASU 2012-02"), which affords an entity the option to first to asseualitativ
factors to determine whether the existence of evantl circumstances indicates that it is moreylilkiehn not that an indefinitiéved
intangible asset is impaired. If, after assesdmegtotality of events and circumstances, an entitycludes that it is not more likely tf
not that the indefinitdéived intangible asset is impaired, then the enstyot required to take further action. Howevéran entity
concludes otherwise, then it is required to deteenthe fair value of the indefinifered intangible asset and perform the quantit:
impairment test by comparing the fair value with ttarrying amount. The amendments are effectivarioual and interim impairme
tests performed for fiscal years beginning aftept&mber 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted, udiig for annual and interi
impairment tests performed as of a date before 2d|y2012, if a public entitg’ financial statements for the most recent annt
interim period have not yet been issued. The Compaes not believe that adoption of ASU 2@2will have a significant impact
its financial position, results of operations osltdlows.

We believe there is no additional new accountiniglgince adopted, but not yet effective that is ratévo the readers of our finan
statements. However, there are numerous new prispasder development which, if and when enacted; have a significant impe
on our financial reporting.

Fair value of financial instruments
Effective April 1, 2008, the Group adopted ASC §Rirmerly, SFAS No. 157), “Fair Value Measurement8SC 820"). ASC 82(
clarifies the definition of fair value, prescribe®thods for measuring fair value and establishfgsravalue hierarchy to classify t
inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:
Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvactiarkets for identical assets or liabilities talale at the measurement date.
Level 24nputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similaetsand liabilities in active markets, quoted sider identical or simile
assets and liabilities in markets that are notvagtinputs other than quoted prices that are obddevand inputs derived from
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 34nputs are unobservable inputs which reflect theorng entity's own assumptions on what assumptitie marke
participants would use in pricing the asset oriligtbased on the best available information.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
2. Allowance for doubtful accounts

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountsf&dawch 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 compr

201C 2011 201z

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc

Balance, April 1 2,59: 1,46( 1,41
Write-off (76§) — —
Write back for the year (365) (45) —

Balance, March 31 1,46( 1,41¢ 1,41°F

Most of the Company trade receivables are generally unsecured, efmephe customer with receivables covered by ¢tiieduranc
under a factoring agreement.

During the year ended March 31, 2010, the Compamyenoff approximately $768,000 for the non recawde trade receivables frc
third party companies. As of March 31, 2011, thenPany had collected $45,000 from Gram PrecisioreScdnc. (‘Gram). Thi

Company believed that the recoverability of the aenmg $1,415,000 was doubtful, and continued thuide this amount in allowan
for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2012.

3. Inventories

The components of inventories as of March 31, 281id 2012 are as follow

2011 201z

$in $in

thousand thousand

Raw materials 1,57¢ 1,471
Work in progres: 1,75( 1,51Z
Finished good: 1,52¢ 1,11¢
4,84¢ 4,10¢F

During the year ended March 31, 2012, based upderiaecomposition and expected usage, the Compatgblished an allowar
for obsolete inventories of approximately $283,0R011: $98,000), which were charged to the conatéid statements of operati
under cost of sales.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Property, plant and equipment, net

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 26hdl 2012, depreciation expenses charged to theoldeued statements
operations amounted to approximately $1,794,000,068®, and $54,000 respectively. As at March 31,02@011 and 2012, ful
depreciated assets that were still in use by tlea@Bamounted to $30,427,000, $31,222,000, and $82Q0, respectively, when tf
were bought.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, theugrdisposed of two apartment units located in 3hen with a combined net bc
value of $97,000 to a third party at a consideratib$252,000 and made a gain of $155,000.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, theuprdisposed machinery with a net book value of, 0 to a third party at
consideration of $25,000 and made a gain of $14,000

Property, plant and equipment were assessed faiimpnt according to the policy described in ndfe).1The Company conclud
that no impairment to property, plant and equipnvesss required for the fiscal year ended March 31,22
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5.

Interests in subsidiaries

Bonso Electronics International Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Place of

incorporation and

Particulars ¢

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as of Mard¢h 2011 and 2012 are as follows:

kind of issued capita Percentage of capital he
Name of compan legal entity registered capit by the Compan' Principal activities
2011 201z
Bonso Electronic Hong Kong, HK$5,000,00! 100% 100% Trading of scales al
Limited * limited liability (US$641,02¢ telecommunication produc
(“BEL") company
Bonso Investment Hong Kong, HK$3,000,00! 100% 100% Investment holdin
Limited limited liability (US$384,61¢
(“BIL™ company
Bonso Electronic PRC, US$12,621,22 100% 100% Production of scales a
(Shenzhen) Co. Limite limited liability telecommunications produ
(“BESCL") company
Bonso Advance: Hong Kong, HK$1,000,00! 100% 100% Trading of scales al
Technology Limited *  limited liability (US$128,20¢ telecommunications produc
(“BATL™) company
Bonso Advanced PRC, US$8,000,00 100% 100% Production of scales a
Technology (Xinxing) limited liability telecommunications produ
Limited company
(“BATXXL")
Modus Enterpris British Virgin HK$7,80( 100% 100% Investment holdin
International Inc. * Island limited (US$1,000
(“MEII™) liability company
Korona Haushaltswarc Germany, EUR511,29; 100% Korone Trading of scale
GmbH & Co. KG limited liability (US$795,48E liquidatec
(“Korone”) partnershif in 201z
Bonso USA, USA, limited US$ 1,00t 100% 100% Trading of scale

Inc. (‘Bonso US/")

liability company

* Shares directly held by the Compa
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

6. o ther intangible assets

Other intangible assets are analyzed as folli

Other intangible asse

March 31,
2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Cost 6,27 5,927
Less: accumulated amortizati (1,779 (1,937%)
Less: accumulated impairme — —
Less: disposal (472) —
4,031 3,99(
The components of other intangible assets arellasvi
March 31,
2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Land use right of factory land in Shenzhen, Guangd®RC 1,647 1,57
Land use right of factory land in Xinxing, Guangdoi®PRC 2,38¢ 2,41:
Taxi licenses in Shenzhen, Guangdong, | — —
4,031 3,99(

All five taxi licenses were disposed of in July PQfor a total consideration of approximately $R08), resulting in a gain on dispc
of approximately $41,000. Amortization expense étation to other intangible assets was approxima$dl64,000, $208,000 a
$176,000 for each of the fiscal years ended Malfgi2810, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

As of March 31, 2012, future minimum amortizatioqpenses in respect of other intangible assetssaf@laws:

$ in thousanc

2013 17€
2014 17¢€
2015 17¢€
2016 17¢€
2017 17¢€
Thereafter 3,11(
Total 3,99(
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

7. Banking facilities
As of March 31, 2012, the Group had general bankawijities for bank overdrafts, letters of crediptes payable, factoring, short-
term loans and lonterm loans. The facilities are interchangeable wotl amounts available of $8,660,000 (2011: $8,8680). Th

general banking facilities utilized by the Group denominated in United States dollars and Honggkdwilars.

The Grou|'s general banking facilities, expressed in Uniteates dollars, are further detailed as follo
Terms of bankin(

Amount available Amount utilized Amount unutilizec facilities as of
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 201:
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 Interes  Repaymen
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand rate terms
Import anc
export
facilities
Combined
limit 6,154 6,154 1,333 1,870 4,821 4,284
Including
suk-limit
of:
Repayable il
Notes HIBOR* full within
payable 4,487 4,487 1,333 1,870 3,154 2,617 +2.5% 120 day:
Bank Prime rate Repayable o
overdrafts 641 641 - - 641 641 + 1% demanc
Other
facilities
HIBOR*
Factoring 2,400 2,400 - - 2,400 2,400 +1.5%
Term Loan - 106 - - - 106 LIBOR* +2%
8,554 8,660 1,333 1,870 7,221 6,790

* HIBOR is the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate
* LIBOR is the London Interbank Offer Rate
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Banking facilities (Continued)
The United States Dollar equivalent amounts of bankacilities utilized by the Group are denomirthie the following currencies

Amount utilized

March 31,
2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Hong Kong dollar: 1,33¢ 1,87(

The Prime Rate and HIBOR were 5.00% and 0.55% ipeura, respectively, as of March 31, 2012. The Pritate is determined
the Hong Kong Bankers Association and is subjecttasion from time to time. Interest rates arejsabto change if the Compa
defaults on the amount due under the facility amdrin excess of the facility amounts, or at treedition of the banks.

Average amount of bank borrowings were $1,653,0@D%i,386,000 for the fiscal years ended 2011 &1@ 2respectively.

The weighted average interest rates of short-temolvings of the Group are as follows:

As of March 31

2011 201z
Bank overdraft: 6.0(% 6.0(%
Notes payabl 2.8(% 2.8(%
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Income tax

The companies comprising the Group are subjeax®h an entity basis on income arising in or detifrom Hong Kong, Germar
the PRC, and the United States of America (“USANe tax rate of the subsidiaries operating in HEogg was 16.5% for the ye
ended March 31, 2012 (2011: 16.5%, 2010: 16.5%}% 3tbsidiary of the Group in Germany was registerech partnership
Germany, which was subject to a statutory tax 0&te4.17% during each of the three years in théodeznded March 31, 2010. 1
Group is not subject to income taxes in the Britfslyin Islands. The statutory tax rate in the U®As 34%, respectively, for the th
years ended March 31, 20:

Hong Kong Tax

BEL, BATL and BIL are subject to the Hong Kong pteftax rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%). ManagemerBBE has determined tt
all income and expenses are offshore and not sutgjd¢dong Kong profits tax. As a result, BEL didtriecur any Hong Kong profi
tax during the years presented. BATL has assespatii¢s for the year and provision for taxatiorsh@een made.

PRC Tax

BESCL is registered and operates in Shenzhen, R, Rnd is subject to a tax rate of 22%, 24% arfb 2&r the years end
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. BT is registered in Xinxing, Guangdong, PRC, andswentitled to &
exemption from PRC income tax for the two tax yesnded December 31, 2008 and 2009 and is entidled50% reduction in PF
income tax for the three years ended December@),2011 and 2012.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC Enterprise Incomer ODaw (the “EIT Law”) was enacted by the PRC government. The EIT
effective January 1, 2008, imposes a uniform ta& od 25% for both domestic and foreigrvested enterprises and revokes the
current tax exemption, reduction and preferenti@htiments applicable to foreigmvested enterprises. However, there is a tram
period for enterprises, whether foreignvested or domestic, that were receiving preféaémax treatments granted by relevant
authorities at the time the EIT Law became effectiynder the grandfathering rules of the EIT Lamtegprises that are subject tc
enterprise income tax (“EITHate lower than 25% will continue to enjoy lowetaawith gradual transition to the new tax rat@ 5
in five years from the effective date of the ElTw.aEnterprises that are currently entitled to exgéoms or reductions from t|
standard income tax rate for a fixed term may camito enjoy such treatment until the fixed termiees.

During the period from January 1, 2008 to March 3110, the Compang’subsidiaries operating in the PRC were subjetidadElT
Law and its standard tax rate of 25%, but the PRigSigiaries are entitled to the grandfathering mives. For the tax years ent
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, BECSL, the CompaPRC subsidiary, was subject to a tax rate of 1588p and 20%
respectively. BESCL is subject to tax rates of 228d 24% for the tax years ended December 31, 20d@2@11, respectively, ant
uniform tax rate of 25% for the tax year ended Ddoer 31, 2012 and thereaft@&ATXXL was entitled to an exemption from P!
income tax for the two tax years ended Decembe2@a8 and 2009. BATXXL is subject to a tax ratel@f5% for the tax years enc
December 31,2010, 2011 and 2012, and will be stibjex tax rate of 25% thereafter.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

8. Income tax (Continued)
(c) Income is subject to taxation in the various caestin which the Company and its subsidiaries dperehe loss before income ta
by geographical location is analyzed as follo
201c¢ 2011 2012
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $in thousanc
Hong Kong 61¢ 2,451 (2,177
PRC (1,289 (3,87¢) (181)
Others 147 (6) 1,452
Total (529 (1,430 (900)
Others mainly include the (loss) / profit from B&ihd the United State
(d)
2010 2011 2012
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand
Deferred income ta (5) - 17
Current income tax expen (4 - (19)
Total income tax expense (9) - (2)
The components of the income tax expense by gebipaddocation are as follow:
201c¢ 2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Hong Kong ©) — (2
PRC — — —
Others — — —
Total (9) — (2
At the end of the accounting period, the incomeligilities are as follows
2011 2012
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Non-curren 2,59¢ 2,59t
Curren 24 44
Total 2,61¢ 2,63¢
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

8. Income tax (Continued)

(€)

Deferred income tax asse
Deferred income tax liabilitie

Deferred tax assets comprise the followi

Tax loss carry forward

Others

Less: Valuation allowance
Less: current portio

Non-current portior

201C
$ in thousanc

(19

2011
$ in thousanc

19

(19 (19)

201C 2011

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
122 48t

(122) (48E)

2012
$ in thousanc

2012
$ in thousanc

784

(784

As of March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the Groupdwmimulated tax losses amounting to $556,000, $2020 and $3,136,000 (1
tax effect thereon is $122,000, $485,000 and $7®3,0respectively, subject to the final agreementhe relevant tax authoritie
which may be carried forward and applied to rediutere taxable income which is earned in or derifredn Hong Kong and oth
countries. Realization of deferred tax assets #@sacwith tax loss carry forwards is dependentrugenerating sufficient taxal
income prior to their expiration. A valuation allance is established against such tax losses wheagement believes it is mq
likely than not that a portion may not be utilizéd of March 31, 2012, the Grougpaccumulated tax losses of $556,000 will expi

2013, and $1,650,000 will expire in 20:

® Changes in valuation allowance are as follc

Balance, April 1
Charged / (credited) to income tax expe

Balance, March 3

201C
$ in thousanc

1,75¢
(1,637)

122

2011 2012

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
122 48t

363 29¢

48kt 784
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(h)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Income tax (Continued)

The actual income tax expense attributable to egsnfor the fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 2d 2012 differed from tl
amounts computed by applying the Hong Kong stayutax rate in accordance with the relevant incomelaw as a result of t

following:
201c¢ 2011 2012
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Loss before income taxi (523 (1,43)) (900
Income tax benefit on pretax income at statutoty 86 23€ 14¢
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiary
operating in other jurisdictior 67 21t 17¢€
Profit not subject to income te 5,06¢ 4,657 4,36¢
Expenses not deductible for income tax purpt (5,019 (5,116 (4715
Tax effect of future temporary differenc 5) — —
Decrease / (increase) in valuation allowa 1,637 (363) (299
(Provision made) / reversal of provision as a ttesil
development of tax rule (@] 7 20
(Utilization of tax losses not previously recogriyé tax
losses not yet recognized (1,837) 364 (299
Total income tax expent (9) — (2

The statutory rate of 16.5% used above is that@migHong, where the Compasymain business is located. The year 2010 has

changed to that rate from 34% to conform to thisrigepresentation.

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted AS©®.74s a result of the adoption of ASC 740, the Camprecognized a $1,170,(
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax bfiseand penalties of $994,000, which were accalifbe as a reduction to the April
2007 balance of retained earnings. The Compangsadehe tax position during the fiscal year endadch 31, 2011 and concluc
that the same tax liability was to be carried favancluded in the total tax liabilities of $2,6000 (2010: $2,602,000, 20
$2,619,000), the uncertain tax liabilities in respef this for the years ended March 31, 2010, 28d 2012 are as follow

Balance, April 1 2,16¢
Increase in uncertain tax liabilities —

201C 2011 2012

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc
2,164 2,164

2,164 2,164

Balance, March 31 2,16¢

The Companys accounting policy is to treat interest and péasts components of income taxes. As of Marct2812, the Compati

had accrued penalties related to uncertain taxtiposiof $nil.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Taxation (Continued)
The Company files income tax returns in Hong Kathg, PRC and various foreign tax jurisdictions. Ehare two subsidiaries whi
operate within each of the Compasiyhajor jurisdictions, resulting in a range of opp@x years. The open tax years for the Com
and its significant subsidiaries range betweenfigeal year ended March 31, 2006 and the fiscal yealed March 31, 2010. T
provisions made as a result of these open tax easesubject to a final agreement by the relevanatithorities.
Leases

The Group has two investment properties under ragt@ement, and the Group will need to pay a ditmmn fee of approximately
$8,000 if the Group decides to terminate both #real agreements before their expiry.

Rental expense for all operating leases amountegpooximately $397,000, $191,000 and $108,00QHerfiscal years ended Ma
31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectivi

Commitments

Capital expenditures contracted at the balance slage but not yet provided for is as follov

March 31

2011 2012

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Construction in Xinxing, Guangdong, PRC b4¢ 7571
54¢ 757

As of March 31, 2012, the Company entered into remtdr agreements to construct factory buildingrelmause, dormitories a
leasehold improvements on the land in Xinxing, BRRC for total consideration of $5,814,000. $5,060@,0ad been paid and
remaining balance of $757,000 is to be paid iretance with the progress of the construction. fiits¢ phase of construction
expected to be completed by December 2012.

Discontinued Operations

On March 31, 2009, the ComparyGerman subsidiary, Korona, sold its assets (atsoreceivable, inventories, toolings
intellectual property rights) to a third party. Koia had no operations since April 1, 2009 and vgasdated in February 2012.

The following table summarizes the result of théiseontinued operations, net of income taxes.

Discontinued Operations (Korona)

201(¢ 2011 2012

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc

Sales 5 - i
Cost of Sales (70) — —
(70 — —
Selling expense (15) — _
Salaries and related co: (127) — —
Administrative expenses (169) (129) —
Operating los: (381) (229 —
Other income 282 — —
Gain on disposal of property (28) _ _

Net loss (126) (129 —




-F-22-




11.

12.

(@)

(b)

(€)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Discontinued Operations (Continued)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilitiethe disposal group classified as held for salatddarch 31, 2011 and 2012 wert
follows:

March 31, 201 March 31, 201

Assets: $in thousanc $ in thousanc
equCash and bank balanc 5 —
RepOwrheseanidcmtainasssts of discontinued opera 5 —
In
AUg| jabilities:
of Rent payabl 68¢ —
EhoeoAccrued charges and deposits 40z —
gggLiabiIities of discontinued operations 1,08¢ —

of Directors authorized a program for the Compamyepurchase up to $500,000 of its common stocls fipurchase program d
not obligate the Company to acquire any specifimber of shares or acquire shares over any spegeidd of time. No stock h.
been repurchased when, on November 16, 2006, thg&uy's Board of Directors authorized another $1,@W0 for the Company
repurchase its common stock under the same remecpeogram. This authorization to repurchase shm@gases the amol
authorized for repurchase from $500,000 to $1,51,0he Board of Directors believed that the comrstmtk was undervalued ¢
that the repurchase of common stock would be beiaéfo the Company's shareholders. During theafigear ended March 31, 20
70,019 ($134,000) shares were purchased undepritggam. No shares were repurchased during the flaeal years ended March
2010, 2011 and 2012. The Company may from timére tepurchase shares of its common stock undeptbigram.

Preferred stoc

The Company has authorized share capital of $100@010,000,000 shares of preferred stock, withyadue of $0.01 each, divid
into 2,500,000 shares each of class A preferreckstdass B preferred stock, class C preferredkstowl class D preferred sto
Shares may be issued within each class from timénte by the Compang’ Board of Directors in its sole discretion withdht
approval of the shareholders, with such designatipower, preferences, rights, qualifications, t&tion and restrictions as the Bo
of Directors shall fix and as have not been fixedhie Company Memorandum of Association. The Company has rsteid an
shares of preferred stock as of March 31, 21

Dividends

No dividends were declared by the Company for edi¢he fiscal years ended March 31, 2010, 2011291, respectively.
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Stock option and bonus plans

On September 7, 2004, the Company’s stockheladdopted the 2004 Stock Bonus Plan (the “StockuBétan”)which authorizes tt
issuance of up to five hundred thousand (500,0088)es of the Compa’s common stock in the form of stock bon

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to (i) celkey employees to remain in the employment ofQbmpany or of any subsidiz
of the Company; (ii) encourage such employees turseor increase their stock ownership in the Comwipand (iii) rewar
employees, noemployee directors, advisors and consultants foricges rendered or to be rendered to or for theefiienf the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Companyebes$ that the Stock Bonus Plan will promote caritinof management a
increase incentive and personal interest in théanebf the Company.

The Stock Bonus Plan is administered by a comméfgminted by the Board of Directors which considtat least two but not mc
than three members of the Board, one of whom d&death nonemployee of the Company. The existing Committee bexmare M
Anthony So and Mr. Woo Ping Fok. The Committee thasauthority, in its sole discretion: (i) to detéme the parties to receive bo
stock, the times when they shall receive such asyatte number of shares to be issued and the temas and conditions of t
issuance of any such shares; (ii) to construe atedpret the terms of the Stock Bonus Plan; (@igstablish, amend and rescind r
and regulations for the administration of the St8ckus Plan; and (iv) to make all other determorati necessary or advisable
administering the Stock Bonus Plan.

On March 23, 2004, the Company’s stockholders abfite 2004 Stock Option Plan (the “2004 Plamtich provides for the grant
up to six hundred thousand (600,000) shares ofGbmpanys common stock in the form of stock options, subjec certail
adjustments as described in the P

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key gmpkto remain in the employment of the Company tanédncourage su
employees to secure or increase on reasonable teainscommon stock ownership in the Company. Then@any believes that t
2004 Plan promotes continuity of management aneased incentive and personal interest in the wetiathe Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee appodiby the Board of Directors which consists ofeaist two but not more th
three members of the Board, one of whom shall bereemployee of the Company. The current committee neesnre Mr. Anthor
So and Mr. Woo Ping Fok. The committee determihesspecific terms of the options granted, includimg employees to be gran
options under the plan, the number of shares subjeeach option grant, the exercise price of eggtion and the option peric
subject to the requirement that no option may ler@sable more than 10 years after the date oftgfdme exercise price of an opt
may be less than the fair market value of the Uity shares of Common Stock. No options grantedeurthe plan will b
transferable by the optionee other than by wilther laws of descent and distribution, and eachoaptiill be exercisable during t
lifetime of the optionee only by the optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuatited®004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surresfdaptions, in common stock,
other property, including a promissory note frora tiptionee, or by a combination of the above, adikcretion of the Committee.
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13. Stock option and bonus plans (Contindg
(a) (Continued)

In October 1996, the Company’s Board of Directgspraved the 1996 Stock Option Plan and 1996 Noni&yee Directors’Stock
Option Plan. Under the 1996 Stock Option Plan,Gbenpany may grant options of common stock to ceranployees and direct
of the Company for a maximum of 900,000 shares. 986 Stock Option Plan is administered by a cotemiappointed by the Bo:
of Directors which determines the terms of optigrented, including the exercise price, the optieriqus and the number of share
be subject to each option. The exercise price tbop granted under the 1996 Stock Option Plan bealgss than the fair market ve
of the common shares on the date of grant. Thermari term of options granted under the 1996 Stocko@gPlan is 10 years. T
right to acquire the common shares is not assignadept for certain conditions stipulated in tB8@ Stock Option Plan.

Under the 1996 Nc¢-Employee Directol’ Stock Option Plan, the n-employee directors were automatically granted stations ol
the third business day following the day of eachuah general meeting of the Company to purchaseesha common stock. T
maximum number of authorized shares under the Ne96Employee Directos Stock Option Plan was 600,000. The exercise jof
all options granted under the 1996 Non-Employee®ars’Stock Option Plan shall be one hundred percenheffair market valt
per share of the common shares on the date of.grhatmaximum term of options granted under thes1l96n-Employee Directors’
Stock Option Plan is 10 years. No stock option rhayexercised during the first six months of itsntexcept for certain conditio
provided in the 1996 Non-Employee Directogbck Option Plan. The right to acquire the commabares is not assignable excep
under certain conditions stipulated in the 1996 -Employee Director' Stock Option Plar

In April 2003, the Company issued options to certiirectors and ni-employee directors of the Company to purchase greggte ¢
372,500 shares of common stock of the Company akarcise price of $1.61. The options shall expmeMarch 31, 2013 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerpisees of these options were equal to the fair etavialue at the time of grant.
such options have been exercised during the yealesdeMarch 31, 2010, 2011 and 20

In March 2004, the Company issued options to aenmair-employee directors of the Company to purchase gneggte of 40,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exepeise of $6.12. The options shall expire on M&Bh2014 and can be exerci
at any time after granting. The exercise pricethefe options were equal to the fair market vatubeatime of grant. No such optic
have been exercised during the years ended Marc2030, 2011 and 201
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13. Stock option and bonus plans (Contindg
(@) (Continued)

In September 2004, the Company issued optionsrtaisenonemployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte of 40,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exeprise of $6.20. The options shall expire on Saper 12, 2014 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerpriees of these options were equal to the fair miavialue at the time of grant.

such option was exercised during the years endedhviid, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

In December 2005, the Company issued options taicemonemployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte of 30,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exemrise of $4.50. The options shall expire on Ddwermd, 2015 and can

exercised at any time after granting. The exerpisges of these options were equal to the fair etavialue at the time of grant.

such options had been exercised during the yededeMarch 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

On November 16, 2006, the Board of Directors of@rmenpany voted to rescind the Company’s 1996 NomiByee DirectorsStock
Option Plan (the “Non-Employee Directors’ Plan”)ll Aptions previously granted under the Non-Emp®yErectors’Plan continu
in full force and effect pursuant to their termsgoént.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, naeshar share options were granted under the 198tk 8ption Plan.

(b) The stock options summary as of March 31, 265 follows:

Weighte(

averag

Numbe exercis:

of options price

Balance, March 31, 201 856,50( $ 3.01
Retired (30,000 $ 7.8¢
Balance, March 31, 201 826,50( $ 2.8¢
Retired (374,000 $ 3.1C
Balance, March 31, 201 452,50( $ 2.61
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13. Stock option and bonus plans (Contindg
(c) The following table summarizes information abolis&bck options of the Company outstanding as atctiM&1, 2012
Weighte

Numbe averag Exercisabl

Weighted averac outstanding remaining life shares i

exercise pric March 31, 201 (years March 31, 201

$ 1.61 342,50( 1.C 342,50(

$ 4.5C 30,00( 3.8 30,00(

$ 6.12 40,00( 2.C 40,00(

$ 6.2C 40,00( 2t 40,00(

$ 2.61 452,50( 1.4 452,50(

The intrinsic value of options outstanding and eigable was $nil, $nil and $nil on March 31, 202011 and 2012, respectively. -
intrinsic value represents the pre-tax intrinsitueathe difference between the closing stock poitthe Companys common stock ¢
the balance sheet date and the exercise priceotbrthe outstanding and exercisable options) thatlavhave been received by
option holders if all options had been exercised/anch 31, 2010, 2011 and 20:

New shares will be issued by the Company upon éuéxercise of stock options.
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Related party transactions

The Group paid emoluments, commissions and/or damsly fees to its directors, officers and formeectors as follows

Year endec Mr. So Hung Gun Mr. Chung Kim Mr. Fok Woo Mr. So Chun Bong
March 31, Anthony Wal Pinc Andrev
Director, Chief Executive Director Director Director
Officer and Treasur
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand
2010 $800 (i) $151 Nil -
2011 $915 (i), (iii) $165 (iii) Nil -
2012 $857 (i), (iii) $161 (iii) Nil $88
Mr. J. Stewar Mr. Henry Mr. George Mr. So Chun Wah
Jackson, Iv Schluetel O'Leary Albert
Former Director Director and Former Director (iv) Chief Financial
Assistant Secretai Officer and Secretar
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand
2010 Nil $78 (ii) $60 (v) $87
2011 Nil $87 (ii) Nil $118
2012 Nil $68 (ii) Nil $118

The emoluments paid to the Grosmlirectors and officers were included in the $ataand related costs, while the consultancy fe
professional fees paid to Schlueter & Associates, Rere included in the administration and genexaenses.

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

Apart from the emoluments paid by the Group as shabove, one of the properties of the Group in H&iogg is als
provided to Mr. So Hung Gun, Anthony for his accoodation.

The amounts for the years ended March 31, 2010l 28di 2012 represented professional fees paidhlu&er & Associate
P.C., the Grou's SEC counsel, in which Mr. Henry Schlueter is ohthe principals

The amount for the year ended March 31, 2011, idreduwnpaid vacation payments of $115,000 and $04@0Mr. So Hun
Gun, Anthony, and Mr. Chung Kim Wah, respectiveljie amount for the year ended March 31, 2012, deduunpai
vacation payments of $57,000 and $10,000 for MrH8o0g Gun, Anthony, and Mr. Chung Kim Wabh, respesjj.

Mr. George C Leary resigned from his position as director of @@mpany on November 16, 20(

This represented a consultancy fee paid to®&orge OLeary for provision of support and management ses/in German
for completing an asset deal to sell Koranassets (accounts receivable, inventories, tookmgl intellectual property righ
to a third party company and for progressing theitlation of Korona

Mr. So Chun Bong, Andrew was elected as director ofGbmpany to replace Mr. J. Stewart Jackson IV dutire Annue
General Meeting of the Company on February 25, 2
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Concentrations and Credit Risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC (inclgdidong Kong) and grants credit to its customerghis geographic regio
Although the PRC is economically stable, it is gl@ossible that unanticipated events in foreigmntdes could disrupt the Growg’
operations.
Financial instruments that potentially subject@m®up to a concentration of credit risk consistagh, trade and notes receivables.

At March 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company had cnesht exposure of uninsured cash in banks of apprately $5,407,000 al
$3,014,000, respectively.

A substantial portion, 57%, 60% and 66% of revenues generated from one customer for the yearsdelidech 31, 2010, 2011 a
2012, respectively.

The net sales to customers representing at le&stof®et total sales are as follows:

Year Ended March 3:

2010 2011 2012
$in $in $in
thousand: % thousand: % thousand: %
Sunbeam Products, In 16,29¢ 57 16,93¢ 60 17,49¢ 66
Gottl Kern + Sohn GMBF 2,57¢ 9 3,97( 14 3,74« 14
66 74 80

The following customers had balances greater ti386 af the total trade receivables at the balaneetstiates set forth below:

March 31,
2011 2012
$ in thousanc % $ in thousanc %
Sunbeam Products, In 962 73 1,23( 59
Pitney Bowes Inc. 51 4 45% 22
77 81

At March 31, 2011 and 2012, these customers acedunt 77% and 81%, respectively, of net tradeivetdes. The trade receivab
have repayment terms of not more than twelve mofithe Group does not require collateral to supfinancial instruments that ¢
subject to credit risk.
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Employee retirement benefits and severance paymeatiowance

With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whedlyned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong gomplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan™ith a major international insurance company tovjate life insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiogd BEL before December 2000, excluding factorykeoes, are eligible to jo
the Plan. Each eligible employee that chooses ttiicgzate in the Plan is required to contribute 6%4heir monthly salary, while BE
is required to contribute from 5% to 10% dependinghe eligible employ¢' s salary and number of years in serv

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPRVRs introduced by the Hong Kong Government and cenued in December 2000. B
joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majaernational insurance company. All permanent H&ogg full time employee
who joined BEL on or after December 2000, excludagory workers, must join the MPF, except forgdavho joined the Plan befi
December 2000. Both the employee’s and employerdributions to the MPF are 5% of the eligible eaygle’s monthly salary ar
are subject to a maximum mandatory contributionH&#$1,000 (US$128) per month. The maximum manda&mployees ant
employer’s contributions per month increased to HR$0 (US$160) respectively since June 1, 2012.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gisugquired to make contributions for each empdoyat rates based upon
employees standard salary base as determined by the law@EhlSSecurity Bureau, to a defined contributiotireenent schen
organized by the local Social Security Bureau speet of the retirement benefits for the Group’playees in the PRC.

The contributions to each of the above schemeseamgnized as employee benefit expenses when theyug and are charged to
consolidated statement of operations. The Grotgt& contributions to the above schemes for theryyended March 31, 2010, 2
and 2012 amounted to $276,000, $318,000, and $289¢dpectivelyThe Group has no other obligation to make paymientsspec
of retirement benefits of the employe

According to the New Labor Law in the PRC whighs effective on January 1, 2009, a company igired, to provide one month’
salary for each year of service as a severance gratyrAs such, the Group recognized a further pionigor severance payment
$182,000 in the fiscal year ended March 31, 20X2s&verance payments for staff in the PRC and ticeraulated provision w
$841,000 as of March 31, 2012, (2011: $659,000¢. d¢trued severance payment allowance is reviewery gear.
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17. Loss per share

Year ended March 3

201C 2011 201z
$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc
Loss applicable to common shareholc
— continuing operation (% 532) ($ 1,43)) ($ 902)
— discontinued operations (% 12€) (% 129) —
Net loss $ 65€) ($ 1,56() ($ 902)
5,246,90. 5,246,90. 5,246,90.
Weighted average shares outstanc share share share
Loss per shar— continuing operation (% 0.10) ($ 0.27) (% 0.17)
Loss per share — discontinued operations (% 0.03) ($ 0.02) —
Net loss per share, basic and dilu (% 0.19) (% 0.29) (% 0.17)

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing nss$ lavailable to common shareholders by the weiginedage number of share:
common stock outstanding. Diluted earnings peresisacomputed in a manner consistent with thatasidearnings per share wl
giving effect to all potentially dilutive shares @dmmon stock that were outstanding during theogefncluding stock options.

The diluted net loss per share is the same asabie bet loss per share for the years ended Matc2@®LO, 2011 and 2012, as

potential ordinary shares (856,500 shares on Mafg2010, 826,500 shares on March 31, 2011, 45%B6@€es on March 31, 20:
from the exercise of stock options are anti-diletand are therefore excluded from the computatiatluted net loss per share.
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Business segment informatiot

The Group is organized based on the producféeits. Under this organizational structure, thewp’s operations can be classified |
four business segments, Scales, Telecommunicafiooducts, Pet Electronics and Others for the figears ended March 31, 2(
and 2012

Scales operations principally involve productiord anarketing of sensdrased scales products. These include bathroonmheki
office, jewelry, laboratory, postal and industsakles that are used in consumer, commercial ahtrial applications.

Telecommunication Products operations principatiyolve production and modification of tweay radios and cordless telephc
that are used in consumer and commercial applitaitibhe Group no longer manufactures and sellsdgienunications products.

Pet Electronics Products principally involve deyetent and production of pedlated electronics products that are used in cosgt
applications.

The “Others” segment is a residual, which principally includée tactivities of (i) tooling and mould charges fecales
telecommunications products and pet electronicdymts, and (ii) sales of scrap materials.

The accounting policies of the Grospteportable segments are the same as those @ekénilthe description of business
significant accounting policies.

Summarized financial information by business segrasrof March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is as follows

Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operating assets as anc Capita
Net sale profit /(loss) March 3. amortizatiol expenditur
$inthousanc  $inthousanc  $inthousanc  $inthousanc  $inthousanc
2012
Scales & Pet Electronics Products 26,68 (229) 17,147 54 3,41F
Total operating segmen 26,68 (229 17,145 54 3,41¢
Corporate — — 6,021 17¢€ —
Group 26,68: (229) 23,16¢ 23( 3,41¢
2011
Scales 25,90z (554) 9,16¢ — 584
Telecommunications Produc 2,05¢ (202) 4,32¢ — 691
Others 42¢ 104 102 — —
Total operating segmen 28,38 (652) 13,59¢ — 1,27¢
Corporate — (979 8,211 307 —
Group 28,381 (1,639 21,807 307 1,27¢
Discontinued operatior 5
Total Assets 21,81:
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18. Business segment information (Continued

(a) (Continued)

Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operatiny assets as anc Capita

Net sale profit / (loss March 3: amortizatiot expenditur
2010
Scales 25,17 1,14( 8,53¢ 657 22t
Telecommunications Produc 3,022 (925) 3,87( 73C 26€
Others 34¢ 13t 69 — —
Total operating segmen 28,54: 35( 12,47¢ 1,387 491
Corporate — (1,009 11,01« 571 —
Group 28,54 (655) 23,48¢ 1,95¢ 491
Discontinued operatior 20C
Total Asset: 23,68¢

Operating profit / (loss) by segment equals toparating revenues less expenses directly attrilritalthe generation of the segment’
operating revenues. Operating loss of the corpaegenent consists principally of salaries and eelabsts of administrative staff,
administration and general expenses of the Gralgntifiable assets by segment are those assetarthased in the operation of t
segment. Corporate assets consist principally sfi @nd cash equivalents, deferred income tax aasdtsther identifiable assets
related specifically to individual segments.

(b) The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and tR&CPThe manufacture of components and their asgeimta finished produc
and research and development are carried out iRR@. Subsidiaries in Germany, Canada and the dJ&itates were responsible
the distribution of electronic scales and telecomitations products in Europe and North Americatifes operations are integratec
is not practicable to distinguish the net incomeweéel among the activities in Hong Kong, and theCP

Total property, plant and equipment, net by gedgjg areas are as follows:

-F-33- March 31 March 31 March 31
201C 2011 2012

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc $ in thousanc

Hong Kong and US/ 1,181 1,082 1,04¢

The PRC 1,12¢ 2,47¢ 5,92¢

Total property, plant and equipme 2,307 3,55¢ 6,971
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18. Business segment information (Continued

(c) The following is a summary of net export sales bpgraphical areas, which are defined by the fihgdraent destination, constituti
10% or more of total sales of the Company for tharg ended March 31, 2010, 2011 and 2

Year ended March 3:

2010 2011 2012
$ in thousanc % $in thousanc % $in thousanc %
United State! 19,79¢ 69 18,89: 67 19,94( 75
Germany 3,92 14 5,551 20 4,98¢ 18
Other EU countrie 68t 3 1,011 3 77C 3
Asia and other 4,13¢ 14 2,92¢ 10 987 4
28,54: 10C 28,38’ 10C 26,68: 10C
(d) The details of sales made to customers constitdid®¥¢g or more of total sales of the Company arebeis:
Year ended March 3:
Busines

segmen 2010 2011 2012
$ % $ % $ %
Sunbeam Products, In Scale 16,29¢ 57 16,93¢ 60 17,49¢ 66
Gottl Kern + Sohn GMBH Scale 2,57¢ 9 3,97( 14 3,74¢ 14
18,87 66 20,90 74 21,24 80
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Atlention: Mr. Albert So

Dear Sirs,

BANKING FACILITIES

Managing wealth for yow, with e,

With reference o our recent discussions, wa, Hang Seng Bank Limited {the “Bank”) hava
revigwad your banking faciifies and are pleased to offer the fofiowing revised banking faciliyf
facilities {the “Facilities”} io the borrowen(s) specified below {the "Borrower™}.

The Facilites will be made available on the terms and conditions set awt in this letter and he
Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities attached and upon satisfactory complation

of the security specified Delow,

The Faciliies are subject fo review at any time and in any evert by 31 January 2013 and also
subject 1o cur overriding right of repayment on demand, including the right 1o call far cash cover an
damand for prasoective and contingent liabilities. The Bank shall have an unrestrictad discretion to
cancal or suspend, ar delesming whathar or ot o pemil deawings in ralation 10, the Facilites.

1. Borrower

Bonso Electronics Limited
Bongso Advanced Technalogy Limifed

2. Facilities and Limits

(I} Facilities awvailable to Bongo Advanced Technology Limited and Bonso

Elactrenics Limited ("Borrowing Group 17)
Cambine Limit
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Bonso Eleshronics Limited
Qur Ref; Commarcial Banking - A120115 & A120206

(m

Combire Limit

- Standby Documentary Cradits
BOC)

- Bank Guarantee [GTE)
Documeniary Credits (DC)
- Trust Recsipt {TR)

Local  Documentary  Credits
{Local DOY

- Trust Receipt under Local
Cocumantary  Cradits (TR
ursder Local DC)

Im@ort Trade Leans {ITL)

Documents  Ageingl  Paymant
{DF)

Decuments Against Acceplance
oA}

Factoring Faciliy (FTG)

Megotiation  under Documentany
Cradits with discrepancies (LG}

Treasury Product{s) Faciity [ERL)

Total

(HKD7 500,000)
[(HKDT, 800,000

[(US01,000,000)
(HKD48,000,000)
[iHKDA 8,000,000
{HKD4E 000,000}

HKD43,000.000]

{HEKD35, 000,000

[HKDHE, 000, 000)

(HEZ4E, 000,000

(US02,480,000)
HIKD15,000.000
USD34,353,333
{Notioniat Limit)
HKDE3,000,000

USD34,335,335

Facilities available to Bonso Advanced Technology Limited ("Borrowing Group

illl}
Term Lean Facilify (TLY
Total

Grand Total

i @R EE M Hang Seng Bank Limited

USD08, 200
USD106,200
HKD62,000,000
USD34,439,533
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Bonsd Elestroniss Limied
Our Ref: Commercial Banking = A130918 & AT20208

Mote:

(&} The aggregate autstanding under 0D, S0DC, GTE, TR, TR under Local D, ITL, DA

| and FTG facilities shall net at any fime exceed HRDAE J00,000,

(b} The agoregate culstanding under SDC and GTE facillies shall nol al any ime axcasd
HE DT 800,000

(o) The agoregate cuistanding of all sub-limits shall not at any ime excead the Fagility
Lirrit of that Facility and the Total Factlity Limit

3 Facilities and Conditions

Owvardraft Facility o Account Mes.:
(For Borrowing Group [} (1) 288-229625-001 of Bonso Elecironica Limited
(2) 259-358722-001 of Bonso Advanced Tachnology
Limite

Interest: 1% per annom over BLR on daily balanceas,
payable monthly in amears.

Interest on Unauthorized Overdraft: 8% par annum over

BLRE
Dosumentary Cradits ¢ Far issuanes of dacumentary cradits for the accaunt of tha
(Far Borrowing Group [y Borrowear in favour of third parties and covering impart of

gocds in the waws acceptable to the Bank andfor
aceaplance of Blls drawn thereundar.

[ Trust Receipt ¢ For trust receipt facility refating to goods imported and

[ {Far Barrowing Group |) finarced under the Bank's documentary credits issued for
the account of the Borrower with tenor up to 120 days less
any usancelcredit pericds granted by the soppliars of the
Barrower,

The interest shall be 2.5% per annurn over HIBOR or the
Bark's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher for HKD foan
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cosl af
Funds, whichevar is higher far Foreign Cumranoy loan.

Local Docurmentary - For issuance of documenizry aredils far tha account of the

Credits Berrower in favour of third parties / local beneficiaries and

{For Bomawing Group 1) caverng Import of goods by caling for simple | inseclre
shipping evidence satisfactery 1o the Gank.

#eE TR Hang Seng Bank Limatad
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Bonss Elestronics Limited
O Ref: Commarcial Banaking — AT20198 & A120206

Trust Receipt under Local ¢ Far trust receipt faciity relating to goods imported and

Dacurnentary Credits financed wrder the Bank's Local DG with lenar up te 120
(For Barrowing Group 1) days,

The intarast shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or tha
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is highar for HKD loan
and Z.5% par annum aver LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Fundg, whichever is higher for Foreign Currency loann.

Imporl Trade Loans v For edensicn of trade loans to finance the Bormoeers

{For Borrowing Group 1) impart of grods as evidenced Dy ils suppliers’ invoices and
any olher relevant documents as requirad. The availabilily
of any paricular trade loon wilk Be subjest to such
conditions as ihe Bank may decide from time to time with
tencr up to 150 days.

Tha interesl shall be 2.5% per annum cver HIBOR o the
Bank's Cost of Funds. whichaver Is higbes lor HEKD lean
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Funds. whichaver is highar for Foreign Currenoy loan,

Slardioy Documentary - For issuance of standby documentary credits for Lhe

Credits account of the Borrower in favour af third pariies and

{Far Borrowing Group [} oovering sarvices andior other parformances in the ways
acceptable o the Bank andlor acceptance of bils drawn
theraunder,

The Borrower shall mimburse the Bank immediataly on
demand all amounts of claims under any stardby
documantary cradit issued for its account. Any amound no!
reimbursad by il 1o lhe Bank shall bear dafault interast at
such rate as the Bank may al s absolule discretion
detarming fram time o ftme,

Documants Against ¢ For purchase of decumantarny export DR bills drawn on
Payment parties accaptable o fhe Bank,

{For Barrowing Group 1)

Documants Againat i For purchasze of documcntany export VA bills drawn en
Accaptance parties acceplable 10 the Bank with lenaer up 1o 120 days,

{For Barrocwing Group 1)

The intarast shall be 2.5% per annurm avar HIBOR ar the
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever s higher for HKD loan
and 2.58% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Fundsz, whichever is higher for Foraigr Currency loar,

L ETHRASE Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Banso Electronics Limited
O Bef: Commercial Banking = A120118 & 8120206

Megotiation under
Decumantany Cradits with
discrepancies

{For Bormowing Groug 1)

Factoring Facility
{For Borrawing Group 1)

Bank Guaranlee
{For Borrowing Groug 1)

Treasury Product(s)
Facility
{For Borrawing Group )

Term Loan Facility
(For Borrowing Group 1)

For negofiation of discrepant documents, secured or
unzecuned by goods, presanted urder axport documentary
cradits issued by banks accaptable to tha Bank.

Subject to terms and condilions set out in saparale latter
{with subject "Ofar Leller — Factoring Agreament™),

For issuance of bank guarantze for the account of the
Bormower in favour of third parties in the ways acceptable
b the Bank.

Product: Spat/Forward Exchanga/Oplion

Mational Amount: USDE4, 333,333

Tarms and Conditions:
All transactions are subject to the terms of an 1S0A Master
Agreement between the Borrawer and the Bank.,

The Bank reserves the right al ils absolute discretion to
decide whalher of not this facility may be ulilised in any
paricular instance, to spacify conditions on which it may
be wifised and the terms of any individual transaciian,

Treasury Produet(s) facilities remaln sublect to-the Bank's
avarriging right to call for cash caver on demand if in tha
Bank's view 2 negative forgign exchange position requirgs
such cover. Furher, the Bank may close out any ar ait of
the Borrower's outstanding forward forelgn excharge
contracts and demand settameant of the balance due,

Al the terms and conditions shall remgin unchanged as
stated in our facility letler dated 16 Decembsr 2071 with
Gur Ref: A111206 - Jade Generations.

R EAEE Hapg Seng Bank Limited

Aeeabey HSEE Gromp 00500 M



Bonso Elpctronics Limited
Gur Ref; Commercial Banking = A120118 & A120206

4. Security

The availability of the Facilities is conditional upon the Bank's receipt of the
following documents in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank:-

For Bonst Advancsd Techrology Limited

(1} An Assignment of Insurance Policy in the Bank's standard form execuled by Bonso
Advanced Techralogy Limited as policyholdens) and as baneficiary(ies) (o assign by
way of security to the Bank all the rights, tittes, interests and benefits in and to tha
Palicy and the proceads of tha Policy free fom all encumbrancas, for the general
banking facilities ard Term Laan Faciity staled in the facilily letter dated 16 Decamber
20011, with wur referance ne A111208 — Jade Generations.

Thie Barrower and the corporate quarartaris) (if any} and the corparate security providen(s)
{if any) shall provide certified true copies of any consent, license, approval or authorization
of, or registrafion or daclaration wilh any govemmaental adthority, bureau ar agency
required in connection with the axecutien, dalvery, parformance, validity and anforceability
of this facifity and alt other documants requirad by tha Bank,

The Borrower and the corporate guarantor]s) {if eny) and the corperate secunty provider(s)
(if any) shall pravide such ather documents, items ar evidence as the Bank may reascnably
request from time ta time.

The Bank shall continue to hold:-

For the Bormower

(1}  Cross Guarantee dafed 27 Juns 2051 for unlimited amount from the Borrower,

{2}  Guarantee dated 27 June 2041 for unfimited smount fram Bonso Electronics
International fng.

Far Bonso Advaneed Technolegy Limited

(1} ISDA Master Agresment, with lhe 1ISDA Scheduls to the Master Agreement, dated
28 June 2011 made between Bonso Advancad Technology Limited and the Bank.

For Bonsa Eleclronics Limited

{1y |SDA Master Agreement, with the [SDA Scheduls fo the Master Agresmant, dated
11 duiy 2011 made between Bonsg Electronics Limited and the Bank,

HAE AT Y Hang Seng Bank Limited

Mumber HREC Crony 0 0 s



Bonso Ekzciromics Limied
Gur Kef:  Commercial Banking - AT20118 & A130200

5. Undertakings

The Borrower and the under-mentioned undertaking parties (if any) shail continue to
undartake to the Bank as follows:-

1) The Borrower shall provide to the Bank a cedified copy of quarterly management
account within 30 days after tha end of ralevant acocount pariod.

12} Bonse Electronics International Inc, and its subsidiaries! asscciated companies shall
not pledoe any assats without the Bank's pror consent.

{31 The Borrower undertakes that for any Faciliies denominated in Renminki (if any), it
will ot dicecty or indirectly on-lend the proceeds of zuch Fascilibes to (i) any
individuals and {it) any Designated Business Cuslomers if the procesds of such
Facilties {or any other Renminki procesds derived therefrom) are direclly or
indirectly credited to Ranminbi accounis for the category of Dasignated Businass
Cusiomers which are maintained for limited purposes of handling  Renminbi
cashnotes oblained in their ordinary course of buginess as Designated Business
Customers and for Renminbi bond imvestrment.

"Creslgnated Business Customers” means eslablishments that have had a business
refationship with a Hong Kong Renminki businass participating bank for mara than
fhrae years which engage |In commercial refail,  calerdng,  accommodation,
fransportation serises, communications sendces, medical services, or educational
zarvices, including such establishments that have had a busingss relaticoship with
sucn participating bank for less than three years, bubwith concrete evidance to show
Ihal they have he aclual relevanl Dusiness background,

Tha Berrowar shall and agrea to indemnily the Bank for all losses and liabillties
incurred or suffered by the Bank arising out of or in connection with any breach of
the above undariaking by the Borroaer,

(4}  The Barrower and the corporaie guarantes(s) {if any) shall provide o the Bank a
certified copy of fs annual audited accountsifinancizl statements within 150 days
after the end of each financlal woar and such other relevant financial information as
Lha Bank may fram time to time reasonably regueast.

(5)  Each of the Borowsr and the corporate guarantee(s) (f any) and the corporata
security provider(a) (if any) shall immediately inform the Bank cnce there are
changes of ile directors or beneficial sharehclders or amendment o ils
memarandurn and adiclas of asscciation or equivalenl constilulional decurments and
shali ansure that such changesfamendmeant are updated in the company ragistry of
its place of incorparation prompély.

MM LE Hang 5eng Bank Limived
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Bonso Elcirenics Limided
Qur Ref: Commercial Banking - A120918 & A120206

BG. Fuas

A fzcility review fes of HKDS0,000 will be debited from the account of Bonso Electronics
Lirnited maintzinad with the Bank at tha expiration of 14 days from tha date of this leiter
unless the Bank within ¥ Business Davs fram the daie of this letter receives the Borowar's
writien notification that the Facilities are na longer reguired.

Upan compleding each review of the Facilities, the Bank is authorised lo debit the curren
accouni maintzined by the Borower with the Bank for the faciity review fee as the Bark
may prascria fram time to time.

Section 83 of the Bankino Ordipance

Section 83 of tha Banking Ordinance (Cap. 158, Laws of Hong Kong) has imposed on ws a5 a
bank certain limidations on advances o persons ralated to our directors or employeas. In
accepting the Faciliies, the Borrower should advise us whether the Bomower is in any way related
to any af cur dirgstars or employess within the maaning of Section §3 and in ke absence of such
advice wa will aazuma ihat the Borrowar is nol g0 ralated. VWe would also ask that if the Borrower
becomas 0 related subseguent to accepting the Faciites, the Bormower should immediataly
advise us in writing,

Please ararge for the enclosed copy of this latter to be signed by the Barrower and all guaramors
and security providers of the Facilities and raturn the sama to the Bank with Board Resclution]s)
and Shareholder's Resclution(s) (if applicable) of the Borrawar and all guarantars and security
providers before 13 March 2012, fziling which sur offer shall lapse unless it s extended by us at
our absolule discretion.

By accapting thiz Facility Leiter, you would agree to channel all your remittance tansactions and
imsurance arangement o the Bank, Our Cash Management & Payment Services Departmeant and
Commercial Sales Department would contact vou to offer our services on remitiance and
ingurance respecively.

Should you have any quanes, pleass do not hasitats bo contact tha following persons:-

Querias an Namea Telephona Mo,
Banking arramgement M5, Chiang lok Man Cally 21584108
Factoring amangement Ms. Caral Chang 21858200
Insurancs hr. Sfanley Mg SEG2505E

Ir. Jaobin L 21982822
Remittance Pr. Biliy Chow 21934654

Remittanca Helling 21986519
Waaglth management M. Mandy Chan 219855920
Executicn of documents Documentation Hotline 21982094

Kindly retum the accepted Facilily Lefier and executed documenis fo Credit Operations
Manager, Credit Operations Department, 12/F, B3 Des Yoeux Road Central, Hong Kong,

EERTHER OR Harg Sang Bank Limited
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Bongo Electronics Limited
Gur Ref: Commaercial Banking - AT20118 & A420206

Wa frust that you will make active yse of the Faciities and are plessad to be of continued
assislance.

Yours faithiully,
For Hang Seng Bank Limiled

e I
P |
& x: £
Jassica Hung Jones Chung
Senior Wica President Wica Prasidant
Portfolio Management and Compliance Farifollo Management and Compliance
Corporate and Commescial Banking Corporste and Commercial Banking

Wil wh

1ANe harehy acoept the Facilities and agres to ba bound by all the terma and conditions set cut in thiz
latter and tha Standard Termz and Ceondilions for Banking Faciiies, which Wwea have read and
understood. 3

TGS LT,

L cha'u-;-:a Lirmited——

Barnso

IWe agree to act a5 quarantor sscurity provider of the Facilities upen the terms and conditions sei
cut i this lettar and tha Standars Tarms and Conditions for Banking Faciibies.
For and on bedel s

BONSO ELE S5 WITERRATEOMARL i
s

Barso Electronics Internationa! Ine.

HAERFTHELT Hanhg Sena Bank Limited
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HAMNG SENG BANMK

Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities

tlul'lnll:lnns snd Inferpratalian

I Aty Leller @ad \hess Sancam Terms . and
l|l'||$B=ﬁ delmw Glarwiss o B camlnd clFecaien requpes:-
“Bank® means Hang Seng Senk Limited which inciudes all s
kranches and alffices wherever situated and |15 sUCcEssOrs and
FELIIER
"B fade® mwane BIBGR. LIBGR. SI008 ar such other inlerest
wata an B bkting and bocroweng belwesn Danks in other interbank
markal g may be qualed g the o imerest mie for he celoessd
Fazibtiag Svd apasfiod i the slovant Faciily Lothes;
SELRT maang e etk wiich e Bank Samdanoia ar apphes frem lims
fo e @a jia bt |i:‘\l;§|'.§ e e lending Hosg Kong delars o, &
applicable, Lisited Siates dobars or alhar foraign dunancy, whidh eata
|5 sabpect 10 futiualicn al B Gank's dacmlion
“Borrower” moats ihe baroenr, and whete thare s ooes than
berrower, 2l roferancas o the "Baraser shill moaiy af gxh paracis
er any o of them spacitad inthe Fasiby Laller,
“Husiness DEy" maans a dg_:r alhar than & ﬁawrdg G B purecsl
holiday withine (e l'l“ﬁ"ﬂ'li e Ganaral Hole 'ﬁll'lﬁl'll:* [Cﬁ
44, Laws of Hong Kangl] o which wwnaraal ks arg apan fu
busiesa in Hang Kengs and, if ag prireipal finanssl r,.unlrg
of the relauon curfeney a0 inilizrizqns ulrarq:l Rl

Cost ol Funds” meana tha oast 1o the Sank of funding the Faciktios
from whanever a0 ) I may reasonally seleol;
“Faclities: means 1o bankiy Tactitios made sunlaplo oy the Eaneta
Ihe ar;
*Faglily Leller means the Taglily ksior issied by Ihe Bonk m fhe
Baraeer in selalion bo he Facfiliog,
“Hang Kang” mears he Hang Kosg Spesal Adrinisinslive. Regian of
tiee Pgaphe's Rapubbs of Chira
*HIE faans b Hoibg Kn::m] Inlarfoank Difared R cudhad by thi
Bank fior thia rebawvmed periad, wheh e ig sulpe! 16 Thaestion at the
Bank 3 dagmtice
SLIEDAT magrd g Landan Intiviank Cdlarsdd Rale quoled by the
Bank o tho nelevass periad, which e is sublecd o ledhssion al 1ha
Hank's dsscredon;
“Margin” maana e frorasi margin (e D pRrcaniAgE rEe par
miinaT) specibed in e Faciliy Lol
"Cigotafson Dy MEBRS W Falaton 50 o wod far wiich an Etencs
rale 15 10 oo detormined, the fist doy of thal peried unless makel
proctice dilfevs in the felevant inlerozai market inowhich case iho
Cuntalion Cay will be deterdnad In aeecidance alih markat prazscs
In b redetmnl fntesbank macaet [and i quelation woukl normally be
g;nn oy leading banks in tha relavant makel en mane e one day,

Crostalian O wil be thd Ingt of theae dayal;
*EMB Piome Rale” moars the fate whicn the Hank annoanses o
aprling frem fine o fime as ils baee refe for Ranmiye [nanoe, which
rale Is subject o Humualion at the Bani's discrelion;
“5IBOR" mears Ihe Singepore Interbank Cifersd e quoled by the
2ank for the relevan pariod, which rate is subject b lustoatkon at The
flank's discredion; b B 3
'Euhﬁ:ﬁarr o the mescing given 0 i in the Corpanies Ordrescs
20 ang

'Surmz'lmnl. miar & auppieanent o theas Staadard Terme and

Canditigns,

In (e Facility Letiar ang «.I'l!ﬁu SlmJard Tarng and Cosdilions,

ufiag 1B Gonlea elbereise

far Ay selerance o 3 .,mw Il'ldl.ll!ln an ingiviens, B oohmpEy,
a paneeeEie, 8 s mpﬁmsm a1 8N urinGEerlad Bad
Ane fE fudtnieds and Aeaian

iy any relerance boom mscumnnl inclusdes thal sacumant s

lad, vaiag, b I ar faalalad iy ay

TR R LG Erve 10 S

job ang referenen looan angsiment ndodos b enactanl e
n:r-a.f nd_led or re-aracied and-any suhsidiarg logistasian made
umdier it

1) wonds impamieg ihe singular incude the siaal ang voe arsa
and weels iNealing & gauﬁm'umh.da iy gandan

dm) fhe waros Conaait, Cinelededal”, Snelubed and Te perlisdar de
not Fredl (he geammlity of &y précading wands and e ael o b
can g A ietitad U dhe game sas 63 the pradeing
wirTE wieeE & wider cOnEnaGln i3 poasaie a

in MHGS arg !"l'lﬂ'l'IBd Ter mefEsanca anly and N‘Q e 1] I‘QWW
in eansiing lhe Sacdily Latler and ihwan Standard Teors s
ol ors,

Banh's rights

The Bank resprees the nghd fo ferminebe any offar of faciiiles sat
aul @ the Faciity Lelber by notice Lo the Ecercwsr without glving any
teason ard the Borgerer shall nol be enliled Lo claim any domopes
ar pompeneation, 100 such larmiration Trom the Bane

The Jark =hall haws ihe sighl at sme fme o requie any secumy or
furgher secunty lo be prowded by dhe Bawowes or any tvrd party
I secura the FPaclities oo any obser pbligatons of the Borgeer to
the Bank, Al lhe r»quucl af ke Hark, Borrowir shall soscyis
sach deenmanty aad parforin sech st a3 the Bank may Soneider
fag=hsary (0 Crede A partect the teodred sacity,

Iderest

The Bxni chall be soesfed fo debit o fnbes = nd gavable b
ihe_Eeer under e Faclifes fram. any excount e .\vc.l.l;ﬁu iz ’l

Hang Seng Bank Limited

4.

G
8.1

Default Immnsl

Arestsans i zuase $|q:_|_1dn
Jtﬁ.f:qﬁllll:ﬂ ;-# Ler

ael | or ol e uc u npa [
ijUIbﬁ i1 g'fe'rnuﬂ I o r:in us. fha:ﬁglnﬁl T
ik absoiute am ||m o

Ghanges 1o Caboulation of inberest

Warigt dizrupbian

o a HE i A B gegurs in
LI IT ks ]

E)
FRARETH, 1
il oAb Eny lime on e atizn 1nr 0l jnarEs
" mlﬂa mlgelm:nuﬁ Adelarmmalian I
'g_rar.gj,—hﬁ' 1 c_gay: o il o andadn
=

brawings against Unclearnd Funds

IF b Bank geanits I Bedrdawiar I doae 0@t loidi e be ool
G Iranafarsed from ary adcount, the Gamewar ahall an demantd
rEElures tha Bank in S the ameent 3 disen il dhe Baenk dozs
iy mml-.-a ha Funda in full al Bva i the Back Gughl ic haw
recaived the sama of if, aler e Sar hok gooeatid e Eanalar, he
Bank is prevented from collecting o tealy dnakes with the funds in
apmordanas wWillh usand bankrg praction.

Redusal of Payment

The Bomewar hesaby Srevecably sotrizes the Bank to reduas
paymanl of any e, h“ G any @ skiiwnent the paymes of
which would reduce t Borowsrs credil balance with the Bane
belos the ameunt of bofsd indeblegness owng by the Bomoweer o the
Bank whether sdudly or canlingently

Barrower's Rcoouris

Trvr Bonnk gy, 5 any {75, cmidng soy exishng sccounl and Gpen
$l'~:.' l'|ﬂ'- atsEek in th e of B Dorowe and no Rk

sl G, PEsaHE Or pa_.-mema iy snch neer acsmame shal
m‘l’nad, thi liahidling of tha Sdeewar

Fepreseniatians and Warrantias

The Hormower rapresents aivd warrants 1o the: Bank that-

(@) inorespect of &1 ransactions under tha Faciilies @ & &cling As
rincipa and ron m&

(b} i duly ecepn and walidy exisfeay under the lawol ila
N poraion;

(# ila letel pariwings ang L L aupl Gr gantingant and
inchuding g susns owing ey, ara wills 55 Sawara
undir Thix e of ila canstiutionad aEcunsmne]

(dy il has tw power 59 anter inlo B Faclily Latler s g saiform
s cidialians chareunder and &l coarporala and athar Seions
reqred w0 autnonize the exnsrion of The Faclily Letter and tha
performance of (s oiigaticns thereundsr haee heen duly taken;
and

(ey ol octs, conddons and things nequircd bo o done: fulilied and
ferfommed in order ic &nsang thal the obligalions 1o be & suned
by it under the Fooibty Letier aoe begod walid and Binding have
been done, futliled and peronmed

Undetakings

withcul ¢ ce {0 any ofiver undemasings of the Bormwser 10 the
Saank. My rowBr unaciakes oo the Gank fhat o fong as any of
the Faalities s mage svaiable ic the Borower o any amoiend
remamna aulslanging whdar the Facitties, the Scerower shall al all
wrigs promplly agviae the Dank of any maolensl adwerse change
it P spailion (hnancid o glhereise] of the Towasr of any of
itd Subsiciary and nedly the Bans of any liigeton, arbitration. or
PERGER k. peTEng or theealered agains the oA ar any od
ha Subm‘:lg-u'r which mighl metesiaily ascd the contnued op=rations
ar finantial gandificn ol tha Burrower i the Sonower falls to

Wledior FISBIC: (it
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prosdde such advos or notioe bo the Bank within aduen (7] Gaps
aller the Sofmowe’ has knowledge of suoh changi af prossecin x
al oulslandings wnder e Facilfes shal become immsdabely
and poyzols and lhe Sank shall have the nght o denesd mur-ad-ala
repayment of such oulstandings.

Fags and Equmu-s

i
Al fﬁ! Egml g F;: e sl
tmhn
far 1 e BT ﬁlgﬂﬁ-llu‘] Cacilifies are cang
e o mlﬁls firwn Al any me,
[EETTETEE

be inEured sgalnet
ks of lirs, tunhqum (Ilm uhuul. and huw Inmﬂﬂln Al
A -

An, rlpmpnrt marpaged 1o the Bank shal
5

Lyphesn, w

for tho Foclity amours o "t coet of reratating ek properdy. Tha
Insuronce shall bo lasen oot with Hang Ser Gsnerol Insuranss
(Hoag Eonal Compony Limiled. oo such athes insurancs nny
wilh the Bank's prioe qp-_oruv# il the Bonk's sake disiebion ond the
insurance polcy danoiing he Banm Inlum:l. a1 Gchanges, tapather
wdih the receipl for premben poid, snall be fodoed wilh ke Bank on
or mefomn owecullon of the morbgagn mlur the progecly; e refesal
p-om:y. oiso weh the Bark's interesl being dengled Shareon, shal

wilh tee Bank no laler fban 1L days prics bc ihe rﬂnz‘nul
dabr the policy. CEherwise, the Bank wil ingwe lhe propsdy an
ponall of -$he Bovrower, the srm'nr.m of which ahall e delaid b ihe
aatrw.u-s ACLTAT wu:"l the Barx, I the wauned amourd @ baaed on
s pRiEatae el cnsl, B weiRls med pdviisination Tea akall b
lihﬂl'l?ﬂd fur tha Inlhﬂ H'F'ﬂl aaily sfgeqeanl wadws, The Bank fﬂ;‘r
eafe an updaied vdyalion oot al anr srven @ W ek il gl
wnlip o e Shakl e for the noooos of ihe Bormower.

Wn‘m cHaed b the Bonk shall be Insursd dor the full
sag tb wgiad of e machicery whan il is now. The Insurance
shall ka taken oul win Harg Senp Generad Inswance (Hong 1
Gamarny Limibad ar such oiher insurancs company with e Banks
peiar apeeovid @t fhe Bank's sole discre¥on and he insurance polioy
eenatg e Bank's Intarest oo chnrgas, legeiher with the reosipl o
S BEes Shadl e odasd witn the Bank on o befors drasdown
o i focileg. Thea renewal poicy, oEo wilh the Bonk's imberest noled
dharaen, ahak b lodged wilh The Bank s later than 14 dnfs price 1o
iho renewal dole of the policy. Cdherwise, the Bank wil insure the
mochingry on ke=hall of the Boroser, the preméum o shich shall be
debiked {o the Borawer's acceunl weth e Bark

Taxaos

Al pavments 1o be mads by e Bormcawer, any gueaeaniar, zanunty
prowider ar cthor pesson (ocolleclvaly “the oblbgars” and each “an
obligor) lo 1o Eonk fn respest of the Faeililies or unger any
dotuments reaing to the Foolfios shali be mass do the Bank as
sooaitied by the Honk without any selodl, counterdaim: or pondlion
and Iren and clear of al prassnl ang feore saxes. SeducionE o
wilhhokings ol fny nalure whetstewer, Hoaf an
rae] 1o maka any deduction o withhelding
Iy ur ctiersiss from ag il 1o the Bark, the sum due kom
thal ehligor In reepect of such payment shall b ircreassd 4o the
ulcbmt Nacapaary ko ankam toet alier Lhe mbking of such daduclicn
the Baric tapkivae an the dus dele ler gach munt
[enf ey, s from ay bsbiliy in respest of such deduciion o
wilhhoking] # nel gum squal ba the sum which the Bank wouls e
resceived had m3 sich deduslon or withhclding been made o reguired
Ig ke made = thes ooligees shall oinlly and eemraly srdsmcily the
Bank againet any loases, lagitlies, intévess, peredlios, o cosie and
~sn3 piyakin or incurred by reasen ol any falube of the relevant
higur I sk sy such deduction or withhokling 6¢ by reason of any
incrésent phyTbint ma being mads oo the due date far such
Upon el ol the Bakl the alligom shall ginlly 5% an ant
pratiplly SEiver fa the Badk svidance aalisfadedy IS the Bank that
fustt dgduetion ay wikkadding has Lean madg or ﬁaﬂ apphcakiay any
approgeisie paymant poEd 10 refasan| taw aufhn
Any lan o cirarge refared v in e Foclily Letier and tese Stondon
Toerms ond Condeions b5 oxclusive of any value added Lax, goods and
seraees laxor any cahear ax whics mighl 2e ohargeabls in coresetion
aih that lee or e I any ualug added taw goods and sordoss
tox or olher fox la S0 chanpeabie, il shol be paid oy 1he redcwant
oblger at the same Sma as I pays e relevan o2 or chamge,

mam.

Pavmaonis

Faet the awnidance of doval, all sipmesis by e Borrower 40 the
l_Ball;‘l. purAuant 1o e Facitoes ahail be made in immeacdately aeaitasle
CULLH

.ﬁ.ua{:lnnnls by llra Barvenssd 10 Ihe Bk srsuant b0 the Foslives
Maalic I Ehe Guisancy of Ihg iedean) Tagility or linbiity o,
l! |ha Bank £2 soneea, in A dilfsact curiecssy, in which cass the
ooy ka8 dhal gilfécapl curmandy sall ba msss a8 dhe Bank's
prevaiing exchangs rals

Hang Seng Bank Limfed

14.3 Mo payment do The Bank porsuani bo [he Faciiies shall dséhangs

15

17,

13

1hiz uﬁl alion of fne Socrower in rospecd of which il was mede unless
and unii E:,wm 7 ful has boen focened N Ihe arEney in wdich
A Is poyobls undor the Foclliizs and, o ihe ssbes That the amoun
ol any Such gayeen shall on peiua) conwarsion infe SUch CuRTery
nl ihe Bank's plesnding exchange rale Tad ahar of the amound of he
h hq»a&:mr ﬁxpm-s:.:nd i Bhelt currency, fhe Socrowor shal be labie Tor
the shorifa

Inddemaity

(s o e B
Sniang W_ a6y (s
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Borrowar's Sonaent 1o Releass Infoemiakion 16 Guarantars or

Third Pasty Sacurily Providars

Tha Barower canserds and acandadacios thal he Bad piay picwids

1ho Bomaears infornaton o any. piepeand of Afeal guamnier or

athar ihird parly aacanly provide: Jod thedt saickam] in mepect o the

Factilios, inguding.-

& ey Enaeiad infornation torgacnieg e Borewen

) & copyar b aummary of the Facily Leltes;

129 & eapy o gy farmal demaes for avaidue paymant which | send
bo the By after it hag daded 1o astle an cuerdes ameeant;

arn
1@ @ copy ol bhe latast statamen! of sccount prawded ko ko
Hornower,

Disclosure of Infcemation o Crodi Relermnes Agoncy

{a) Each Bormower ackhowiedges Bied agress Thid, aublec) 1 sub-

puragrnph (b1 Bedow, any inlormatian with respecl Lo sush

Borrowar wiich s dad Aricwer al ke cequest

of lhe Bank or aclad iry the Wurm of dealinge belwesn

soch Herrower and Wne Sank sy 50 distloned Lo ar used

ard ralalned by, any credi refenanss agancy cr smilar sarace

provider far 1 o purpese of unr:ryng auch information ar
enatling tham lo provide auch ort It <EhEr

£13 i order hat thew mey carty. oul oredd gad alher stalus

chegks in respoct of such Bormwer; (2} for he pur prans ol

thaanrabie monfioieg ol any indebtodneas whils thesg is A

currant dafault by such Bormower 05 DOMGWEr & guniailas and!

ar sy o st them in edlectiog debls,
15 Fara Baemwesd which i3 & imileg company.-

il Afry Bodronwsl ey By giving the Bank 90 days’ rolice.in
«ﬂunq retditkn (R Snsenl conlatned in sub pg‘:ag.iph ]
s

i I ey Borrows gives redics 16 tiveki the gorsant given
Fursgand 1o sub-paragragh (A in actdarce with aub-
parogragh {bii), the Eenk may -

1] suhped lio [D6) &nd (D7) halow, (ke Bard oy

ras b2 disclose dntormatian pursaant e aul-

paagraph {=) until he nolice of seocalion given
prsLan bo sub. paragrapis (B axpras:

devator HERC G
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184,

12 tne Bonk may noddy ol persors Lo whom the Bank
i pemitled in daciose information. pursuan! 1o sub-
paragraph {a) o ihe fao ol a nolice of revccatian
o been gruen plarsuand Lo saboparngraph: [

153 sna Bank may regund the rodice of revocatbon sersd
a7 ke Bani as also applyng io ihe consenl such

ot has prewicusy given inorespect of ail clrer
cradd 1acifee (rcluding hie purchase or [sasing
Iesirdy grairhed L guc Barawer by the Bund)

241 the Sank lermnate (e Fodlitles and any cthar
fanldes pf:‘ﬁ:dtﬂ b auch Boroser ik @i from
thi dale 30 he aduieed by tha Bank, somes! b the
Henhg and 'E'}"'I’Ell.llill'lﬁ o wlch (e shlevane M2iRies
anmn govenad
the eredd re' nee ageney of smilar aerdics
presider may oordin:e b retae inforenation provdded
R it by tho Bank In its sromal acchiva foe ila
imbemal use but ned Tor provision of such informalian
13 obner mnslilulions when they seek credi! ropens,

103] the Bank may conlinue 1o provide indoomation
telaling o hire purchass and Isasing lransaclons
and {cans o wholessers and retailers (o finance the
sopAsiion ol slook v irace io the oiedil reference
agenty of similar serdoe proveder nolwithslandn
ieynnan of lne consent relared o in parsgrap
{0y above; ard

COFE the crecld redesspce agency or similar ssryice
provsder may conbinog e p'owue imlormation
melating to Rire puchase and lepsing iransacions
Al luang Lo whelaesire nud salsila e g the
pomamlian of ok in {rads and sdampalion wineh
o malter gl prEEe ragord gotmithstanding 1
rewtcalion of 1he cansesl relared 2 in. parsgraph
(Ll abous,

o) For 4 Borower which 1.0 sole proprielorship or parinership,
any Boerower pody Instnuct the Bank, upon termination ol an
account by Tol rapeyment wilhoul 2ry refinansing from the
Eank, 10 fmake @ foquesi 1o the ool mfeence: ?km:f ar
=similar sersica prowdder 4o delele relewant accounl
in cdifabase, %0 hog os the instnecton (s gi'\.-un wiihin £ years
Altar acocoond tenminaticn and al oo lime did the aotounl ieve
a defaull iy payment for a pericd in Excess of B0 days wWiTin B
wvears Immedioiely belone aooound beymination.

i} Suh In- v parsaraphe (b ang fcl. tkie cansent shall ramar
ot dusphs s lermonabon of any Bo 3 gmcgunt o
hl:r owing relalians~p wih e Bank,
fat Triz consenl & aovan by the Bauddwar, of iF tharg arg mere 1P
one Boerovar, by sach of the Soerowsie savanally,
A THE cnsee s i accitian woand chae nol AR any Agreael
s Gengan] cenlaingd = any secaund rulae, s and onciliges
Gf ohay paracls sl asrapmanis g docaanis gosancing any
Barrgeer's sacount andar bedgwing ralatianship with the Bank

{lak]

Disclesura of Persona] Bata and Bosrower Information

{3)  Toenabie the Bonk to conskdsr whelher % mate or Ganlinue 4
make Busdable Facfilles to tne Soriowes, the Barawsr shall,
uped the Bank's requsst sipely i lhe Bank Traomny fistim $n lim
pet::o".ar dxa relating to the Boroser andicr alher infocination
relating 1o the Borrower and, wivore applicable, any af e
Herrower's directors, authorzed signaleres andlor other sflicens
of represaeaihies and fsdure o do soomay resut in the Brlrs
Inabilyy bo make or pondnss o make svailabks Facliliss o
Hroriower,

|tY &I umalion ang personal deta o selalian ie 1he Bordwer
and_ where applicabis, sach of {he Borcwar'a diracline,
s zed sgnaloree andior glher alicers L E ]
wvd #l Gther eéaumation rdaticg W Be Faclily Lestar & tha
Faglits and sy tranaacian o Qealing Betwean sach Sof itws
g the Bank wiveh ape o thie Banica passoasien o ool
feem Hida Lo tima ched colieaively Be reierred 1o @ “Sorrower
Endanyaiion”

[t)  The Borower agreas (dor and on behall of the Boerowsr and
wach of Ihe Bomowers dirsckors, nulhonzed siynalones ancios
ather oifioers o represenialves) that the Bank may-

i} use, store, discloze, bansier fehether wilhin or cotaide
Horeg Kongy andior echange any Bormwer informraton o
or wilh =uch psmsons as the Bank may SansEder nacasias
incdyding any member of the graup af cempaniss o
wiich the Bami iz o member Cllbe Group™ [or soy wid @

pasae in conmesicn wilh any aerace andier Gresl 97
mumg Firby anelier aooasnsweaies prduidad ar o ba
nm:w:eb ap v Bank o any clher mambar o the Group

the Borgwer ar oo ony alhed seman al e sgees)

od {8 Horrowar, andicr i cannackon wi® malehing tar
vty puipode wosihar o nel withoa wiee [n faking
';:f anvaran aclion sgaral the Beocwarl any Baraser
.n armubian wilk ﬂlfmr paraonal dala concarging thi

Boriowar in the Bank's poseiason, andix i S e

T preermifneg, iMprewing s Nuasthgs IEEIU:L* Pravsion ol
crfiar mardiges andier fadlites by tha & ang any alhir
mamzar of the Gioup 10 The Barawer ar b @ng o
sapman gt tha neguoal ol ihe Bavawsar genecaly, andior
&hy - clier punposcs and fo such porscns as may be in
mocordancs with the Hank's |r?t:m:rr.l paicy on dismosun
al personal dala anddor o irdermation a3 aed oul
in alalemania, circulak, noticks or alfer lemme and
cordilions moda available by (ke Bank 1o the Bargacr
Trgesy Tisivg: 103 T, Ancdar
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{11H) ddll.l:r any Berrower infarmabtion fa ang credi eelencres
ngr or Hmfar strdos prodder and In tha ovant ol
by b= Borrower of by any aiher person (e whom
1hu Bank has made advances ar eleeradac ghes edi
or atlord Fagiites & ihe meguest of (e Bariowsr] in
pedorming any cbligatons or dsthaeging any llabiiies 1o
iha Bank, to any debl collection sgoncy or shmilar sevice
providen andior provids bankers of oredl retonences o
ather financial inslfullons o olher paries in respeel of

the Boricwer; andlar

iy wlace (e Bapk Gonkdes i necesssty ar apomoiale,
the Emrx imay Srenafer sny Doamower icformalion 10 any
smrdice provider {whatkesr silcstod 1 or outsige’ Hong
1 dar the pumpose of ErUCRESIng OF Prowcing oy
sarvcy of: Phe Bank's behall to sho Bormower. Whesn (he
Ervice prosndaer s ssusied owside Hong Kong in an ares
whaie thwer ame loes siingent dalz. proweclion dows, e
Eaank will i on fne tervcr prowider conlidectialiog
umiterkakos gubstantially simear o the requirsments
Al v data predeclion laswa in Hang Kong. in el
1he Back will réamam responsitie For snauring the
ity &F The Bodrciwes indaimalicn an draraslered,

Sevarability

0 any provision of the Facilty Leller o fhese Slandard Teima and
Cendsans & or becores illegal, irualid of uncsfarccsabig i any
jurisdction, that ahal ool alfect Se legafly, validty. of esvancaabdity
al any alber peoulsian of the Facility Letier and thoss Stasdard
Terme and Condiliens of the legaily, valiiy e araneablily of such
prowision b any otiber jurisdicion

Assignmsent

Tne Damgwar may not Smaign or Iransler af o any of il rghas,
panafils Gr shicsicrd w'eks o ralercen Lo in the Fadl%y Lellor amd
thasa E;U’Iﬂk'ﬂ l"\-rl'l'IS and Coddilions wilkeut e Bank's priod widtan
ARG

Theo Bank may al ang lime assign arframier @y peraon &b o any
of 5 rigfe, bameiita of ciligatians wider o redered 60 in The Facily
Lll_inU“f s g Slandard Terme and Sondlicna o change ila landing
affice,

Cranges in Cintumatances

Wirhoul prejudics bo ol provisions i the Fadliy Lettes or lhese
Slandard Tems and Comdivore, | al any time she Bank determines
tkat K = or wil become wviawdul of condrarg d0 any dimclive ol any
agancy of any alale for i to conlinue wih s stdigations undor the
Facilny Letberor @ in dhe Bank's oprmion thers 15 & maleral shangsin
mareet condidons nduding wmoressed cost of lunde which doss nal
agequasly mefled S cidis v the Bank of oowning Junding fix o
makas i urleasible dof the Bank o woctinue wilh e abigaliony erdkr
tres Facdily Letler; the Bank may noffy the Dorpowes of tha zpne
in wrling and thercupon. [unless the Bornewer ond the Bank i
& auilable alernerie arfsngeTend) e Dack's odigaliong gRell be
canceied and the Horrowe: shall repay the indabladnee and scowd
intere e thavson and ey sber sum oo 10 dm Bank wecer She Pea Ry
Ladir.

Coriflcaly by th Bank

B cerlitzate n wmirg signec oy @ manoger of oiher-duly autnorized
afficer of the Bank siafng ke Inderes] robe ord the amount al any
aaniguias Bme dug ared payases by he Somower 10 the Bank unce
fha Fagidly Lather, and sy clbes conilieste, delerminalicn o aginion
<f i Bank prevsded inralalian 1 the FRalives, sane e the esbe of
marehisel arran, ghal Be canchEive and Bnding Gn the Borneaarn

Amerdmeant
The Ban meg. ol 4 ansclule dacretion, by nplios 16t Borawer
..-a: amend or aupplemenl (9 ihese Standors Terms ond Condiions
'[#) i refating lo any interest, tharges, commissions or lees,
1h-e terms of any Faclity Letler andiar Faciiies. Such varlsion,
amendment ar supplement shak sske effect on tne dets of the nu.m
setimg oud detalls of such yanation, smendmsect o supplement or o
s, the dats specfieg o lhe nalice,

Inconsisdomcy

In tha anveed ol any o dhasn Sandacd Terms
and IZ_‘I and any Supp . A rolicecd Suppleman] ahali
prewail,

In the et of any meondisigncy Seteedy tne Fachily Letter anag
thazs Standard Tanmis and Coeaditians, the Fackiy Letber Shall prevall

Faree Majaure

WAthout prejudice Lo other provisions in the Facilly Lelter o thess
Slandard Terms and Condilions. in the evsnl ol the Sank direclly
or ircirsctly being rendares umabie by reason of dorce majeurs %o
grad or conlinue granting she Facillies or any port sheredl to gw
Borrower, soch Faciities o any pod thereod nol utlized wiether
or not notiflcation, request or opplicalicn whalsoewer nas besn
given ko tha Bank to drewdown or ullbze the Fackilles shall craso
o be avallzble to the Bowower, and In the case of culslanding
lranszclions, the dus date of such Irersaciions shal be posiponed
unhil such Impedlmtn. hos cepsed bo eMsl, wdhout any kabilies 1o
Ihe Bank, Motwrhstanding the oooumonce of an overt o evenls o
lorce majoure, inberest shail rewertheless conbinue 1o accrun on all
cutzianding transaclians unit bhe Sank has recetved payment for the
ame.

Fomce majune shall mean and molude suck changes or ewanls of
natiort o inlernslicnad, finercial, politicd of economic conclions
or currency awailaosdy ar exchange rales or sachanges conlrals
ag {in any casa} woudd make (L impossible, anawdisl or contrary 1o
any requirerment of or requesl from any cenlradl bank ar alher Nscal
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monalary authoriy (Whether arnot having the foros of 1wl for B
Bark o grant of canlinug granling The Faolbaes i e Bomawer or
far thi BSnk 10 pertem any oustandng lransachions, o acds of God
AEEes, ockauls, bowenfls, blockades [woestnor or nal ooch siikeg,
feckoaks, hopenils of blockedes effected by or upen the Bank or its
anocyens), indusiia distebanoes, aols of ke public Anemy, wan
pwiteihey declored or not), blociades, nsumesbons. salk. apidemcs,
farhguakes, lires, sfomms, Acode, alher sabual pakeircphe, il
dalurhances, governmanial m-mlahwu Al any clbdr sausan whaliad
of 2 kind herels menlioned of otheiwise met within e ceoteal of The
Eans.

The Bark shall nal e e fef any damages resclling feom ooy
Toice malmurh, de medler e Iniliated,

Upea amtisenca of any avent of loroe majgure, the Bonk shak ba
enlitkd 1o derand rc?a,mc# of all crmandngs under the Fadlfes,
ami e Aank shall net in eny circumstances be liobis bothe Boorower
in gt al sy fos or damaee sulfensd by e Borower a5 3 resdl
of tho Bank exarcising shes right.,

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Faidily Lalter, thass Biandard Terva and Conciions and (he
Facilbies sl ha govamed By and - constrund in accardamce wilh the
laws o Heng Kang, The Berrcser roeccabiy. submis to the nons
e ysne jutisdicion ol Hang Kang courla.

!t IF e Berrowa s Aol crdinariy fesident In Hang Kang ar 3 company

ineorparated undar 1he laws of Hong Kong or & fonegn comgany
regiateted vader ihe Campondes Srdinance Cap. 52, Laws of Hang
M), the Beroser hRrety appants 3 process agenl (e rothed
80 Lie Bank] 1o accopl serdce of anﬁgegd process in Hang Ral
In cenneclion with te Facities. 'I'.'-el ol SgiEs ek any wrid
summans, onder, ivagment ar other dasement enwl B8 deamad II'-I:.'
ared sefficlenity aereed oo lhe’ Borower whan 18t al o B8 by q:_:
30 the address of The process agert Wal kiomn o e Sank,

Wm;ocr-;l aball nol |IrIT|‘ thir Bank's right le serve process on the

Eogrowes By anmy ather made of saiwds;

Forgign Exchangs
Furpoas
Al Foemign axsangs fadlites provided by the Sank fo the Bornower

are {or the Borawar's yilisation loocover inlarest or exchange. rale
wiEurg (s rEl in e nanral course of S Borraers businsss.
Ukitizatign

Trk aggragate amoun: of ulilizalics under any Tordige il.%’lkﬁ
faclily growided by the Bonx lo lhe Sopoegr wil be 8o "ﬁﬂ ﬂ:f
Ine Hank on a rigkwsghted betie wdlng the Banks sr.amlard
walghling aigonthms. These wili vae dffeconl weighlings Tar E*"ﬁ iﬂl

ucls, bt for @ e of ungtqlmn romingl amganl of & pareulan
Eroduct these weightings cwer Ior dials of shodar madsitiee
and for deals whors fhe valus ol 3 canirasd an 8 mac-ie-naket
Eass 5 o Tavaur of she Bormower, The Banc wil be gedsed b afies
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Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony So certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form aff-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Comp3;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report de¢sontain any untrue statement of a material daatmit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements mwade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Company aarul, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and mfysmle responsible for establishing and maintaindigclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}¥nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Compamyg have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresaused such disclosure controls and procedarbs designed unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the Company, including its consokhsubsidiaries, is made knowt
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Designed such internal control over financigiarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeratsurance regarding the reliability of finanegborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companytdatiare controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contanld procedures as of the end of the period covieyethis report based on st
evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Camjsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during tt
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to matesadiffect, the Company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | &alisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiamerhal controls over financ
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the awaditmittee of Company's Board of Directors (or pessperforming the equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costoser financial reportir
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect @mmpany's ability to record, process, summarize r@port financial informatio
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@venanagement oother employees who have a significant role ir
Company's internal controls over financial repatin

Date: August 15, 2012

[s/ Anthony So
Anthony So, President, Chief Executive Officer amdasurer



Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Albert So certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form aff-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Comp3;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report de¢sontain any untrue statement of a material daatmit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements mwade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Company aarul, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and mfysmle responsible for establishing and maintaindigclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}¥nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Compamd have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresaused such disclosure controls and procedarbs designed unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the Company, including its consokhsubsidiaries, is made knowt
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Designed such internal control over financigiarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeratsurance regarding the reliability of finanegborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companytdatiare controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contanld procedures as of the end of the period covieyethis report based on st
evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Camjsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during tt
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to mategadiffect, the company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | &alisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiamerhal controls over financ
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the acaiihmittee of the Company's Board of Directors (erspns performing the equival
function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costoder financial reportir
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect @mmpany's ability to record, process, summarize r@port financial informatio
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@venanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in th
Company's internal controls over financial repaytin

Date: August 15, 2012

Is/ Albert So
Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary



EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of setti350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonstEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dsids international business company
“Corporation”), does hereby certify, to such offissknowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endeatdd 31, 2012 (the “Form 20-F9f the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&earExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and infaomaontained in the Form 2B-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Date: August 15, 2012

[/s/ Anthony So
Anthony Sa

President, Chief Executive Officer and Treas!



EXHIBIT 13.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of setti350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonstEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dsids international business company
“Corporation”), does hereby certify, to such offissknowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endeatdd 31, 2012 (the “Form 20-F9f the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&earExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and infaomaontained in the Form 2B-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Date: August 15, 2012

s/ Albert So

Albert So

Chief Financial Officer and Secrete



